PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, December 19, 2019

Time: 10:00 am.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA
L. Call to Order:
I1. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: November 21, 2019 *
[I. Employee Recognitions *
V. Public Comment:
V. Committee Meetings:
A. Approvals:
1. Residential Housing Committee Report * (Loughlin)
V. Old Business:
A. Approval:
1. Lonza — Additional Onsite Parking Concepts * (Allard)
2. IAPP — 68 New Hampshire Avenue * (Lamson)

VI Finance:
A. Reports:

1. FY 2020 Financial Report for the Four Month Period Ending October 31, 2019 *

2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending August 31, 2020 *
3. Revolving Loan Fund *

VII.  Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:

A. Reports:
1. Right-of-Entry - Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines — 100 New Hampshire
Avenue *
2. Right-of-Entry - 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. - 19 Durham Street *
B. Approvals:
1. NH DOT - Portsmouth Transportation Center Extension of Right-of-Entry *
(Levesque)

2. Skyhaven Flying Club — Flight Simulator ROE* (Torr)



VIIIL

[X.

XI.

Leases:
A. Reports:
1. Exercise of First Renewal Option - Rochester Electronics (1635 Realty, LLC) —
20 Durham Street *

B. Approvals:
1. Lease for 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. —19 Durham Street * (Loughlin)

Contracts/Agreements:
A. Reports
1. Jones Snow Plowing Services - Snow Removal Services for the Division of Ports
and Harbors facilities *

B. Approvals:

1. Read Custom Soils - Runway Sand * (Allard)
2. Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial - Runway Deicing Liquid * (Lamson)
3. Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial - Runway Deicing Solid * (Levesque)
4. Cross Insurance — PDA Insurance * (Torr)
5. USI-New England, Inc. — PDA Insurance * (Lamson)
6. Pike Industries — Change Order for LED Runway Lights * (Loughlin)
Signs:
A. Reports:
1. 130 International Drive — Milliken

B. Approvals:
1. Portsmouth International Airport - Wayfinding Signs * (Allard)

Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals:

A. Reports:

Elections (Vice-Chair and Treasurer) *

Committee Appointments *

PDA Holiday Schedule — 2020 *

Golf Course Operations

Airport Operations

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

c) Noise Line Report *

DR W N -

B. Approvals:

L. Bills for Legal Services * (Loughlin)
2. Annual Leave Buy Back * (Torr)
3. Land Use Controls * (Levesque)



XII.

XIIIL.

XIV.

XV.

XVIL.

XVIIL

*%
Kk ok

Division of Ports and Harbors:

A. Reports:
1. Port Advisory Council — Meeting Minutes of November 13,2019 *
2. Right-of-Entry — Heidi and Elisabeth Fisheries - Exercise First Extension at the

Portsmouth Fish Pier *
B. Approvals:
1. Final Adoption of Pda 501-511 and Pda 513-515 Administrative Rules*
(Lamson)
2. Right-of-Entry Extension - Riverside and Pickering Marine Contractors at
Market Street Terminal for Buoy Project * (Allard)
3. Rye Harbor Dredge Sample * (Levesque)
New Business:
Upcoming Meetings:
2020 Proposed Meetings Schedule *
Board of Directors January 16, 2020 @ 8:00 a.m.
All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
Directors” Comments:

Adjournment:

Press Questions:

Note: The Annual Holiday Party and Yankee Swap will be held at the
Golf Course Clubhouse beginning at 11:30 a.m.

Related Materials Attached

Related Materials Previously Sent

Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting
Confidential Materials

PABOARDMTGIAGENDAS - Current\Agenda December 19.docx






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, November 21, 2019
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

MINUTES

Presiding: Kevin H. Smith, Chairman

Present: Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; John P. Bohenko;
Margaret F. Lamson; Neil Levesque and Franklin G. Torr

Attending: David R. Mullen, Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Executive Director; Paul

E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director and Airport Director; Lynn M. Hinchee, General
Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public.

I. Call to Order:

Chairman Smith (“Smith”) called the meeting to order at 9:40 a.m. in the Board conference
room on the Pease International Tradeport at 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire.
II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby accept the minutes of the October 17,2019 Board meeting.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
III.  Public Comment:
There was no public comment.

IV.  Committee Meetings:
A. Reports:
1. Residential Housing Agendas
i. October 17, 2019 *
ii. November 21,2019 *

Chairman Smith (Smith) indicated that the Residential Housing Committee held its last meeting
this morning and the Committee approved a final report which will be presented to the Board at its
December 19, 2019 meeting.

2. Golf Committee Agenda

Director Bohenko (Bohenko) provided a report to state that the Golf Committee met on
Monday (11/18) and indicated an issue that was brought up by Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager
(DeVito) is the use of the electric golf carts. The Committee was informed that individual players at
the golf course want to utilize a single golf cart for themselves so if there are three or four playersin a
group they want three or four carts. This is not sustainable in terms of the environment and this makes



less carts available for other patrons. A policy has been prepared to address this situation. This policy
requires people to share a cart and will help in the operation of the golf course.

i. Approval of Golf Cart Policy

Director Bohenko moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that in accordance with
the recommendation of the Pease Golf Committec, the Pease Development Authority Board of
Directors approves of, adopts and implements the “Pease Golf Course Golf Cart Policy”
attached hereto; all in accordance with the memorandum from Scott D. DeVito, PGA General

Manager, dated November 5, 2019.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
ii. Approval of Vinyl Fence Repair

Director Torr moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that in accordance with the
recommendation of the Pease Golf Committee, the Pease Development Authority Board of
Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Chasco, Inc of
Portsmouth, New Hampshire to repair the vinyl fencing area on the east side of the Pease Golf
Course clubhouse in an amount not to exceed$4,800.00; all in accordance with the memorandum
of Scott D. DeVito, PGA General Manager dated November S, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

3. Finance Committee Agenda
V. Finance:
A. Reports:
1. FY 2020 Financial Report for the Three Month Period Ending September
30,2019

Finance Director [rv Canner (Canner) spoke to the Finance Committee meeting on Monday
which followed the Golf Committee meeting. Canner stated that one of the things that was done was
to informally introduce the new Assistant Finance Director Christine Cooper (Cooper) who joined
PDA roughly a month ago. Chris is part of our succession planning and comes to PDA with 20 years
experience, a Master’s Degree in Finance from Southern New Hampshire University and a CPA.
Canner introduce Cooper to the Board.

Canner moved on to the Financial Report and reported that the PDA Operating Revenues are
slightly below budget by 2.5% and operating expenses are below budget by about 1.8%. Canner also
informed the Committee about the CPI adjustments to the Tradeport leases as $10 million of revenues
is tied up in this area and a lot of the annual adjustments are based on the CPI. The PDA budget
assumed a CPI of 2% and currently the CPI is at approximately 1% meaning if this trend continues
PDA will have an underrun of $100,000. The decrease in inflation is due to lower energy and to a
lesser extent food costs. Currently PDA revenues are approximately $117,000 below budget primarily
represented by the loss in fuel sales due to the temporary closure of the Portsmouth Fish Pier. Canner

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21,2019



indicated that a question that came up at the Finance Committee was the anticipated cost for the repairs
at the Fish Pier and the Committee was informed that it will be close to $5 million dollars; the State is
stepping forward on this and the repairs should be completed in approximately twelve months.

Canner indicated that the PDA October books were closed this week and the revenue number
got tighter bringing PDA to $97,000 under budget and operating expenses stayed flat at 1.8% under.

Canner indicated that the professional services number represents legal expenses associated
with the CLF settlement and some inspections and permitting that are being performed. Canner further
pointed out that “all other” addresses the impact of cost of goods sold which indicates PDA is buying
less fuel because we are not selling that fuel at Portsmouth Fish Pier.

Canner indicated that with the payroll run yesterday 127 checks were issued and are trending
down; the high point was in June when PDA had 157 employees. We are preparing for the addition of
the winter employees that typically come on in November. Canner indicated that the reason for the
underrun goes to the organization chart where three open positions are indicated. Canner updated the
Board that a formal offer has been made and accepted by an individual for the IT Director position.

Director Lamson (Lamson) inquired into the three open positions shown on the organizational
chart. Canner indicated that the equipment operator will probably stay unfilled and do not anticipate
filling it during this fiscal year. The IT position has been filled and the individual will start on
December 9" and in fact will come in a few days before that to get acquainted with the internal
operations and procedures. Canner also informed the Board that the Airport Administrative Manager
position is currently in draft and should be posted the beginning of the year.

Bohenko asked that a write-up be forwarded to the Board members regarding the two new
positions that have been filled (Assistant Finance Director and IT Director) to indicate the background
for each of the new individuals.

Canner indicated that the last time the Board met the Certified Financials were still in draft due
to the fact the auditors were awaiting legal letters and additional information on post-employment
benefits. Canner indicated that all of the outstanding information has been received and the documents
have been finalized and there were no changes to what was reviewed by the Board, closing out the
Fiscal Year 19,

Canner further indicated that the interest rate expense is down as PDA has not had to draw
from the Revolving Line of Credit due to some early delays in the terminal expansion and runway
projects. However, that is rapidly changing as the projects are well underway. PDA has spent $1.1
million in total capital expenditures for the year regarding construction projects (the terminal project
and the functional replacement at the Port which makes up approximately 95% of expenditures to
date).

Canner spoke to the various business units and the fact that at Portsmouth Airport has exceeded
over 100,000 enplanements surpassing the last two years.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



Lamson asked Canner to clarify for the general public that under RSA 12-G the tenants at PDA
do not pay taxes, but rather pay a municipal fee. Lamson asked what PDA pays to Newington for the
little part of police and Portsmouth with all of the services; Hinchee indicates that prior to Canner
answering the question that it is necessary to understand that there are two different kinds of payments.
There is a Municipal Services Fee (MSF) which is limited to the cost of services provided. Hinchee
further explained that the MSF Covers the municipal portion, the school portion, and the county
portion of the tax bill. Then there are those tenants, all of whom are located in Portsmouth, for the
second payment who pay a Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) which is identical to what they would
pay if they were owned in fee and living/operating in Portsmouth. Bohenko indicated that another way
to describe inside the airport district is Ad Valorum taxes minus education. Canner indicated that the
gross tax is approximately $14.00 and then the school accounts for $4.00 of that; Bohenko indicates
the school is higher than that. Canner indicates that the net number is $9.25 per thousand of the
municipal service fee. Bohenko indicated that the taxes went down due to the revaluation; it is usually
about 50/50 schoool versus municipal. Canner indicated that PDA is a conduit and the City bills us
and PDA in turn bills tenants the total projected MSF for the current fiscal year is going to be $3.2
million. Bohenko supplements the statement because of what Hinchee indicated and another $3
million comes from outside the airport district bringing it to a little over $6 million in payments to the
City. Executive Director David Mullen (Mullen) indicates $6.6 million. Canner stated that he wanted
to let people know the inside of the fence area and the reduction because that side is billed without the
education component and the other side includes the educational component. Lamson stated that it is
important that individuals understand.

Canner gets back to the enplanements which means approximately 200,000 people have passed
through the airport to date. The split is between charter and scheduled flights.

Canner indicated that Skyhaven is on budget and are up due to fuel sales (26% more than last
year in terms of fuel sold). Since Skyhaven was merged with the PDA, Canner indicated just over a
million dollars in operating losses have been incurred to run the airport, including capital expenditures,
repaying debt and offsetting grant money; overall closing in on $1.7 million in terms of subsidy that
PDA has had to put forward on running Skyhaven.

Canner stated that the operating budget for the Tradeport is approximately $8.99 million and
indicates this is where the impact would be felt due to the CPL

Canner indicated that at the Golf Course the operating revenues are up by $227,000 and
operating expenses are up by only $11,000; net impact through operations and cash flow represents
$618,000 through September. Canner stated at the Finance Committee meeting there had been
discussion about the profitability of the food and beverage operation; on $112,000 of revenue they are
making an operating income of $73,000 which is a good margin in terms of success. Canner further
stated that the Golf Course is looking to lock things up December 1*'. Grill 28 numbers are exceeding
previous years and through October it is 9% ahead of last year. Due to the good weather the simulators
have not been captured as soon as they did last year due to the continued good weather. Total rounds
of golf played this year are close to 54,000 versus 51,000 rounds played last year and a majority of the
growth is due to non-member play.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



Port Authority had a loss of revenues due to the Fish Pier and the Port is also under budget in
terms of operating income which is anticipated. Canner stated the need to remember that fue] sales is
one number and the cost of goods sold is a second number and the net difference is the margin so he
makes about 3% (i.e.; by losing $200,000 in fuel sales the net impact would only be 3%).

Smith asked Canner what the admin line on the Port represented; Geno Marconi Division
Director of Ports and Harbor responded that it represents his administrative staff. Canner indicated
that it is not allocated across the other business units, it is isolated for people like Geno and his support
staff that is what captures that. Canner indicated that there is no revenue associated with it, it could be
allocated back but then it would be lost and not transparent.

Director Bohenko leaves the Board conference room at 9:59 a.m.
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending July 31,2020

Canner indicated that PDA will be spending $10 million and then another $4 million on the
terminal and runway renovations over the nine (9) month period. This $14 million in capital
expenditures will cause PDA to drawn down on its cash balances by close to $8 million. Some will be
offset by grant monies and this is when PDA will start to draw into its RLOC. Canner has had
discussions with Provident Bank on the timing of this as they are keeping this reserve on the books and
they wanted a better idea of the flow which appears to be occurring by the end of the fiscal year. The
cost to PDA if we borrow money today is 4.35% which is lower than last year but consistent with the
drop in the federal fund rate and prime rate. Canner indicated that PDA will have the RLOC until
2022 and then will have an option of converting part of that to permanent debt or rolling it over into
another RLOC. Canner explained that the debt levels will be overhead through 2026 by the time we
pay off the debt which is based on a number of issues related to the capital budget forecast and there
are some discretionary items that might be able to be eliminated. Canner stated that there have been
discussions about prioritizing some of the capital expenditures.

Lamson stated on Monday at the Finance Committee meeting she had Canner confused about
the cost of who would be taking care of the beavers. Lamson went on to state there is a contract with
the USDA / WS and they would be the ones taking care of the beavers/wildlife which is why Canner
did not have a response to her question at that time.

VI.  Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of
License Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported the following:

A. Reports:
1. Right-of-Entry — IAPP use of parking lot at Hangar 227

Mr. Mullen indicated that IAPP had been granted a Right-of-Entry to the parking lot area
(northern section) located at Hangar 227 from Friday, October 18, 2019 through Thursday, October 24,
2019, for use of employee vehicle parking while restriping is being performed on its parking lot area
located at 75 Rochester Avenue.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



2. Right-of-Entry — 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. to determine if
premises at 19 Durham Street is suitable for intended use

Mr. Mullen indicated that 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. had been granted a Right-of-
Entry to enter upon the premises located at 19 Durham Street from November 1, 2019 through
November 30, 2019 for inspection purposes to determine if the Premises is suitable for 2-Way’s
intended use and have agreed to extend another thirty (30) days and will report when it is finalized.

3. Right-of-Entry — NH Dept. of Environmental Services use of parking lot at
360 Corporate Drive

Mr. Mullen indicated that NH Department of Environmental Services had been granted a
Right-of-Entry to enter upon the premises located at 360 Corporate Drive on November 6, 2019, for
use as overflow vehicle parking as part of a training exercise.

4. Right-of-Entry — Port City Air use of parking/Staging Areas off of Grafton
Drive

Mr. Mullen indicated that Port City Air had been granted a Right-of-Entry to use certain
designated areas off of Grafton Drive at the Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire for the period of use from November 8, 2019, through January 15, 2020, for the purposes
of parking vehicles and equipment staging related to ongoing construction work at the PCA facility at
104 Grafton Drive.

5. Right-of-Entry — Avier, LLC d/b/a Avier Flight School for Designated
Portion of the Terminal Building at Skyhaven Airport

Mr. Mullen indicated that Avier, LLC, d/b/a Avier Flight School (“Avier”) had been granted a
Right-of- Entry to enter upon a portion of the Terminal Building at Skyhaven Airport for the purpose
of utilizing an approximate 90 +/- foot area to be utilized as a classroom, allowing the flight instructor
and student to discuss particular flight curriculum while on the ground at Skyhaven. The justification
for waiving a conventional lease fee is that the classroom will be seldom used and the intent is to
incentivize Avier to choose Skyhaven as a destination. This would increase both flight operations and
fuel sales at Skyhaven.

B. Approvals:
1. VIATEQ Corporation — License for space in Airport Terminal * (Levesque)

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations
and to execute a License with VIATEQ Corporation, or any other TSA designated passenger
screening services provider, for a period of three (3) years effective December 1, 2019 through
November 30, 2022, for the use of designated office space (utilizing a break room, an office, locker
rooms and an on-site training room) at the airport terminal. This agreement will allow the
airport to meet the TSA requirements to provide designated areas to store security sensitive

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



information, conduct recurrent training and support employee work breaks; all in accordance
with the same terms and conditions set forth in the Memorandum from Anthony I. Blenkinsop,
Deputy General Counsel, dated November 20,2019

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
Director Bohenko returns to the Board conference room at 10:06 a.m. and Director Levesque
departs the Board conference room at 10:06 a.m.

VII. Leases:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease
Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

A. Reports:
1. Sublease between 25, 29 Retail, LLC and Sleep Institute of New England,
P.L.L.C.

Mr. Mullen indicated that 25, 29 Retail, LL.C entered into a sublease with Sleep Institute of
New England (“SINH”) for 1,342 square feet within the leased premises at 14 Manchester Square —
Suite 281, for a period of sixteen (16) months, with an effective date of October 1, 2019 through
January 31, 2021. SINH will use the premises for medical and related uses. Director Lamson
approved the sublease.

g Sublease between 30 International Drive, LLC and New Hampshire
Prosthetics, LL.C

Mr. Mullen indicated that 30 International Drive, LLC entered into a sublease with New
Hampshire Prosthetics (“NHP”) for 3,269 square feet within the leased premises at 30 International
Drive — Suite 201, for a period of ten (10) years, with an effective date of December 1, 2019. NHP
will use the premises for professional office and related uses. Director Lamson approved the sublease.

Director Levesque returns to the Board conference room at 10:07 a.m.
VIII. Contracts/Agreements:
In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Mr. Mullen reported as follows:

A. Approvals:
1. USDA / WS Wildlife Control Proposal at Airports

Director Allard moved the motion and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a Cooperative Service
Agreement with the United States Department of Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection
Service and Wildlife Services (USDA / WS), to continue its integrated wildlife control and monitoring
duties at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) and Skyhaven Airport (DAW); any taking
of wildlife at Pease will be confined within the airport perimeter fence and be in compliance with

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



Federal and State permits, for the period of January 1,2020, through December 31, 2020, in the amount
of $21,707.71; all in accordance with the memorandum of Andrew B. Pomeroy, Airport Operations

Manager, dated November 6, 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver of the RFP
requirement based on the following reasons:

L. PDA has a long-standing relationship with USDA / WS stemming back to the time PDA
was formed. As a part of that ongoing relationship, USDA/ WS has maintained ongoing
wildlife surveys, with data dating back to its first work at Pease and PDA does not want

to interrupt this data stream;

2. USDA / WS conducts training classes for PDA Airport Operations Personnel on Airport
Wildlife Hazard Management to meet the 14 CFR 139 requirements; and

3. USDA/ WS is the FAA recognized authority for airport wildlife hazard management and
training.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.

IX. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals:
A. Reports:
1. Solar Feasibility Study

Mullen indicated that PDA had contracted with Competitive Energy Services (CES) to conduct
a solar feasibility study and the Report makes clear that the potential economic outcomes of any of the
project scenarios are currently too risky to warrant moving ahead. Specifically, the current one
megawatt limit in New Hampshire on the ability to net meter which sends excess power back onto the
electricity grid for a monetary credit, and the requirement to use Eversource (at their potentially higher
supply cost rates) as the default energy supplier when net metering, make the economic downside of
proceeding with a solar project too great. There be bills in Concord to change that and if that changes
PDA will revisit the issue.

Lamson indicated that the report was very interesting and that this is very interesting for her
Town and something to look at. Mullen indicated that all of the surrounding states do not have this net
metering limitation.

Director Torr departed the meeting at 10:11 a.m. but prior to leaving wished everyone a Happy
Thanksgiving.

2% Golf Course Operations

Golf Course General Manager Scott DeVito (DeVito) indicated that at this time there are 18
holes running at the course and will go through the weekend and will a few more decent days the Golf
Course will probably reach 55,000 rounds played for the calendar year. Maintenance is closing out the
irrigation system and when the course closes on December 1* the Maintenance Department has a lot of
thermal blankets which will be placed on greens and tees to get them ready for the winter. The
simulator league started about three weeks ago and there are 62 player teams and simultaneously

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21,2019



running a four player scramble.

3. Airport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

Airport Operations Manager Andrew Pomeroy (Pomeroy) spoke to the Board as PDA Deputy
Director / PSM Airport Director Paul Brean (“Brean”) was away. Pomeroy indicated that the airport
has been busy and that as of the end of October there has been 103,226 enplanements which breaks
down to 2,620 scheduled and 7,219 chartered for a total of 9,839 for October.

Pomeroy indicated that PCA had a record breaking October for fuel sales resulting in an
estimated $35,682.00 in fuel flowage fees for PSM. Pomeroy indicated that PCA is rehabbing hangar
229 and its solar initiative is starting at its main location/office building.

The revenue parking has been slow the last couple of months but is gearing up for the holiday
season. As of October there have been 395 transaction equating to $15,000 taken in and year-to-date
there has been $524,000 in parking revenue with 12,000 customers served, the average fare is $44 for
6.4 days of parking.

Allegiant is currently doing four flights a week, by mid-December they will increase to six
flights a week, sometime in January, when it is slow, it will drop back down to four flights a week with
an increase in February to 15 flights a week. Allegiant is excited about the new Explosive Detection
System (EDS) machine which will help to increase capacity to process bags quickly for loading onto
the airplane which is the limiting factor to back-to-back flights.

NH Air National Guard (NHANG) has currently taken delivery of two KC-46As, training
crews and flying training missions and a couple of weeks ago they performed its first fuel transfer.
Crews are being sent to school so they can be qualified in the coming month and it is anticipated that
the NHANG will receive two to three KC-46As a month between J anuary and April for a total of
twelve KC-46As.

The runway reconstruction project started last week with infield drainage improvements. The
infield drainage improvements will be performed during November and December, shut down in the
winter and will start back up again in the spring with the actual runway reconstruction which will be
done in phases. Pike Industry has been setting up its staging area on the North ramp which has been
boxed off with fencing and will be building an asphalt plant there to support the construction
operations next year.

The terminal project is underway and the baggage system is being installed to support the new
baggage screening building. The EDS machine is slated to be installed on December 2, 2019; PDA’s
contractor and TSA are training people to run the machine and will be sending people off for training
and shortly thereafter the machine will be up and running.

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

Gearing up for winter, the hangars are full and there is an ei ght person waitlist which includes

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



10

the larger maintenance hangars. There is revenue coming in.
b) Noise Line Report

There was one noise inquiry from Dover which was more of an informational call concerning a
Boeing E-2 Sentry (AWACS) which has a large radar disk on the top of the aircraft. The aircraft was
practicing multiple approaches with one or two of them being done at a lower altitude as published.

Director Lamson indicated that she had many calls regarding the Boeing 707 which had a
contraption on top of the aircraft. Pomeroy indicated that was a radar dish (AWACS plane) used for
area control (intercepts and tracking of aircraft) by the Air Force. Pomeroy further indicated that the
Air Force was flying training missions out of PSM for about a week with this aircratft.

B. Approvals:
1. Bills for Legal Services

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in
the total amount of $20,027.00 for legal services provided by Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green, PA.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

X. Division of Ports and Harbors:

Geno J. Marconi (“Marconi), Division Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors (“DPH”),
reported on Division activities, and the reports before the Board represent the current business at the

DPH.

A. Reports:
1. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of October 9,2019

There was one action taken by the Port Advisory Council (PAC) which was to authorize
Chairman Groux to send a letter to Senator Shaheen and copy the Congressional delegation supporting
the inclusion of the upper most turning basin project in the next Water Resource Development Act. It
had been in the prior one but it expired and while it was authorized, it was never funded. Senator Shaheen
sits on the committee and she is going to introduce it to be included so the PAC wrote a letter, so too did
Marconi and Marconi contacted the terminal operators up the river and suggested if they wanted to
express their support for the turning basin they too should write a letter.

2. Request to Transfer of Commercial Mooring — James Willwerth to Gerald
Worcester

Marconi indicated that in Hampton Willwerth sold his business to Worcester (of note is that Jerry
has been Jimmy’s deck hand for a long time and Jim is retiring so Jerry bought it).

Marconi spoke to a report which was not on the agenda to indicate that Don Coker has been an

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



11

active member on the PAC for approximately 10 years. Coker’s term expired recently and he has
expressed to both the Governor and PAC that he does not want to be reappointed. Coker was a very
vocal and outspoken member of PAC. :

B. Approvals:
1. Pda 500 - Conditional Approval Response

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Loughlin seconded that in accordance with
the provisions of RSA 541-A, the Administrative Procedure Act, the Pease Development Authority
(PDA) Board of Directors hereby approves the text of the Conditional Approval Response and
amending the proposed administrative rules, Pda 500 Moorings and Anchorages, consistent
therewith, as conditionally approved by the Joint Legislative Committee on Administrative Rules
on Octeber 17, 2019;

Further, the PDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Division Director to take any
necessary or recommended action in accordance with RSA 541-A, in furtherance of this matter;
all in accordance with the Memorandum of Geno Marconi, Division Director, dated October 25,
2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

2. Final Proposed Schedule of Fees: Commercial Piers and Associated
Facilities

Director Lamson moved the motion and Director Allard seconded that in accordance with
RSA 12-G:42, X1, the Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors hereby adopts the
Final Proposed Schedule of Pier Use Permit Fees (attached hereto) effective January 1,2020 and
authorizes the Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors to submit the Fee schedule to the
Office of Legislative Services, Administrative Rules for publishing pursuant to RSA 541-A; all in
accordance with the Memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated November 10,
2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
3. Market Street Marine Terminal - BUILD Grant

Director Loughlin moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease
Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors (Board) states that on July 19, 2018, the Pease
Development Authority — Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) applied for a Better
Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development (BUILD) grant through the US-DOT for the
rehabilitation and modification of the Main Wharf at the Market Street Marine Terminal. On
December 6, 2018, the Division received a grant award notice from US-DOT in the amount of
$7,504,854. Since that time, the Division has completed its required NEPA review, obtained
approval from the Capital Budget Overview Committee for the required non-Federal match in

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



12

the amount of $5,003,235 from the Port Expansion Fund, and worked with the US Maritime
Administration (MARAD), as the grant administrator for US-DOT, to finalize a draft grant
agreement in hopes of commencing work in 2020. Therefore, the PDA Board of Directors
hereby authorizes the Executive Director and the Division Director to take all action(s) necessary

or appropriate to:

J Complete the draft grant agreement with MARAD;

. Submit the draft grant agreement to the Office of the Attorney General for review;

J Following sign-off from the Attorney General’s Office, submit the grant agreement
to the Fiscal Committee and the Governor and Executive Council for consideration
and approval;

. Following the foregoing approvals, execute the grant agreement with MARAD and
accept the grant funds; and

. Accept and expend the BUILD grant and the non-Federal match in order to
rehabilitate and modify the Main Wharf at the Market Street Marine Terminal.

All in accordance with the Memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated
November 7, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
XI.  New Business:
XII. Upcoming Meetings:
Board of Directors December 19, 2019 @ TBD
Followed by the annual holiday luncheon.

XIII. Directors’ Comments:

Director Bohenko indicated that he will be away for the December meeting and will be
stepping down as Portsmouth City Manager soon thereafter.. Bohenko thanked the Board and staff for
approximately twenty (20) years for its support and work performed for the Tradeport. Bohenko
further thanked the Tradeport for the approximate $6.6 million dollars that the City receives annually
between the MSA and other revenues; has enjoyed working with the four chairs and four Executive
Directors over his tenure. Bohenko recognized the legal staff and all that they do, has respected
Hinchee’s opinion and has enjoyed working with her. The staff are all very knowledgeable and
committed to PDA. Bohenko indicated prior to his being on the Board there was some confusion on
some things but since he has been on the Board everyone has held an open-mind on all projects that
have been worked on and in the end have done better for the City of Portsmouth and State of New
Hampshire. Bohenko also recognize Marconi for keeping the downtown port active as people like
coming into town and seeing the ships and cranes working.

Lamson indicated that Bohenko came on a year after she did and stated it has been wonderful
and Director Allard will affirm that Bohenko instituted the Finance Committee.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019



Smith thanked Bohenko for his words and service to the Board for the last 20 years. Smith
further stated that having Bohenko on the Board has certainly served both the City and PDA very well
in a very good partnership.

XIV. Adjournment:

Director Levesque moved the motion and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board
meeting. Meeting adjourned at 10:32 a.m.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.

XV.  Press Questions:
There were no questions from the press who attended the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

P> v

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

PABOARD MINUTES\2019\1 1-21-19.docx

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors November 21, 2019






my
m

INTERNATIONAL 55 Internationa F ouih, MH 0380
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <341~
Date: December 10, 2019

Re: Employee Recognition
******************************************************************************

The following employees are to be recognized for their years of service to the Pease
Development Authority:

10 year (clock)

Fran Frank, Maintenance Mgr.

Mike Mates, Staff Engineer

20 year (certificate, name entered on PDA plague and $100 bill)

KC Conley, Equipment Manager

Marie Aleksy

() TAKING YOU THERE

Md o Sl N

WO Y ZO'SCFiJ'JOT‘Q}






P4
-
m

EA

L

o
z

o|-
> m

c<
Mz
7|z
09[>
|~
-=
~m
<Z|w
= |-

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

That accordance with the provisions of Article I, Section 3.9 of the
Pease Development Authority By-Laws, the Pease Development Authority
(‘PDA") Board of Directors, at its October 18, 2018 meeting designated an
Ad-Hoc Advisory Committee to be known as the Residential Housing Study
Committee (“Committee”) to investigate, review and advise the Pease
Development Authority with respect to the feasibility of permitting a
residential use at Pease International Tradeport and to perform such other
functions and duties as may be delegated to it from time to time by
Chairman Smith;

This Committee was established on December 20, 2018 and met
seven times during the 2019 calendar year. During these meetings there
was a bus tour of the PDA facility; discussions on parcels of interest and
with developers at PDA; evaluation of zoning options; considerations of
residential uses as accessory versus permitted: and a detailed review of the
challenges to establishing a residential housing use at Pease:

At its November 21, 2019 meeting the Committee voted to accept
and finalize a report on its work as written and to present the final report
to the PDA Board of Directors at the December 1 9, 2019 meeting; and

The PDA Board of Directors hereby accepts the Residential Housing
Study Committee final report dated December 1 1, 2019, as presented,
and takes the following action:

(O TAKING YOU THERE






1. Authorize the Executive Director to disseminate the report as
he deems most appropriate, including but not limited to
placement on the PDA’s website:

2. Provide copies of the final report to the City of Portsmouth
and Town of Newington for them to dispense as they see fit:
and |

3. Extend the gratitude and appreciation of the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors to all of the Ad Hoc
Committee members who took time out of their schedules to
carefully review and contemplate the feasibility of permitting a
residential housing use at the Pease International Tradeport.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Accept Report of RHC.docx






Pease Development Authority

Residential Housing Study Committee
Final Report

December 11, 2019
. Summary of Committee’s Work

The Residential Housing Study Committee was formed by vote of the Pease Development
Authority on August 18, 2018. Such vote followed the unanimous vote of the Portsmouth City
Council in support of the formation of such a study committee, as housing is an urgent issue
addressed extensively in Portsmouth's current Master Plan.

The Residential Housing Study Committee was charged by such vote with “identification of 3
parcel of property at Pease on which housing is, in the Study Committee’s opinion,
appropriate for rezoning. For purposes of any following phase of investigation, the parcel
identification should list required approvals or modifications or waivers to existing federal,
state or PDA statutes, rules and regulations.” In addition, the Committee was charged with
“[t]he identification of the type of housing recommended for the identified parcel, to include
size, affordability, density, ownership restrictions. In the event the parcel identified is leased to
a third-party PDA tenant, identification of the proposed relationship of the PDA tenant to its
residential subtenants,” and "[t]he identification of environmental concerns to include review
and analysis of future information or studies to assess the requirements of the Federal
Facilities Agreement by and between the Air Force, EPA and NHDES; Deed Restrictions and
Institutional Controls; community concerns with respect to emerging contaminants; concerns
with respect to the current clean up standard and open restoration sites; traffic; noise;
required transportation improvements, etc., and the recommendations for any additional
study.” Originally, the Committee was charged to return with a report partway through its
work, and request a budget for further work. Due to the discovery of certain legal and
regulatory barriers, such report and budget request were not completed.

The first meeting was held January 19, 2019 at which the Committee reviewed its charge,
scope and schedule of work. PDA staff presented a plan showing properties that were not yet
under lease. The Committee chose to limit the scope of its inquiry to the Business &
Commercial Zone of the Tradeport, as shown on the PDA zoning map' (or areas H & | on the

! See Zoning Ordinance, Pease Development Authority, October 18, 2013 {https://peasedev.org/wp-
content/upIoads/2018/12/LandUseControIsDecember2013.pdf), p. 94.



EPA Institutional Controls Map?). Such limitation, by design, excluded any area within the
boundaries of the Town of Newington, and focused the Committee’s work exclusively on land
within the City of Portsmouth. At the February meeting, the Residential Housing Study
Committee hosted guest speakers from the Bureau of Economic Affairs, New Hampshire
Housing Finance Authority, and the Portsmouth Collaborative Chamber of Commerce. These
guests told the Committee that housing was critical to the future of the workforce at Pease.
They also discussed the type of zoning which would be appropriate at the Tradeport if
residential was allowed, which included mixed use zoning and a denser “"downtown” area at
the intersection of Corporate and International Drive.

At the April meeting, the Committee hosted several developers to discuss whether they
would be interested in building at Pease if the legal and regulatory environments allowed it.
There were some concerns expressed, including those about whether retail and other
amenities would be permitted in order to support a residential mixed-use environment on
the Tradeport. Overall, the developers said they would need to conduct a more detailed
feasibility study, but they would be interested in doing so if it were permitted.

At the May meeting, the Committee toured the Tradeport for a view of what the current
layout and properties were that were available and how the setbacks and zoning affected
such properties. The Committee asked questions about the scope of the Committee’s inquiry
and its structure going forward.

At the July meeting, the Committee reviewed a matrix and legal and regulatory challenges
for residential zoning, which shall be further addressed in the next section.

Il. Existing Conditions — Residential Zoning

The United States government's decision to close Pease Air Force Base in 1989 triggered a
lengthy review process involving the Air Force, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the
Environmental Protection Administration, the State of New Hampshire, the City of
Portsmouth (the “City"), the Town of Newington (the "Town" or "Newington") and other
stakeholders. Over the next 16 years, these parties studied (Bechtel Report), reported and
decided (Airport Layout Plan and Record of Decision), and negotiated what should and
would become of the former Base. One of the principal concerns during the first several
years of study, reporting and initial decision-making was to stimulate job creation at the
Tradeport. Lack of housing was not an urgent concern then as it is now, as identified in
numerous local planning documents, including Portsmouth's 2017 Master Plan.

2 see Zone 3, Record of Decision Amendment, December 2003 (https://semspub.epa.gov/work/01/200654.pdf), p.
163.




Ultimately, the United States government transferred the fee simple title of the property to
the PDA via a public benefit transfer. As a result, PDA has an obligation to use the property
exclusively for "airport uses”; that commitment is captured in the three applicable deeds,
transferring the property from the Air Force to PDA. Covenants in the deeds require that the
land at Pease may not be “used, leased, sold, salvaged, or disposed of by [PDA] for [any use]
other than the public airport purposes without written consent of the Administrator of the
FAA." The deeds provide that approval may only be granted if the new use does not
‘materially and adversely affect the development, improvement, operation, or maintenance
of the Airport.” The FAA is responsible for determining which uses fall under this definition of
airport uses. The current layout/plan of use was approved by the FAA in [1990] as supporting
the "airport use” because of its revenue generation. Any change to such plan could be
approved by the FAA if it was determined to support the airport use by the FAA itself. See
Quitclaim Deed from United States Air Force to PDA, dated Nov. 18, 1999 at page 4;
Quitclaim Deed from United States Air Force to PDA, dated Oct. 15, 2003 at page 6;
Quitclaim Deed from United States Air Force to PDA, dated Sept. 13, 2005 at page 6.

In addition, because Pease was transferred via the public benefit transfer, PDA receives
federal funding to support the public airport. As a result, the airport is subject to the
provisions of 49 U.S.C. 47107(a)(10). This statute requires recipients of federal funding like
PDA to take affirmative steps to “restrict the use of land next to or near the airport to uses
that are compatible with normal airport operation.”

Should PDA fail to abide by any of the restriction within the deeds, or any statutory
obligations, the remedy is severe. Within the deeds, the Air Force reserved a right of re-
entry.

The FAA has taken the position that residential housing is always incompatible with the
operation of a public airport. See for example Order 5190.68, the FAA Airport Compliance
Manual, that provides guidance to public airports seeking to comply with FAA regulations.
This order affirms that any housing near an airfield is inconsistent with, and a threat to, the
long-term sustainability of public airports. Noise and night-time operations pose the most
critical inconsistencies with these two uses of land, because these uses of an airport have the
potential to disrupt the right to quiet enjoyment residents may expect in their homes under
certain circumstances.

In addition to the Airport related obstacles and drivers, the deeds conveying the property
identify certain parcels that are subject to institutional controls due to historical environmental
contamination. Portions of the Tradeport are part of active remediation efforts and a
number of parcels have monitoring requirements and/or limits or special requirements



relative to the treatment of groundwater and the movement of soils. Parcels impacted by
institutional controls were not considered for residential purposes by the Committee.

The discovery of per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) contamination in 2014 has
complicated development at the Tradeport. These emerging contaminants have been the
subject of much local public discussion and increased regulation at the State level. As further
investigation and regulation in this area evolves, the extent to which this new environmental
concern impacts, or not, housing options will be better understood.

In addition to the airport related restrictions, any significant change of use of the land at
Pease, would likely require review under the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) to
ensure such a change would not result in a significant impact to the environment. Oversight
by the EPA is triggered by any proposal including residential housing because PDA receives
federal funds to operate a public airport. Relevantly, NEPA review is triggered when the use
of federal land, or the use of land which received federal funding and has federal oversight,
changes. When the Air Force sought to close the Air Force Base and use it for other purposes
in the early 1990s, that action triggered NEPA review, and the Air Force published a Final
Environmental Impact Statement (FEIS) analyzing the impacts the proposed use and
alternative uses would have on the environment. If PDA considers changing the use of the
Tradeport to include some housing, this would also trigger NEPA review. Although NEPA
prescribes varying levels of scrutiny, it is the position of PDA counsel that the change of the
use of land at Pease to include housing would likely require a full Environmental Impact Study
(EIS). The Air Force published the Final Environmental Impact Statement for the Disposal and
Reuse of Pease Air Force Base (FEIS) in 1991. The Air Force produced this document to
comply with NEPA, thereby providing an environmental analysis of the proposed reuses of
the Base. This document considered four alternative uses of Pease, including various housing
options at the base. The report considered, in the alternative, reusing existing housing for the
homeless under the McKinney Act, a medium density housing proposal, five-acre residential
housing, and retaining the existing mobile home park. At the time, the only environmental
hazards the EPA considered as obstacles to housing were lead paint and asbestos within
existing buildings. The EPA concluded these housing proposals would have no significant
impact on the environment. Although the FEIS concluded that residential housing at Pease
would have no srgnificént impact on the environment, any change in the current use of land
would still likely trigger a new EIS. Ultimately, housing was not included in the reuse of Pease
Air Force Base, thus any inclusion of housing at this point would likely be a different use.

The zoning ordinance of the Pease Development Authority does not permit residential
zoning. The zoning map on the last page of the ordinance shows the permitted uses by
zone, and residential is not included. In the ordinance, there are several dimensional
requirements, such as setbacks, minimum lot size, and parking requirements, which restrict



how each parcel can be utilized, and several use restrictions, including limitations on retail
and signage. Such restrictions would require revisiting in order to meaningfully permit
residential zoning.

In short, to change the underlying legal and administrative restrictions affecting residential
zoning, a revisiting of the underlying assumptions and plans would have to be taken along
with special attention to the consequences of the public benefit transfer and the airport-
related restrictions both in the deeds and in FAA federal regulations. Sustained political will
at all levels of government — federal, state, and local - could be used to effect such change.

In light of the legal and administrative challenges to open up the Tradeport to traditional
residential zoning and housing options, an avenue that the Committee explored was an
"accessory use” within the existing PDA zoning structure. See the discussion below in Section
lIl.. Certain businesses might have particular, limited, residential needs that could be
accomplished as part of an accessory use to the permitted commercial or industrial use. By
exploiting the accessory use definition, the FAA objection might be minimized and extended
processes avoided.

. Accessory Uses

Accessory uses of a residential character would possibly be permitted under the existing PDA
zoning ordinance. Specifically, the current PDA zoning ordinance provides the following
definition for Accessory Building or Use, “a building or use which is customarily subordinate
or incidental to the principal use or building on a lot.”  This is a fairly common form of
definition of accessory use.

The Committee explored which accessory uses would be attractive to tenants, and also what
would be permitted. Such accessory uses included long-term corporate housing, dormitories
for students at the GBCC, barracks for members of the Air National Guard, and employee
housing for employees of tenants on the Tradeport. Over the course of several meetings,
members of the committee considered whether dormitory housing to support the needs of
Great Bay Community College might be an appropriate housing component for the
committee to explore and support. A dormitory would arguably be an accessory use to a
college. Great Bay Community College has communicated, however, that it has no interest in
building housing itself at this time.

The committee discussed further whether there were other types of types of housing, such as
for temporary or relocating employees of Tradeport tenants that might generate a need for



some form of accessory residential use. There is currently an extended stay facility at the
Tradeport and that permitted commercial use is likely satisfying some of the existing need.

IV. Conclusions

The Committee concludes that the following options exist with respect to residential use at
the Pease International Tradeport.

A. Residential as a Primary Use

The documents governing the use of land at Pease International Tradeport do not
expressly prohibit residential housing at Pease. Nevertheless, there are still significant
obstacles to developing housing at the Tradeport.

The primary challenge is posed by the public benefit transfer, which put certain
restrictions on use in place to protect the continued viability of the public airport. The FAA is
responsible for determining which uses fall under this definition. The deeds provide that
approval may only be granted if the new use does not "materially and adversely affect the
development, improvement, operation, or maintenance of the Airport.” See Deeds,
referenced above. 49 U.S.C. 47107(a)(10) requires recipients of federal funding like PDA to
take affirmative steps to “restrict the use of land next to or near the airport to uses that are
compatible with normal airport operation

The above restrictions do not, on their face, prohibit housing at Pease. However, the
FAA has taken the position that residential housing is always incompatible with the
operation of a public airport. The FAA has published an extensive order, Order 5190.68,
detailing housing's impact on public airports. Order 5190.68 at 20-10. The conclusions and
the recommendation by the FAA clearly indicate that any request for housing at Pease
International Tradeport would be met with opposition by the FAA.

Upon a change of use of the land at Pease, PDA is obligated under the National
Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) to ensure such a change would not result in a
significant impact to the environment pursuant to Environmental Protection
Administration (EPA) regulations. The environmental factors and considerations at Pease
have changed drastically since 1991, thus the analysis contained in the previously
conducted FEIS is dated and in need of review if any change in use is proposed. This is
typically a fairly lengthy and expensive process.



The zoning ordinance of the Pease Development Authority does not permit
residential zoning. Use and dimensional restrictions contained in the ordinance would
require revisiting in order to meaningfully permit residential development on the Tradeport.

Should residential zoning ever be permitted as a primary use on land within the Town
of Newington, the Municipal Services Agreement would have to be considered. This tri-party
agreement governs the collection and allocation of property taxes in return for services
provided by the City of Portsmouth on behalf of the PDA.

Lastly, there are market concerns which should be considered in considering
residential as a primary use. Several developers visited the Committee with mixed feedback.
Redevelopment of older properties, as opposed to development of vacant properties, was
primarily considered, with Manchester Square and the surrounding area as a potential
"downtown”. Market barriers that were mentioned included a need for larger lots and a
certain minimum density to make the economics of developing housing work, a want for
mixed-use zoning, and a challenge to know which lots would allow for the proper site
development. In addition, feasibility studies would be required to know whether such sites
would be attractive to potential residential tenants. Supporting amenities, such as retail in
mixed-use zoning and improved sidewalks and bike lanes, were also mentioned as a need to
make the Tradeport attractive for residents. However, all such feedback included the caveat
that until there was a regulatory change to allow such development, it would be difficult to
definitively determine residential feasibility, as such questions require investment of time and
resources surrounding a specific project, and none would rule out the possibility that such
development could be attractive.

B. Residential as an Accessory Use

The Committee concluded that as an accessory use, residential zoning faced less restrictions,
but still required revisions to the PDA zoning. PDA zoning is a permissive ordinance so unless
a use s specifically permitted, it is not allowed. The FAA has approved accessory uses, which
means that review by both the EPA pursuant to a NEPA review and review by the DOD (with
FAA as the interpreting agency) can be avoided. Since the FAA has approved such a use,
residential would be permitted if it was currently ‘customary” as an accessory use on the
Tradeport. Such “customary” uses include dormitories as an accessory use to Great Bay
Community College or long-term stay hotels, the latter of which exist today on the Tradeport.
As discussed, the College is not interested in pursuing such a use at this time. Long-term stay
hotels would be permitted to expand, as long as they continued to offer a program that was
‘customary” and used similar pricing programs to those that exist today. The accessory uses
that are permitted raise one additional drafting issue in the zoning ordinance, which is that



such uses must be permitted on contiguous or adjacent lots, as current zoning would not
allow further buildout on occupied lots to accommodate the new use.

New accessory uses would require revisions to the PDA zoning ordinance, as well as NEPA
review and potential DOD review (through FAA interpretation), similar to residential as a
primary use. One new use is unique and an exception to this rule, which is military barracks if
built on federal land. PDA zoning does not apply to federal land, which allows the federal
government to pursue this use if it wishes on land where it has [site control / ownership].



55 International Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves the

attached parking conceptual site plan for Lonza Biologics, Inc. ("Lonza”),

and authorizes the Executive Director to seek reimbursement from Lonza

for the costs to PDA to obtain the required third-party review of

stormwater treatment design; all in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager

- Engineering, dated December 10, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Lonza Parking Concept 12-19.docx

OCOO TAKING YOU THERE

WWw.peasedev.,arg






—

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive, Porismouth, NH D3804
DEVELOPMENT

RUTHORITY MEMORANDUM

-

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director i .
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Managey (, M
Date: December 10, 2019

Subject: Parking at 101 International Drive (Lonza)

For a number of years, Lonza Biologics, Inc. (Lonza) has taken steps to accommodate parking for employees
at 101 International Drive. Through rights of entry, Lonza has utilized existing parking facilities at 14 Aviation
Ave and still utilizes excess parking here at 55 International Drive. Lonza also operates a shuttle to ferry
employees to parking at its various facilities on the Tradeport. Lonza is now seeking approval to construct
additional parking on the lot at 101 International Drive to help alleviate peak day parking needs.

The attached plan shows three areas within its existing 17.1 acre lot where Lonza is proposing to construct a
total of 60 parking spaces. The layout has been designed to meet setback and open space requirements.
Stormwater runoff from the new parking surfaces will be treated by one of two methods: infiltration to
groundwater, or biofiltration before entering the storm drain system. Additionally, the runoff from an area of
existing pavement equal in size to the proposed new parking surface will be diverted to one of these advanced
treatment methods' .

Staff believes that the plans submitted by Lonza meet the requirements for PDA Board conceptual approval
and recommend that such approval be granted. If the Board agrees, Lonza’s site review application will be
forwarded to the City of Portsmouth,

In addition to site review and in the absence of a State Alteration of Terrain permit, Lonza’s stormwater
treatment design will be sent to a third-party reviewer selected by PDA who will determine if the proposed
treatment meets the definition of “Impervious Surface Treatment™ as that term is defined in the PDA/CLF
Settlement Agreement.2 This determination is required in order for PDA, in accordance with the Settlement
Agreement, to track net reduction over time of impervious surfaces at the Tradeport, including impervious
surfaces not subject to Impervious Surface Treatment. In accordance with Part 404.04(b) of PDA’s Site Plan
Regulations, staff recommends that the fee incurred by the PDA for the third-party review be reimbursed by
Lonza,

At next week’s meeting, please ask the Board to approve the attached concept plan and to authorize the
collection of fees from Lonza to reimburse PDA for the costs of third-party review of the stormwater treatment
associated with the proposed concept plan. As to the measures related to documenting the level of stormwater
treatment, please note that we will be following these steps as appropriate for future development proposals.

! The requirement to provide advanced treatment for existing impervious surfaces is being applied when the proposed new impervious
surfaces are used for parking or traffic circulation. Where this requirement is applicable, the area of existing impervious surface subject
to advanced treatment will be at [east equal in size to the area of the proposed new impervious surfaces.

* “Impervious Surface Treatment” means using stormwater Best Management Practices (such as those from the New Hampshire
Stormwater Manual as amended through December 2008) for Impervious Surfaces that reduce runoff volume or provide advanced
stormwater management and pollutant removal through biofiltration (e.g., bioretention, bioswales, tree planters, gravel wetlands) and/or
infiltration/filtration systems (e.g., porous pavements, subsurface infiltration, sand filters, infiltration trenches).

N:AENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\Lonza 101parkingadds.docx

OCOO TAKING YOU THERE

ph: B03-433-5088 fax: 603-427.04313 www.peasadev.erg






LI Savad: 12/4/2019

Ptad OniDet 11, 1019-10:12m By: Wibiansen

Fiehe & Bond: J:WU0700 Lants Bialveics Expunlen was 18741018 martias

SUTE DATA BLOCK
LESSOR:  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
S5 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
PORTSMOUTH NH, 03801
APPLICANT: LONZA BIOLOGICS, INC.
101 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
PORTSMOUTH NH, 03801
LOCATION: 101 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
PORTSMOUTH NH, 03801
MAP 305 LOT 6
ZONING DISTRICY: AIRPORT BUSINESS AND COMMERCIAL 2ONE (aBC)
PROPOSED USES: OFFICE/M; AND

PROPOSED/PROVIDED

17.1ACRES
1030 FEEY
70 FEET 1184 FEET
MINIMUM SIDE YARD 30 FEET 304 FEET (EXISTING)
MINIMUM REAR YARD 50 FEET 50 FEET (EXISTING)
MAXIHUM BUILDING HEIGHT  FAA CATTERIA 86 FEET
MINIMUM OPEN SPACE 25% OF LOT AREA 4.2%

MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENT!
REQUIRED PARKING = 2 SPACES PER 3 EMPLOYEES ON LARGEST SHIFT
PLUS ONE SPACE PER COMPANY OWNED VEHICLE

Eﬂgﬂ- w_l.vi
COMPART WNES VEHACLE » |
[ARMG SPALES BEGRARED = | v (241} § (740) = 405 EvwcES
PANZIE SPACES PROVIGED - S

HANGITAR ACTESSTEE 4FACES IMOVIDED - 11 EracE)

Enyineeny | iunnrmeses! fpecstm

Parking
Expansion

Lonza Biologics

Portsmouth, NH

OVERALL SITE PLAN
AND GENERAL NOTES

>
13
0
I
H
z







m
>
m

z
-
m

(o}

S8 International Drive Postsmouth, MH 03801

ol-
> m
c<
b Ll -]
= L 4

o>
e

=

Tz

—~m

|-

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors hereby

approves the attached conceptual site plan and building renderings for IAPP at
68 New Hampshire Avenue and:

1.

Authorizes the Executive Director with the concurrence of General
Counsel to complete negotiations of an Amendment to Lease with
IAPP on substantially the terms and conditions of the Cinthesys
Lease, and with such modifications as have been set forth in the
attached memorandum:

Authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to
approve execution of a Consent of Lessor to the Assignment and
Assumption of the Lease;

Authorizes and approves such other action(s) and the execution of
such other document(s) as the Executive Director and General
Counsel deem necessary or advisable to facilitate the
implementation of the transaction contemplated in the attached
memorandum; and

Authorizes the Executive Director to seek reimbursement from
IAPP for the cost to PDA to obtain the required third-party review
of stormwater treatment design.

All'in accordance with the memoranda from Lynn Marie Hinchee General
Counsel dated December 3, 2019 and Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager,
Engineering, dated December ] 1, 2019 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\IAPP 12-19.docx

= -

OOOO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peassdev.org






my.

E

55 Infernetional Drive Portsmouin, #H 03801

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: PDA Board of Directors \
From: Lynn Marie Hinche%ounsel
cc: David R. Muilen, Executive Director Wl/\
Date: December 3, 2019
Re: Sale of Premises at 68 New Hampshire Avenue and Assignment and Assumption of Lease
by International Association of Privacy Professionals (IAPP)
History

The subject premises were constructed by TACP Group for use and occupancy by Londavia, Inc,
pursuant to a Lease dated 9/1/98 with a commencement date of 1/1/99 for a term of 30 years, expiring
12/31/29. Three options are available to extend the Lease to 4/30/55.

TACP Group assigned the Lease to Londavia, Inc. by Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated
April 18, 2001. Londavia’s interest was subsequently assumed by AmSafe Bridport Inc.

AmSafe Bridport Inc. assigned the Lease to 68 NH LLC by Assignment and Assumption Agreement
dated December 19, 2013.

68 New NH, LLC assigned the Lease to Old Tex Mex, LLC by Assignment and Assumption Agreement
dated August 21, 2014.

Old Tex Mex, LLC assigned the Lease to Cinthesys Real Estate Management, LLC (Cinthesys) by
Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated May 4, 2015.

Effective November 2019, Cinthesys has entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with IAPP, a
Pease tenant at 75 Rochester Avenue. IAPP is within a 60 day due diligence period and has requested
that in connection with its building purchase and the anticipated Assignment and Assumption Agreement
for the underlying ground lease with PDA, PDA consider a modification of the subject Lease.

IAPP

IAPP serves as a resource for professionals who want to develop and advance their careers by helping
organizations successfully manage data breach risks and protect their data. IAPP’s website states it is
the world’s largest and most comprehensive global information privacy community. Initially, IAPP
occupied only one of the 4 units at 75 Rochester Avenue but it has now grown to occupy the entirety of
the facility consisting of 55,064 square feet and is in need of additional office space and additional

parking.

OO TAKING YOU THERE

N N

iww o peasedev org






What is Requested

68 New Hampshire Avenue was constructed on a 3.5 acre lot located in the Airport Industrial Zone,
which zone is restricted to aviation related uses. On 10/17/2013 the PDA approved re-zoning the
property to Airport Business Commercial Zone and increased the lot size to a conforming 5.02 acres.
Until such time as the premises are altered by Cinthesys, the Lessee is obligated to pay ground rent only
on the initial 3.5 acres.

As further described by Engineering Manager, Maria Stowell, in her Memorandum dated December 11,
2019, IAPP intends to alter the Premises in two phases.

Phase I, expected to commence in 2020, will increase parking at the premises by an estimated 73
additional spots to a total of 114 (the exact number of spaces will be determined by site review) and
construct a sidewalk connecting 68 New Hampshire and 75 Rochester Avenue. IAPP will commence to
pay ground rent on the entirety of the 5.02 acres upon the commencement of Phase I. No additional
lease term will be granted in connection with the construction of additional parking area.

Phase II, a building expansion of up to 15,600 square feet may be constructed within the first 5 years of
the Assignment and Assumption of the Lease by IAPP at which time, and in accordance with the PDA's
long term lease policy, a new Lease will be executed with a reset commencement date and total term of
74 years from the reset date.

In the event Phase Il is not constructed within the first 5 years, the existing term of the Lease will be
extended upon the commencement of Phase |f by 14 years for a total term of 74 years from the initial
1/1/99 commencement date.

Required Action

The Cinthesys Lease requires PDA’s consent to any assignment, provided such consent may not be
withheld unreasonably.

In order to facilitate the sale of the premises and the Assignment and Assumption of the Lease, the
Board will be asked to take the following actions at its meeting on December 19, 2019:

1. Authorize the Executive Director with the concurrence of General Counsel to complete
negotiations of an Amendment to Lease with IAPP on substantially the terms and
conditions of the Cinthesys Lease, and with such modifications as have been set forth in
this Memorandum:

2. Authorize the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to approve execution of a
Consent of Lessor to the Assignment and Assumption of the Lease (Consent);

3. Authorize and approve such other action(s) and the execution of such other document(s)

as the Executive Director and General Counsel deem necessary or advisable to facilitate
the implementation of the transaction contemplated in this Memorandum.

PAAPP\Board Memos\Memo re Sale to IAPP.docx






|

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL S5& intgrnational Drive, &p

D

VELOPMENT

MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director W .
From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager hUGJU/ﬂ_/
Date: December 11,2019

Subject: 68 New Hampshire Avenue Expansion (IAPP)

IAPP, PDA’s tenant at 75 Rochester Avenue, is interested in purchasing the building situated at 68 NH Ave
and assuming the land lease held by the current tenant. To adapt the facility for its use, [APP wishes to expand
the building and parking, and is proposing to do so in two phases. Phase 1 includes: construction of
approximately 77 new parking spaces in the front yard (between the building and Stratham Street) with
associated travel lanes, landscaping, and stormwater treatment for new impervious areas; collection and
advanced treatment of stormwater from an area of existing pavement equal in size to the proposed new
pavement surfaces'; relocation of the Stratham Street driveway; conversion of the existing loading docks to a
building entry and patio area; addition of a dumpster pad; and, construction of a sidewalk connecting 68 New
Hampshire with 75 Rochester. Phase 2 includes: a two-story building addition with a footprint of
approximately 7500 square feet; an approximately 64 space parking lot behind the building with travel lanes,
landscaping, and stormwater treatment; a road connecting the front and rear parking lots; and, collection and
advanced treatment of stormwater from existing impervious areas.

Attached are a conceptual site plan and building renderings submitted by IAPP. The plans, in general, conform
to the open space, wetland buffer and setback requirements of PDA Land Use Controls, Staff recommends
conceptual approval by the Board allowing engineered plans to be developed and forwarded to the City of
Portsmouth for site review.

In addition to site review and in the absence of a State Alteration of Terrain permit, [APP’s stormwater
treatment design will be sent to a third-party reviewer selected by PDA who will determine if the proposed
treatment meets the definition of “Impervious Surface Treatment” as that term is defined in the PDA/CLF
Settlement Agreement®. This determination is required in order for PDA, in accordance with the Settlement
Agreement, to track net reduction over time of impervious surfaces at the Tradeport, including impervious
surfaces not subject to Impervious Surface Treatment. In accordance with Part 404.04(b) of PDA’s Site Plan
Regulations, staff recommends that the fee incurred for the third party review be reimbursed by IAPP.

At next week’s meeting, please ask the Board to approve the attached concept plan and to authorize the
collection of fees from IAPP to reimburse PDA for the costs of third-party review of the stormwater treatment
associated with the proposed concept plan. As to the measures related to documenting the level of stormwater
treatment, please note that we wil| be following these steps, as appropriate, for future development proposals.

! The requirement to provide advanced treatment for existing impervious surfaces is being applied when the proposed impervious
surfaces are used for parking or traffic circulation, Where this requirement is applicable, the area of existing impervious surface subject
to advanced treatment will be at least equal in size to the area of the proposed new impervious surfaces.

? “Impervious Surface Treatment™ means using stormwater Best Management Practices (such as those from the New Hampshire
Stormwater Manual as amended through December 2008) for Impervious Surfaces that reduce runoff volume or provide advanced
Stormwater management and pollutant removal through biofiltration (e.g., bioretention, bioswales, tree planters, gravel wetlands) and/or

infiltration/filtration systems (e.g., porous pavements, subsurface infiltration. sand filters, infiltration trenches)

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\68NHexpansion.docx







WIGATH 1335 ) =20 \\ %.-mu l o =
(v 00 AWINGO4) -y * - A
Z<|—n& k Y FUSHIOY \WINYO. " %.-.0

L) S - el A
LIS I1v0S OHdVHD %
AUVYNIWIIIYA

8cosd
\
AY
3

UL A
HN ‘HLIOONSI¥OT
SONSAY HN 89 g

., 10 LOT
408 SV XViL

NOISNVAX3 ddvi /
T5F0%d \

e %
10850 WN ‘HINONSL¥0d A

AUEOHINY INIMJOTIAIO 35VI4 M
HHRHO -

B08T0 HN ‘HLNOWSL¥OG -
3NNIAY JIHSENYH MaN 174 - \
ddvi

AVM 10 LHOlY
Tt} TRV M 1004 08

L .

e

“SNOISAIY
6102 1t s3amaaan
6102 ‘it ¥3n3030 O3LVAOUNY St IONYEUNLSIA Mok 3UIS 40 35 000'00L NYHL SS31 VLl
5IVa nssi it o -
MTIAAY e ———————— ] b 30vdS oNIOVOD L = S 00000t — 100'0( i
M3IA3Y vad {PT0°L0E) ONIGYOT 133uLS- 140 ANINLLOD
LI ¢ 4 0,
—_— STIVLS ONUSIX3 1y ie 4S 806°%
S3IVAS L9 :ONDINVY 2 ISVH
SIOVAS 0Z1 ONDINYJ | 3ISYHA e~
81 W SIUOIINI Z ¥3d | - 350 331940 -
H2'10°208) oNIMuvd %
TxIY FLIZ  Nadg %52 NIN :39YMIN00 101
Q8L e Veid v AHIEH a8 XV
St oLy ot uvay
ot a1 o4 3018
05 5L 05 QUYL LNOYJ ,
SHOVELIS ONiYd OV Z0°S/3S 0SL'Ble
_——— + K —_
——— e o “or % e = V3YV INISIXI
TR e e ttaiy g sy 61 8z oL QUVA LNOMI e \
—_—— SUVALIS oNGUNg ) VIuY M0,
; [tV Shuss |
TR 529 529 007 ‘IVINOYS 133u1S k
QuI‘oXIuAIMIBUN v 50°5 ¥ 50 v 00 WIS 107 MWININ ALGOHLAY LNINOTAN 35VId \ \
a35040¥d INLSIXZ AMOTIY :
{¥0'v0€) SLNINIMINOIY TYNOISNINIG W] 107 f
S340 SSansna A1'IYOTOL) SISN QILLMYIY h ./7!
(08Y) WidYINNCD SSINSNG 1u0duV (SO'COE) LoiLsi ONINOZ e
e e

®102/8L/01 - JINVNIQHO ONINOZ - vad







design in context |}

McHENRY ARCHITECTURE

g Concept

68 New Hampshire Ave.
Proposed Massin
12/10/2019

3
S







. 610z/0L/ZL =
%8| ixou00 Uy uBisep jdesuon Bujssoyy pasodoiq 3 { ._w_ AHhL &
e y MN_D.._.UM.:_I*UM{ >MZMIU<< .®>< m\__IwO_EUI >>®Z mo o -







6T0Z ‘6T ¥3IgGWIDId
ONILITIW SAHOLDIAUIA 40 AUYOYg

6702 ‘TE€ ¥IFOLD0 DNIANS

( OHmmm HLNOW dNO04 FHL A0
LUO0HIY TVIDNVYNIH 0207 Ad




(B297%]) anT MALO 13
2089 {00%) w17 MOTLVIDT AN (1SNONY-AT00) STUNAID0HEG J40-1ND
e 30m) GNF HVIA 6107 Ad JAISNIHTUIWOD
) u?,ﬂwai C YlAT
182 £ {#s o L
3 £6 {ri) SOND 9340 -A3HIGOR THNLINYL nm._.ﬁ,._
RAYNIWIITNd IONINSNT Hilvay =
FIGL {#72
d31d
WEET 59 BETT sl IR
& ASNHXE T
SO7T BT} 75 0oF (o3 39ve) WIHLO 1Y
e . A NOTLOWOY
[T8 {pb) 871 ¥4 ANY DNLLERIVIA

e . (94 F9vd)
60¢ S 66 94T SADIAYIS TYNCISSHH0H SSOT AYAATIZA 130 ddd AZ 135G
SIS 13N NOLdIWVYH ONY JAH s

(01) LET 7T (o# 30vd) SHLLTILLN

(8 39va) ANLLT LI SINIINAY

55T XEANT 30Tud

mﬁ.NT_ 15 0t a WHINTD
SIWE 27 TG
s (og) 50¢ /0 WO SINNIATY NOISSIONQD @

CIAV T SONNOY HIQAEWNON

(5% OV B 39Vd) e
NI NOILYIWVOSE -5334 4108 »

¥ SI0IAUES ._:

--:J,q.n“ A0 Y

SERRL : Ag 135440 ‘53]
1M EEDQ,,

ANy

Hy A
LNAREAD

(5,000 %)

AIFO

SE g

ThE g
LSO




42 66
il . .
msang WY

LETOT (6]

749 g

SET 07

Qze o

16 (#€1)

967y (1¢)

16001 (@

13ndang AYA
UYIL HYIA

t.,_mzm:v pzu_ ;5;

{5,000 ¢)

ADVMCT 1304
OND _xdi

180

TFT

509°c

1394004
ALYG
DL dvas

ONIANT AOTYId HLNOW ¥NO4 THL WO

FETD

-

<D
X
|

67T

=
™~
—

ZEo's

68'7

£09°c

TOLDY

dI¥a
O A

LAN -MEMLO TV

ASTANVHOUINW
100

ANNIATY

IBSIRMO0

as@ﬁ.i 94 dQ

(LHVHD ZFet 335)
SANNIAIRE 338

7
o1
S4
(0g2)

ADNVIAYA
Laadang

anansa

TIRLSY

LUHOJUIY NIAYHANS
HODIWH NOLdINYH
HOGHYH JAY

¥31d HSIS HLNOWSLE0d

FHTYS =N

Ut

SANNIATY ONLLYHIAO G LYATIOSNOD



i

m

o

(5:2)

<

¢
o]

WIOL

(5,000 $)

_.M :nJ

|.J3 -8

5

35

NON
JdH

|
By

s

oI

0L

0l

gt

Nag
/A

1]
i

~
ed 1

L ANLLOZAXE

SADENOSHY
T NYHIAH

ADOTO

==t

- MEIA

o)

DN IINIDNT

€ DML

ALTEO
T 1H0d

HOdHY
1:0d

&)

I,EJC_\

o

ASUNOD 410D

- DM NLLMIYIA

Nz
/s

T e

898

80T'T

o
=
)]
|

e
i
!
221

ARENY

L

a\

LLNO E HO0A
i-dN=EY QZdﬁ m A.__“ A‘m_m SHANNOSUHEG dd. fﬁg_m @m,.,,,“,_zﬁv,

L0 IOVHD

€29 95% . .
6 a1

IONTUNSNI
b 33 YN
£o1 07z ANZEALL R
L0% SGE HASNT HI W
76T 60T

cTaT
88 86
987 67

BEY'T

LR8N
EARG Y]

HYEA

‘IE mimDE

AN0 HDRYHD

D15 /NOTLYIVA
ANV




7 G Ty YOLYHIAO 'NOILISOd TYNOLLISNYYL SINISIYAIY 1
= = 9 Y104 ANAWJINOI 1SISSV Mo :3LON
= LT Hdd IINNNG NIWQV
7 PG vad NILSOC pove
=S , NIgOU
N3dO gaiiid
SNOILISOd GALTIINTD "TWIOoL 2313 S1SSV
ANVIBININ == NVIDI¥LD3Ta
agaos
e JOHSIg
1SISSV NIWQV MYV
ITIIHOOUVT = HOSIAYZANS
VYNV ONINVITD SaLLTIOV4
IVERREE = GOOMNYIN
443c aNva
UILSYIW HOGUVH
Lo S
NIAZN SINIW3IAVY 93ds SdO
151SSY NOLuON Ty =1  ANIWdINO3 FReET
Nawav ALT¥NDIS LT
s
s108ng YOLVYEIJO D3dS Sd0
Aqnr  ¥IONITIOH = e _ 1N3W4IND2 == uF 1IN Luny
Nva XXO ==={”  HLYOMAQOM 23dS SdO
a08 YNVG HONONOADK =
isisgy  ALEN23s s e ww.__._mzmmn,__wh.
XL
e
NIWQY LERIES HOLVHIHO YO.Lu3do 23dS $do DINVHI3NW
o N AINIWAIND3
NAIHYIHL ANIWdIND3 1 NoLLng & aioNdY  =|
1SISSV van3ug SNITI0D SYNSNVINYL NOGIEHS anva 3
NIWav N yaLsvW 11005 €] 23dS Sd0 i
VAVOVY | yoauvH YOLVHILO SRR DISMOMLIM |
n 4AIHD 1LSISSY LN3IWAIND3 YOLYYIO 23dS SO NV NVWINOS |
(LRI NIWQY SVISYNY dInda LITHYIW = Stiivag iﬁw
LNVLNNO2DV SIOHIIN HSIYM NHOL - Aawao INAVM S T
170¥AVd uzowNyw  LNVAD ATINVISW LT == 'INaov 1SISSY nva w
NVYW3100 mzoﬁ_.s_w._o OINVHOIIW LN3IOY Sdo aval NIWay - 1SISSY T 4
NvSnS ¥ isissy ! INVISISSY | youvuado wotuzdo O3LSN¥L = INIVK3a o e
i yvavz 5 AFTMYOOW | INIWd1ND3 _ dIND3  N3dAOS Hi3g ==} lsissy —
¥TIAL SI¥HD | ===l 337vS0Y yod { Ei
ANVINAODOV { i d_ww.m_wu,m ! NNNQ WVHEIC i NOWVD
YOINIS R 3 i asuod CELN TR T HIW NVAY !
Zaor NOY ] f | Tl IOVNVIH UYIAOYNYI SdO 14W0d i |
t S Iyt INTWdIND3 HIADYNYIW ALT¥ND3S L30d¥Iv VAND 5
Y3dOOD STUHD | YIOVNYW  soquvh 93100 ! JONYNILNIVIN ouagLLod AOYIWOd WNOUIANT e
| viaddod AFINOD DN YNV SIONVYI 5] 3 0Yd vod ?
(1) IONVNI4 SNOLLYH3dO MNINLLVHS I wANvL MIYGNY NVH33HS d ¥3dNS
40 ¥OLd3uIa NOSY¥3IANY LTHM e m: e e e i i = a3¥ve 3SITY WIL 3IsUNOD
LNVLSISSY V3HD NOLTZ
sz o
! : W3LSAS L1 WsI - e ar
] NOS¥ILLYd I3N,0 S
; (N3g0) HOLIIHIG SS3ac INITIVY
i ATRVNYH NOTLVWYGUNT
IALLVHISINIWAY 13SNNOD YIOYNVH
T ALT¥OHLOY 140dUIY sviLiaaas IVY¥IN3D ALNd3a YISYNVW Pl
40 40 ¥oLd3uIa JOSNINNT1E ONINIINIONZ Ao
¥O1d31q SRS ANOHINY TIImoLs
BINNYD INODUYIW oiaza
A1 ON39 -Ii"ﬂ“nﬂﬂ“uﬂﬂﬂnﬂ VIdVH 11028
0103¥1q §
LYOJAIV ANV 12SNNOD
¥0133¥1a . . IVHINID
Alndadg "HOLD3IYIA IATLNOIXI 2 FIHONIH
NVIYE Vg, NNAT

i

N3TINW gIAva

JAYH

NOLLYZINVOUO LNIHAND

ALTHOHLINY INIWHOTIATQ ISYad



0271 £1

058 (gzm

AT A
My
ANEHUND

A1 L%

Lasing AOMNVIHNYA
dvA ﬁ,::u_ *
REE R gt ANERROD

(s,000 ¢)

brd

1IMING
mC.. £y

@
g
P

HOP

N

£8

£f

ERLAN
LAYD AT05

AFTIOWUL 1SW00

ASTANYHIUSW

et o

2109

LIANY TYNUILL

o
—
ot

o)
=
<5

[w)}
1~
¥

Q
8]

LAsang

YL
ANEnn

)

1 dOTH3d HINO
LVHIO HIH

‘!

i
o

I

l

o
i

13nang

B AR

LEVIRAL

7 INYIOY

1O OGNV
G SV TVANLVN

WSS
ALSVM

N
|

LI

T IIN-UIHLO TV

St 5434 MNVYE

mm—m ,_u&\f_




|
i

]
>
o~
™)
L]
a!
Seef
&
B}

(E78)

NOILISOdSIO
L3SSY
= (6%) - (6%) HO NIYD

e

o]
&)
&

IOl UALIO

HLNOWS L0 aNY IRODNE
B L z ; ) 4 ASAUTENT
S z 10 ALD (67) VAN, (o1) (ze)

O0Td -MNvY IENIdX3

0¢ ) ANIAINOHd 01g (T01) €01 z ISIATINT
13sang Iva
ALEsc LD LaBang HOMVINYA
yas RIS ia8ang WY
ASNIAIXNST LSTUSINT IMEHHNG RRAEE R el AL QL IV OL
UYIL MVIA

(s,000 $)

6T0Z "TE€ UIFOLD0
ONIGONI dOTd3d HINOW 3NO4 FHL N0
; ASNIdXT (IWOINT) INILLYVAIAONON Q3 1LVYariosNoes



~
o
i

b

|
=

In

EGT L

606
PBT

(7L
1

S98°L

AERSTHNEENING]

YO

SAVRL NDIFHO

HNIDAFYG
HOSYH

N AUIHST

-NYOT ONTIATOATY

LINIWADYNIA
HOGHYH

SUNNL TVIENDD

SHOUMYE
QZ: U0
A0 NOTSIATY

MOPDS LNYNEL
SANA IYAENED

;x_‘,ﬂzo_,u 1

(5,000%)

LA W

QLD LSTENN
ANOZ JAWAL NDIZY O'u
DNIDATHA BOTIVH
NN 2404 ONIAOTAIY
HOS QILOTLSHY

SLASSY VLIV NT INIWLLS

VI IVLOL

(e1# 39vd) SATITIIGVIT A7 HAHLO
ALTHGVIT 9240 / NOISNZ 13N

SN

00 WL

SHLLOITEYTT A7 -NOTLYOd INFUE0D

ALV 20T ONTATOATY

ANNIAZY AINUYIND
NOLE2ELSNQD -39V AYd SLNNODDY
VAV SINNODDY

FUEANERRIND

340 / NOISNTS
SEOUNQSIY 40
SN0 G3NAA3Q

[ ey F1ASSY TW10L

(Tre-01% 539%d) SSIDONU

0z7e’s NI NOTLDNYLSNOD
INIWAINDD
IFE19 ANY SONIANING ‘G

SADRLISE WIOL

JAN
T SSTIGVATIDIY SINNODOY
645 SINTTVAINDT ANY HSWD

SEHASSY INZYHND WLOL

58¢ 513 HHAHLO
J3N

PRTT ~TEVATIDR SLNNO2OY

652 SINFTVAINDT ONY HSYD

SLASSY LhEEunD




OPT 31

- - @m -

- - 811 -

- - wm -

- - LTH'T (52)

9pT 941 128’z =

- - £L8 (61)

- 11 9e6 (85)

- 701 186 {54

aailiwgns Yad ang ALva ol FUYUS
INMAOWY ADNYIVE HIAIRDIY Y(le

(3,000 $)

P

o

e\
0

7811

jve)
uw

768’1
L6¥'7

6t

£00°T
8z1'1

Hlva ol
CHANH AN

8§

8EL'T
#F9'T
005z
€Le

PLOT
688

UMY
AN

n5T'e =
a5 =
058’1 91-2¢-60
0cs't 8I-10-TT
005¢ =
£6¢ £1-8T-S0
051’1 £T-87-50
G9T'T LT-81-60
I9ar0Hg aLva

Lol BIADMAAY

NOLLYLIIEVHIY ¥31d NIVIN Hdd
D00 ADUVE - INIWIFDVIdTY TYNOLLONNS Hdd
FUVMIH0S ANV ALTYNDIS LHOd 3AvYDdN Hdg

(9r0z-£0 995) NOLIDMILSNOD
FOIVYNIVYA ONY INFWIAAYY INYTIXVL. MYQ

(29 aI) NOISNVdX DNIATING TWNIWYIL WSd
LOFC0Ud AYMIXYL QUYND TWYNQLLYN ¥IY -INSd
(19 JI¥) AANLS DONINNY1d TYNIWYAL WSd

(09 dI¥) NOLLDNYLSNOD
/ TYAOWTY NOLLONYLSIO WSd

(85 dI'v) NOISAA ¥£-9T AYMNMNY WSd

ke

FRVN I5TC0Ed

6L0C "T€ ¥IFOLD0 H0 SY
SFTAVAIIDIY TV LNIWNUIAODUIINT 40 AAYIWIWNS



6LCE 9/07 (€} FR0T

;(‘\l
fan)
Q%
~

¥}

|
F\[
s

ALSAS TOYINOD SS300V HOO0Jd ~WSd

o
G|

[
'

T - AAVND TYNOLLYN UIV -IWSd
9 - (8) a2 ) 12A00™d DNV 404 Avd

™~
D
co
—
t
=i
o
[
<o

(85 dIV¥) NDISIA #€-9T AVMNNY

(o)}
iy
19
[}
e8]
93
[}
'
CO

2601 T0ET (LNVAD-NON) NOTSNVAXE IWNIWYAL

Y HANORHSLHOG

SE-LE-0T HADMYHD
EAS

HyRA
NV IYH LNHIMND AN

SAUOLINANTANE GT-05-94

WYIA AV T

34 v SWVIT TIAC0NE
: BRI

(5,000 $)

SSFUDOUC NI TLOMULISNO

)




1
{

1

i
e
o]
(gt
oo
[\

t

E = 77) 4 - INTHOVIN WYILS SOINHDILAIIM

- - (9) 9 i HILLND HSNYE ANOWYIQ Ing

FONYNIALNIVIK

NOTLYHLSTNIWNGY

e ) (g) ¥ P NIHOLT 3SNOHaND

ASANOD 1109

= e = = E JHOSUTY NIAVHANS
8T-1E-07 ADNVHD ITAUIS SHUNLIONIEXE  6T-0£-90

A HMY3A NI LNV Id HyIA kA AWYN IDIr0ud
IDNVIVE INTHUND L3N O UIJISNYHL ANZUHND IoNYTYY
(5,000 $)
.
{aanNLINGD)

SSTUBOYUd NI MUOM NOI 2 40 AAYIWWNS

-
L



3
3

-

ki

k3

fay

AN

50

=1 MATd NIV

(401 GYHTY OwaHy

MO0 ADHwY -1

AV TYNQILDNNL

31} SROMUVH GRY S100¢ 30




HdG IHL
OL 87% ONV vad JHL 0L d3DYYHD £9% ST INIWAVL T¥ANNY 40 NOLL O0TIv T

SFLON
L L . ALINIGVIY
00T 00T - UDIS GANUDIDY
TLE aTT FUIHSHIWYH
75¢ AT = AMIN 30 J1Y¥IS
: - BT At 00F - 00¥ ALTYNIL 410
MT QTVef (1) WyusoUd
€T 91T FIAVD HLTYEM
FANTLIY 150
H@ - MNON wwuHImn_Ed-;
£LT 78T 16 SAEN IO FIVLS

16 - 707
? s %Gt ©
16 - 1207 ZLON TOMINOD
NOTINTIOY
- 917 0707 MIALYAM
) ~HINCWSLU0d
a1t = 911 O ALID
(1) 3YTHSdWVH HANOWS YO AVIA
MAN 40 J1VIS H40 ALD LASE Rty NI NOLLHOJ
SNNOMY BIME S ANFRND
. : B WD AN
ANTWAYITH L FFITAVT S o

NYIL DNOT O FUMITHIE

(5,000 $)

6T0Z ‘TE YIFOLD0 40 SY
SALLIITEVIT W3 DNOT



(aiey) 5I% 7Ty 1) (T8
006°¢ (1) 00€’T 488 e A : Y
- {6t) 8 (61)
(201 {2v1) {£o7%) {(rig} eea'sn —
BarE T 69 o8 = o
. A . . Toe’se sz2'c01
NOLLOWOHd
9 i 1¢ 69 TNV DINLIBRIVIA ov9'v8  LI0T
SADTIAHIS OIT'9L 8T0T
g 01 4 A IAYNQISSHH40Ud 9¢T'E0T 6T0T
61¢ =1 901 0cT SALTLEN Jiva o1 avaa
SATLVHISINIWGY AT TFFT ave e
%€ < a1t 611 ANV TYHINTS T .
TINYNIZLNIVIA [ a1 l 54 MIAHLO TV
SATLTIIOV: SINNIAIA
58S L8 0zt L0¢ ONY SONTATING 7/ / bT ¢ NOISSIINGD
. STLENTE ONY 17 7 = 5 IOYMOTH g
046 (9¢g) g P67 SIDTAYIS 1 st = e ° ASVMOTH E0
DNINYYd
858 (zom) 86T 96 VO Avd
ILNTY
- £1s ¢ 7z 257 SIS
0887 (Y% §cs 708
13nang IOMVIUYA 13oang ALY
HYIA YA 1Lva ALva SANMIATY
1a90ng DNYIYYA  1990AD TYOSIL INTVEND Q4. UvIA OL 8v3a ANTILYHHEO
AYIA HYIA EINTE EINTe 7
WOSIA ANTWUNS OLuvIA  OLUVIA =
(5,000 $)

u.ﬁ I%QQE&PM_O@
.n.m@ 1m4w.#mm" ia

f

HILNOW ¥NO= 3




0

0cs

w

™~
o

09

5871
135ang

AYIA
TOSsIH

(s.000 ¢)

)

-
o
N

o~

~|

1T

A

AONVINVA
dy3A
LNIYUND

{837)

€47

(g

€1

vl
o~

0c

@l
Lt

J3nang
Jiva
OLUvIA

{061

SLT

a‘\l ;«1
ol N
]
Nt

[ea}

o]

IS
o~

¥

NV
VA OL
REPN

HAOONT

SMTLYHIJO L3
MOLLYEDIUIAN

ASMHAKS
TNV (FWGHNT)
DMNLLTHAIOMON

AHOONT ONTIVHIAC

104 -H3HLO T

NOLLOWOYA
ANV HNLLEDRIVIA

SADIAYIS TYNOISSIOYd
SALLILLN

AALLYISININGY
ANV TYHaINGD

AONVYNILNIVIN ST IOV
ANY SONIATING

SLIJINAE ONY
SADIAYAS TANNOSHHG

SASNHAXS
DNIIYVURLD

SANNIATY

DNELVIRAG

(FEOT) 23770 (G0%)  (G7gT) (£007T)
L10T Ad
(641'2) S58% (00T1) (665'5) (5e2) -600T Ad
€01 08’1 c (e67°'1) (+0) /10T A
70% 48 > (L) (c8) 6T0Z Ad
(1) 5 - e (s1) 020% Ad
WLOL SANE AWADY ANZdXE Wado MO
INWD lg2a WATdYD HSYD 1AM
64 8.9 8.9 8701 0207 Ad
9k $ £15°cT 900°s BLET 610¢ Ad
I0Td UYIA Ava HLINOW 4108
IAY IvIOL OLAUVYIA  INFWYND TaNd 40
ali SNOTIVE
. (@ = {© HIHLO TV
9 11 1z 43 STIVS 1M
TYANTY
171 (D) 9t a4 SITLITOVS
139ang IONVIUYA 13odng WNLOY
AYIA ¥Y3A 31va BTN/ SANMIAAIY
BEASE! INFHHMD 0L ¥vaA QL ¥vIA DNILYHILO
-

LUOJATIY NIAVHIS
6T0Z "T€ UIF0LD0 HDNIANT AOTHId
HINOW dNOd IHL d04 SNOLLYHIIO 40 INIWILYLS



pp

B65L

0sZ

99L&

566'8
139dng

UYIA
YOSTH

(5,000 $)

—t
(o)
w
o~
—
un
o

(g1} agy’s

Zon) 50z £oT
(6) 0¢ ¥
(o1) £ bz
T 91 (T
(+8) SZT T4

THE

[xal]

g

TIONVIHYA  139ANY WALV
HvRA alva ALva

LNERND [S1R0 =P QI ¥dvaA

HLINORW ANO:

ﬂ

CIRIY

SINOQINT
A0 1T

ASMIAE

{3

LSO 421

NV JZC\m UV N

SADTAYAS
TINOTESHAOU

SALLCEEN

IALLTYLSINIWGY
ANY TWHINED

ADNYNILNIYIN
LTIOVH

SEL

MAAN QLA A

avioL

HdQ

4709
NIAYHAMS
NS

1¥0d3avat

T62°C G107 Ad
SSF'E 9107 AJ
TZE'S £70T Ad
66C'S Q107 Ad
092'¢ 6107 Ad

HAM TYLOL

EHERE [Vi49]
491 9
878’8 (ez1)

RZMNEDJ

1350ng
EARJA
OL ¥vdA

TYnioy
4ivd

OLdv3A

UIHLO TV

SEIRNRIOLE
ElOLARNEY]

SINMIAINY
18

SMLIYAR

M)

H

(s.000)




o N . ELTeteIN
555 {877 €8 €88 g DONILVHEAO o
(NOILVIOAYd3a é
ONIaN1DX3)
SISNIIX=
9£8 0z 19 ¥99 16 DNILYYHIO .
SANNIAIY -
16T 1 P L1271 621 ONLLYMILO v
VIoT Wi ATE YH3d0 A5HE 0007¢
aood ASYNOD Odd SISATVNY S6¢
LINMN g8INISNG
i
967 e [iF THET /1
YAHLO aNY /91
ke 9z 431 8e1 ISIANVHDUTW
€061 87 GE0T 9171 €1z
g7 5 A TT SNOSSTT
nZI (2] S T JOLYINWIS Tze
0bE 07 A €61 SAIHSUIGWAIN
, 0b6
STH'T 191 058 1101 S334 1708
SANNIAZY 334
. SANNAATY
167 123 £0T £E7T NOISSIONGD
J6€7C
135a0na IONYTUYA L3nang WY .
ELEN AV 21vQ EITTe SHANAATY 1 - gz
WS4 INTRAIND OL WvIA OL WYL DNTLYUZLO e
WIS
(5,000 $)

i~

HLNOW MNO4 JHL

Y
™
o

+1)

(#)
(11

(6)

3

T

(@i

FONYIMVA
AVIA
LNTHEND

6107 “LE ¥AFOLDO

:

i

)
el
{1
™
o
0

o
—
o

4
#S €
18 601
i CET
8¢ 68¢
0571 T6PT
13nang TWNLOY
ALvd A1va

O1LAv3IA OL uvaA

FNOOMY
DNLLYHIIO L3N

NOILYIDAULIGR
ASNIJdXE

ANy (IINMaDNI)
DNTLNAAAGONON

AMODNT BNLLYUAAO

YIHLO TIY

NOLLOWOYd
ONV ONLLDRIVIA

S3OIAYIS
TYNOISSI-0Ud

SILTILLN

FALLVYLSINIWGY
ANV T7daNZD

FONNILNIYIA
SALLIDYS
QNV SONIQIING

S1I43IN38 ANy
SADIAYIS 1INNOSHA

SASMNIdXT
DMILYHIAO

SANNIAIY
DNILYYELO

T

4SA4NOD

4109
SNIANT AOTNId
404 SNOLLVAIO 40 INTWILYLS




H

1.0

~y
£

55

)

i




€229 XA ZA |4 82 9% TWOINI
ONLLYH3JO
(NOTLYIDZYAFA
ONIANTOXT)
SASNIdXT
1 191 LbT A 891 9€T INILLVAIJO
SANNIATY
= 8¢ 142 01 90¢ 761 ONILYYIJO
- SISATYNY
ﬂ& NINQY DUNYEY 133938 UId HST UOFHYH HOoYYH LIND
; HOSUYH LIV HLNOWSLHOA NOLdIVH EVS SSANTSE
55T rre) 2001 778 WLOL
801 € 08 by WAHIO TV
058 (s¥1) ST 042 SAYS T30
SBTT 66) Tk 7zg
055 (v22)) 8T 91T 00 / FAWHM
S91 (z€) 55 £z SNOLLWYLSISTY
ST L 19 39 ONDRV
3 59¢ () T ST ST34 ONTAOOW
INNAAZY 934
INNIARY
£ T z £ NOISSIONOD
STV.LNTY
61t (@) OvT 8¢ ALTTIOVS
H5ang IONVIIVA 139009 WALV SANNAANY
YVIA UvaA Jiva YA 0L SNILVUIAO
WOSTS INZYAND OL Yvas AYIA
(s,000 $)

HINOW ANOZ FHL A0H SNOLLVHILO 40 ANAWALYLS

)
ape

[¥a1
1
[}

S60°1

S/5T

145ang
uvaA
KANIE]

£t
[
(9g7)

(9z

=
L

(11¢

AONYIRAVA
dv3A
ANTHEND

—

[=3)
3]

P~
“w

9¢

6201

135and
3Lva
OL "viA

887
16T

ity

18

WNLDY
3Lva
OL9vIA

AWOIME AO 13N
NOILYIDINUGAA
ASNIINZ

CNY (3NOONT)
DNTLVHIAQRON

AMODINT DNLLYUIAO

TR - AIHLO TV

NOLLOWO¥d
QNY ONLLINIYIA

SIDIAUES
IVNOISSIONd

SALITILLN

FALLYALSINIWGY
ONY I74INID

FONYNILNIVIN ONY
¥ ANV SONIGTING

SLIAANAE ONY
SHDIAYAS TANNOSUI

SASNFIN
DNILVAIAC

S3ANNIAIY
ONLLYAZIO

e —

(GILOIALSTINN) IUTHSIIWVH MIN 40 ALTMOHLNY 1H0d

6107 "I€ IFCLIO HNIANT AOTHId



& 75 g SO - . . ot e
DL EAO 1AM LAV U0 L3N

2 g bz ze MOTLETI AT - - - -
IA8/NHANA
ANY (FROINT
AC - R _ o S - S n%::wadu&mf. A1
SINODME
noT {£7T) (1) G ¢ £ aw DNTLFIIIO

5T 0T % e 01 {1 < 7
: - - - UIHLO TV - - - . HIHLO TV
NOTLOWOH NOLLOWOYd
- : : - QAN DNILIRYI ; ) . . ANT ONLLE A
SIDIAYIS
; . . - / - . - TYNOTSSIHOU
I - - - SALLTILA - - - . SILLTILLR
3ALLYYLSININGY IATLVULSINIWGY
L4 (™ 1 - ANY TRIINDO £ (1) 1 - ANV TPIINTD
FONYNZLLNTYIA TOINYNALNIVIA
, ) SATLTIOVA SALLITIOVS
07 TET 3 PET - - = = GNY SONIGTING
NG ONY S1143N3G aNY
- : - - ST Vzm TANNOSH - - . - STDIANIS TANNOSYAd
SIENAGNSE

§it T 97 [ 0T z o1 7T

139009 HONVIIVA 13nang YNV 139ang JONVIUYA 300N TUNLDY

UYIA HVIA Alva ALva HVA
L LY INEEN AW B 4Lvd
WOSId ANERIRND OL v QL Hv3A ._M iOGTH F_/_m_mu.w._yj Oﬂlmﬂm A\ 0 mu/mm

(5,000 $)

(AIFLIOTMHLSTA,

LIHOHINY
T @Zwﬁgmﬂ QDHQMQ
SNFWNT LY

oz HINOW dNo0:




5% z g £ ARODNT
"SaNMNA AFWIALSINDTS SAANTOKT () DHILYNAJO 13N
- - - - MOTLYIDH A
ASNIAXI
ARy (JWODNTY
- . . S i¢ i
| (o) 0% 10731 SNILVHIGOMON
v'88 6'¢8 MOLLYZTILIN o1 z G Ve ANOINT DNILYUIJO
THLIAYD o . ~
8z @ 07 g
- = . - = UIHLO TV
1T 6071
= — NOLLOWOd
70T £10°1 - . . . ANY DNV
Vaa (®) 01 8 SIDTAUIS I¥NOISSIION
268 £58 WYL DNOT _
S/1 951 AN ) ) ; ; SALMLN
N IALLYYLSINIWNAY
BRIANVISIAG i g
o 1 - - ANV “IWHINID
T z TONYNILLNIVIN
i 961 SIUTTOV-
SANNA - = - - QNY SONTATING
- - QIALSINDAS S1I43NIE ONY
1+ 96T SANNL IFUINTD - - - - SEOTAUIAS TINNOSYId
SNV TIBYS SASNIIX2
DNTLYHAAO
6102-1£-0T (1) 6T07-0£-90
¥ IONYIVE LY IONYIVE SINNAAIY
‘ @ - ST ST ONMELYUIJI0
NOLLYITIDNGDIY (NN V0T DNIATOATY ONAL NVYOT
ONIAT /
135ang FONYTIVA Laoang LY INIATOAIY
UYIA UYIA ERRCA 3Lvg
YOS NI OL WA OL uv3aA
(5,000 ¢)
.\ \~ (GaNNLLNOD)
el & % L S 20
610Z "TE HIF0LD0 ONIAN3 doryad

HINOW ANOJ FH.L

H04 SNOLIYHIdO 40 INFWILVIS



Lpr'og 600G MOTLISOd L0 V10

AT F240 \ NOISNId

(£98'7) (G4%'%) O3LOTLSTUNN I ISHY w:.m _
- INOZ FAWUL NOIFIOS SMOTALN0 Apaa
= S ONIDATUA WOGHWH I .
- = ANNS NYOT D sl b lagaal SEISSY WAL

SO dIIDTYLSTY

»1E'ES £45'€S SLASSY MYLTdYD NI JSIANT L3N

(b17#-07% S39Ve) mﬁ.x.i\_

Sl BRIy s Flerars M NOLLDMLLSNOD
8807 FEDT 93d0 / NOISNHd ;_wz%zg o
quux:ené STE08 $96'15 G\ SONICTING
A0 SAOTANT, cEryagaq o
A0 SO ! oo ANAC
608°0T H8G70T SALLINIVIT IvIOL . LW SADONYIVE HSYD TWORMOLSTH
z SISV (3
958°L ALTIDVA LIGTO A 3NTT ONIATOATY
._.uz FHL WOMA 000ZF NAmOa MYA OL
69¢ SALLIVEYIT LT H3HIO - -STTEVATIOTY SLNNOIDY S ICOUG QTOT ‘TE ATINC
186°L ALTHAYIT 93d0 / NOISNA 13N JOLLOICOUd .
- S SINITWAINDI GRY HGYD AT SO FLINOW ININ
SHTLUTAYIT LNSRNONON
¥EH T GLEANAY ANV
EGRC SRLL SALLTNITEVIT ANIHYOD 171010 SINTAYLS TINNQSY A _ a1 3 ./Hi_,/‘\._ .7”
NOTLY 7% C,L LS00 A9 Q30300 )
915 915 STLATUAVIT LT -NOLLMOA INTIIND g 51368 LNZUHAD TYLOL NF3g SYH 19D / NOLLYIVIST u:_ﬁi _ :
- - IOV DO DNINTOATD c7y SOV U 700% A4 DuJDQuK_ AT0Z ‘D€ ANNC
L NOISNEd GINHDY
v0T V67 ANNIAZY AINUVINA [E
: STER s : L, a9g 9/6 “TIAYATIOSY SLNNODDY INTWAY ST
»9€ 18t NOLLDMILSNOD -F18VAYd SLNADIDY 3 J ) e mﬁ_
g Thi \ G BIDY 59€'9 SINTWAINDI ONY a3 iu.? ESQS: HOAdNG OL
oo e FIAPAYA SINACODY B NOILYOIIEO TVIDNYNIS GINNTINGD "
FRLLTTIAYTT
MESSNDSTC
6T0E {1) 8107 SALLTFISWL
TE L0 O£ N

(5,000 )

(FHIHS I

A SREN S0 ALTEOMINY £

40 INAWALY!
ml

[



851

6T

510
TELDO

g
frby

{8s6'1)

810C
DE NAC

(5,000 $)

SANNA AILOTVLSTANN ~NOTLISOd LAN SO LINIWIIVLS
AUTHSIWVH MAN H0 A

NOILISOd L8N WI0L

QAALDTELSIANN

INOZ AV, NDIZ0L
ONIDATHQ YOTUVH
QNN NYOT DNIACTATDY
-¥0d GRUDTULSTY

SLASSY WLIdVD NI LSIANI 13N
NOILLISOJ L3N

9340 / NOISNId
SADUNOSHY
40 SMOTINT T

SILLTHAVET TVIOL

SATLINGYIT L7 23HLO
ALTEYTT 9340 / NOISNAd 1IN

SILLITTAVIT LNISUHNONON
SALLTNGYIT INFWNAND TV.LOL
SALLTIEYIT L -NOLLYOd INDAND
ALTTIOVS DO DNIATOATY
ANNIAIY A3INYYINN

NOLLONILSNOD
~A1EYAYd SLNNODDY

ATEYAYd SINNODDY
SALLTITAVIT LNIHUND

SITLTITGVI

TaT T8
GTL 0T L6 0L
A SOF'8
't 6801
z81's 9/8'8
SO0E'T BFHT
£z qs
88 80T
#6171 S8T'1T
SLNE BLOT

18 IO0

421d0 / NOISNAd
FADANOSAN 10
SAOTILND GIERERG

SLASSV TV.LOL

(FT#-0L# S39¥d) S50
NI NOLLDMYLSNOD

ANIAWAINGT
CINY SONIQIING ‘ANYT

ELAZEY IVLTAY D

S.LAssyY
QaLDTHLSHY VL0 L

L3N
~SAMEYALIIDDY SINNODDY

SINTVAINDI ANV HSYD

BLASEY AR LOTUISHH

S.LISSY INIYYND VLOL
S1ASSY YIHLO

L3N
-FIGYAIZOIY SINNODDY

SLNIIYAINDT ANV HSYD
S1ASSY LNIHUND

BLIASEY

o
Mty

Z107 o107
— : ey w..xtr.ls..h.l.,..u.“.».. ...... -
u i
r T .._ _.. b
I il o p
{ 1'%t 1% of oy
= N )
w _.1”‘ b
| 1] $
hay (S
4 |“ !-ll:“*
e,

. 0€ ANNC
LV SHONYIYE HSYD TWDIYOLSTH ¥

ALTIIEYI

NOISNZd AIMADDV OGNV S1DIC0Ud

WIIdYD QISUNGIWITANNA 110ddNS OL
NOLLYDIIE0 WIDNYNIZ G3NNLINOD "

SISATYNY ANV NOISSNSLa

FAOHLNY LH0d



NOTLISOd LIR WAL - 9340 / NOTSNId
- : AAIDTULSTHND - SERIOOSTH 20
ST b ANOZ FAVL NOTRIOA SMOIRINO RIS

- ONIDATYC HOGUYH

- NN NYOT ONIAOTATIY ST

WO4 ATORILSTY -
S SIASSY IVLIdVD NI LSIANT 13N (612-01% S39V4) SSATOU
- : NI NOTLDMILSNGD o
- %zuz&:u e el

- g e - any SONIGTING ‘aNYT o _

SADUNOEH:
} SANOTANT (8

- - SALLINGVIT TWIO0L
= SALINAYT) 17 WIHI0 = .
- ALTNIGYTT 93d0O / NOISNEd 1IN W
CITEVIT LN BNDNOM 7 i
&3 B SELLTTEYIT INSRRIND T8
- . . 08 ANNL
_ SATLTHAVIT LT -NOLLYOA LNTMIND = = 155 NI TV LOL SIMVIVE S TWITHOLSTH
- ALTIDVYL DOT DNIATOAZ -
- - S1I55V YIHLO SLNYNIL LNTHHUND I
- SNNIATY QIR
. O "SUOGNIA TYLINTLOM
- NOLIDNYLSNOD -T1aYAVd SINNODDY - - TIYATZDTY SLNACIDY LOVLLY O) NYId az:m/_w_,mz
=IRE & T Yid¥a AL ,
N FHEVAY SINNCDDY - - SINTAINOT ANY HEYD Quu_ko._u, 00V DNTHOTdXE AINSRIHND

S10Z 5T0% SHTLIIES
TE 130 0E NNE

(s,000 )

ANOZ IaViL

10

—



£68

(£9)

096

f

‘ 9
i)
o

™4
o~

o~
0
(o]

HTOE
12100

i
o

€88

i

el
\

4

|

o
L
o

N

(1) 6108
0L NN

(s,000 $)

MOILISOd L3R 1vior

GHIOTYLSTUNN

INOZ 30Y¥L NOIIHO
ONIDAFYT HOIHYH
ONA NVOT DNIAOTATY
SHOZ Q310153

S1ISSY W.LIdYD NI LSAANT 13N
NMOZLISOA 13N

NOISNId
SANINOSAY
40 SMOTTINT OFdn

SALLTIAVIT TW.LOL

REEI

SALIGYIT LT U3HI0
ALTIEYIT 9340 / NOISNAd 1IN

SALLTTTAVET INTHUNDNOM
SIVIAVIT INTAIND TVLOL
SALLINTAVIT LT -NOLLHOd INTMHND
ALTIIDVH DO ONIATOATY

ANNIATH GINYYINN

NOLIDMIISNOD -318VAYd SINNCDDY
A1AYAY SINNODDY

SHULTIIAVIT LNaRUND

SHLLTIIAVIT

PNIDAIAUG JOFUYH ~NOLLISOd L3N 40 INGWALYILS

GFTE

ogs

€56

@
o]
et

il

6T0T
TE 10

I

o
oY

|

6LE

LR

61O
08 Nt

G3d0 / NOISNId
S30UNOSIY 4O
SMOTLLNG ATN24aa

SLISSY IWLOL

(1#-0I# S3OV) S5INOY
NI NOLLOMYISNGD

ANIAWGINDF
ANV SONIATING 'ONvY

SLASSY TV.LI4VD

S1ASSY GALOTULSTY TWLOL

L3N
“SATEVALRIDZ SLNNODDY

SINFWAINDE ANV HSYD

SLASEY AALOTULSIY

SIISSY INIRIND W.IL0L
5.LASSY MAHIO

13N
HIEYATIOR] SINNODDY

SINFIAINDI ANV HSYD
SLIASSY INTHUND

S1A58Y

08 INNC
LY SAONYIVE HSYD IWOINOLSIH

SNOILLVYIHO LH0d IIDTILSIUNN MO
AONVYNIINIVIN ONY SUIVdIY MO S10360Wd
WLIAYD AISUNGWITUNN 1d0ddNS oL
NOTLYOTEO TWIDNYNIZ GINNILNOD

SISATYNY ANV NOISSNOSIA

JUTHSAWVH MIN J0 ALTHOHLAY 104




c.,..,.nu.ﬂ (M..t..h.»\( Tan v . . )

0T R LA MOLLISOd 13N IWLOL - - NS
BHOUNOETH 40

- - G3UDTELSIUNN SAACTLING GINEIRG

S = INOZ JQVHL NDIZYOL

- - INIDAILT HOTUYH e : :

01g #0721 QONN NYOT DNIAOTIAIY = S
SO AHIDTH LS

FI3SEV WIOL

(F-01% SIDV) GEIADOMd

i - SLISSY IWATAYD NTLSIANT J3N - - NT NOLL T SNOD e

- e MNOISNEd
nmU;DDmm:
A0 SMOTANT Gaeh

!
i3]

‘ GTET TS Yol SHASSY GALOTHLSTY TVLOL
- - AN
T €101 SSHIEVAIZIDDY SINNQDDY
- - SALLITIAVIT LT H3HLO
- = ALTTIGVIT 8340 / NOISNId L3N . : .
) Th1 961 SLNIVAINDI ANY HSYD _ oL ANNC LY
SITLOTTGVIT LMD ADNON SAONYIVE HSYD TWOTHOLSTH
GHRIDTHASM
¥ g SALLTHGYTT ANFWUND 17201

07 NI NYId

SAUTGVIT L7 -NOLLUQd INIHIND
ALTIDVYL 30T DNIATOAT

SLASSY LNFIAIND W LOL

VAL DAL JASTATY ¥ LTNGNS QL
QINOTw 39 TTIM V0d AHL
"NYTd N NYOT ONIATOATY

S13S5Y YIHIO Wy DAL 3HL GIAOUddY
- Y3 AR TATOT HIENI LIS NT
- - ANNTAZY QINYYINN JE
- - NOLIDMYISNGD -T19YAYd SINNODDY - - “FAVALIDAY SINNODDY 8. H0 ONLLWY
GASIASY HLIM i}
t 5 FIAVAYE SINNODIDY - = SLNHTVAINDI CNY HSYD VCd SOUYAY 45 _ 39 ¥IA0L00 NI &
SATLIITAYES INZRNS SLAGEY LNEUN

N¥ NOISSHSTO

6707 STOT CEURI Fzhed) g L0 i
TE 106 neE NNt S Lo 98 MNOE

(s,000 %)

=

e —.H_.l ] Hu\
f.m L 5 IS

BN AR

2
]



mﬁomdﬂmmmzmuﬂ A
ONILITNW S, Y0LIIHIA 40 auvog .

020C ‘1€ 1snonv
ONIAN3 dOTd3d HLNOW ININ
JHL Y04 SNOILDIACOUd MOTd HSYD




14" vl d3a1vNDISAa

0rS'9 414 VLol o'l JONVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
90% 9 MOTd HSVYO 13N

9Z5’'9 Syv's Q3LOTYLSTUNN
LTEVC
6T0Z-0£-90 ETOZ-TE-TT -
1V 3ONVIVE LVIONVIVE  SIONVIVE ANN4 TV.LOL £9 SOELBLIEEL I SO R EAE S £
91T INIWIULLTY 1930 WHIL ONOT
1830 00 seminmn- PRI R p— HSVD QZLITHLSTUNN ~oombee 00v I -INIWITLLIS NOLLYOLLI
oMM M aw wwn w0 bb0'L (£#-5# 539vd 335) INVYD-NON -STUNLIANIAXT TV.LIGYD
$99'8 (# 39¥d 335) LNVYD -STUNLIANIAXT TVLIVD
po sty oos't 0£0'8 S3SNIdX3 ONLLYYIO
Q3LD3CO0UL -
———— ‘ SANN4 4O s3sn
00S8‘C $ 30
1830 ga123roud «Hﬂ
i m (s) 13N -(d0D) 334 3DIAYIS WAIDINAW
_ _ o oa 0ET S3NNIATY 13N ANV YYONVH LIOJUIY NIAVHANS
SIONVIVE 1930 ANV HSYD 0310300¥d 568 SINNIATY NOISSIONOD GNV 334 ISUNOD 4109
" SWVEYLS
INNIATY LHOdIAYEL ONIODNO (€ WO ANY 1S¥ITY0d 200'T ONDIIVA ANV S334 3OVMOT T3N3 ‘SASVIT -LHOdUIV WSd
INTWISHNEWITY ONY FUN LIANTXT TV.LIdYD IHL 90
AQVUMDDY (7 NOISNYAXS TYNIWYIL WSd THL 40 JALSNTONT 005°Z L3N -ONIDNVNIH YNVE TYNYILXI
SQUYMY INVYD J1VLS / TvId3d 40 Ldi3ay (T 3GNTINT
SNOILDI[OYd TN LA QUIVYMOL SILLIATLISNIS LNTWIND 6129 (8# 39v 335) STUYYMY LNVYEO
S INTWIUINDTY TV.LIAYD DNTIMOM YO ANV STUNLIANIAXT 0bL'9 SLNVNIL 1HOd3aVYL
WLIdYD QILYIY LNVID-NON G3103C0%d IONYNI OL SNva
INIAIAOUd IHL HLIAR STLLTIIOVH LIA9eD S,11 3710000 OL SAaNN4 40 SIDUNOS
Q3TN IHL FIVAIDIINY SI0Q VAd IHL IWIL STHL 1y
—_— 8Shv'L JONVIVA ANNd DONINZdO
NOTSSNDSTa (5,000 §)
INNOWV

[4

(s,000 $)

0TO0Z ‘T€ LSNONV OL 6T0T ‘T Y3dWID3a
(SHOGUVH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIG DNIGN1oXd) %SNH>,N—M>O >m<zz:m ;OI—H— —l—m<u

ALTHOHLNY LNIWdOT3AIQ ASVId



H0'T W0t Te 10T  Teo'T v60°T €20'C ¥90'C =15 &5 908% JONVIVE aNNd DNISOTD
(50t'9) (02) (%) (61) (£9) (6£6) 6 (160'1) (159'1) (zv9'2) MOT4 HSVD 1aN
1072 CELC 0062 6v0'% 8687¢ O0vZC 08EC TSV 518972 6v0F
€9 - - €9 - - - - - - ANIWIALLIY LSOd -HN 40 JiViS
911 = = - - - e s 911 - INIWIYLLIY 1830 WYL ONOT
004' = - 05€'T - e = e = 0SE'T 334 IDIAYSS WAIDINAW
(b# 39Vd 335)
99’8 0051 0sv'1 056 S9¢’T 0LT't 01§ 955 6L/ ¥8¢ QILVITY INVYD -1V LIdVD
(£#-5# 539Vd 335)
b0’/ Sz 009 938 849 §5S 549 S60'T 0£0'T 060'T LNVYONON -1V1IdvD
0Eb'8 018 058 008 658 516 STt 008 058 SzeT SISNIIXI ONLLYYILO
SAanNnd 40 3sn
TT9°0¢ S08'C 098¢ 050'% s34 19T 68E7C 09E'T POT'T 00T
005°C (00g) 00S 006 006 00s - - e e L3N -ONIDNYNI TYNYILX3
0€T ST ST ST ST vT v1 b1 bI v1 LJOQNUIV NIAVHANS
LET 0z 0z 0z ST 43 o€ 0g 0¢ 0€ 5334 IOVMOTH WSd
Sbe 0€ 0g S¢ O¥ oF Sb S ok Ob ONDRIVA W04 AVd WSd
(0fd4 0S St St 0§ Sb St 0S Sb Sb (WSd) -L¥Od¥IV HLNOWSL¥Od
S68 S/T ST 01T 00T S8 0L 59 59 0s 3S¥N0D 4109
829 S/€ 0S¢ 0S¢ S/€ 052 0SZ SLE 0S¢ 0S¢ 334 IDIAYIS TYAIDINNW
6129 014’1 068 ST6'T 009 0L 01T 95 i 85¢ (8% 39vd 335) SAUYMV LNVYO
0bL'9 0gs GE6 0gL 0£L S2L St a4 0z 44 SLNVYN3L 1¥0d3avyL
SANN4 40 SIDYNOS
SPP'L 76 CI0T  TE0T  ©60'T €207C 907 SSTE 9087 8tv'Z FONYIVE ANNd ONINIJO
0009 (SaNNH QILOTHLSTINN)
(s¥0g94VvH ANV S140d 40 NOISINIQ FH.L ONIANT1IXd) _‘SOI— u— =m<u m o -—nz m E m-—._< -—-m
£ ALTHOHLNY LNIW4OT13IAIQ ISYId



IVAOUddY QUVO8 ONIONId **
310N

|
|
|
|
|

99’8 00Ss'T 0sv’1 0%

=)}
w
(]
mj
~{
o
N
hi‘
=i
=]
i
[Ty}
0
Ly
@
N
N
q-
e8]
9]

TvioL

|

n
™M
[
'
'
t
3
o
"t
o
(N}
[
[Ta']

(£ ©85) 2DYNIVYA ANV ANVIIXVL

LE0dYUIV NIAVHANS

|

ol
[X3]
B
i
o
n
(o)
Lril
o)

—i

—

|
|
|
|

6cH'8 0091 0T

[e]
!
)|
O
LNy
[¥al
N
[N
N
™~
(@]

(]
Al
Ao

1

1

'

'

1
]
¥
4t

¢

'

.

(59 dIV) LNIFWIIHOV T18VSANGNITY

0Eh'v 050’1 0001 009 G8/ 0¢ 0z GST GGS S¥C NOLLDIMILSNODTY $E-9T AVMNNY
601 = S S = - - 1S 124 123 (85 dIv) NDIS3A +E£-9T AVMNAY
5 , {W9'T$ -79 dI¥) NOLLDMYLSNOD
008°t 002 007 007 007 000’1 007 00T = = ANV NDISIA NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL
, (W0'Z$ -99 dIv) NOLLONYLSNOD
0S6'T 0sZ 0S¢ 0S2 052 052 0S¢ 0S¢ 00T = ANV N9DISAA NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL
LH0dUIV HLNOWS 1L H0d
INFWISYNAWITY LNVED

Iviol 5OV nc NNC

1Y
=2
<
)
o
™
p=d
)|
=
g
<C
=
g
o
<
[x4
g
=
|
i
S
<
3
g
0
[m]

(5,000 $)

(SHOFUVH ANV SL¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ FH.L ONICNTIXT) mmﬂ— :-—lHQ Z mﬁ—xm I—<|_IH&<U
ALTJOHLNY LINIWdOTIASQ 3SYad



IAOUJAY QUVOE ONIGNId s«
:ELON

Sb - - - - - - 0¢ T4 - S3AYYOAN WOOYHLYE
S = - e - e i s = S WY38 ANV LSOd -TINId TANIA
Sz e - = ) SL - S - S ++ YIAMOW HONOY AVMYIVS
ASUNOD 470D
===

Yi44 & 514 58 17 [ gt E 0 E
59 - = 59 = s = s g = +x INIWIOVIdTY UIANIS NIVIW
001 - ST - T4 - L374 = 14 - s+ SINIWIDNYHNI ADOTONHIIL
#+ SNOLLYDINNIWIWODI 131
79 > s |14 ¥4 S 01 = S = / FWYMIHOS / SYILNTId / SYILADWOD
NOILVYISINIWNAY

[i74 e E 14 514 S = ST g -
0§ = = 14 T4 = - - S = #x ONIQTING TYNIWIIL ONIHO0YTY
0z = = . = = = ST S = o+ QYYD LIATHD WIALSAS TN
LHOdYUIV NIAVHAMS

LNIWISINTWITY L
IVIOoL 50V nc Nt AV gdv v g3d NVL 33a
(5,000 $) :(QaNNILNOD)

(SHOFHVH ANV SLY0d JO NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTIXT) mmz : |—IHQ Zm mxm l—<..—|Hm<U
ALTYOHLNY LNIWdOT3IAIAQ ISYId



IVAQUddY QUVO8 DNIANTd xx
‘310N

2 YA 147 009 988 89 €G58 519 S60'T 00T 060°T

01 S > S e - - = 0T e ¢ 3AVEDIN NOTLDINNOD DVa
0T - - - - - - = 0z s s ONLLHOIT @37 TYNIWY3L
*x VUV
¥4 - - - - - - = ST e 39YOOVE -ONIYOOTH TYNIWHIL
(44 e e s 144 e e = = = SN NOLLYLYOdSNYYL ANNOYD
ST e e = = - - - e 74 ONDIIYd 04 AVd
S e = - = - - - = 52 NOIS3Q NOISNVAX3 TYNIWYIL
002’9 00% 0SS 0S¢ 00§ 0S¥ 009 0S0'T 006 000’1 NOISNYdX3 TVNIWY3L
LYOJHIV HINOWSLIOd
. {(@3NNILNOD)
INTWISUNIGWITY INVIDNON

IVIOL 5NV anc NAC AVIA v UV g3d NVE 33a

(s.000 $) :(@INNILNOD)

(SHOFAVH ANV SLIOd 40 NOISINIC FHL DNIANTIXT) mmﬂ— :l—lHszﬂ—xm l—<|—|Hm<U
ALTIOHLNY LNIWdOTIAIQ 3SVId



TVAQYddY Quv08 ONIANId xx
‘310N

r4Z:4) (147 S/ZS 018 ZE9 0SS 019 0ITT 00T 060°T IVLOL,
L
ﬂ = = = = = = = Wﬂm.. m'Na
S¢ s = = S¢ LNIWLINDI NO aav ¥Oo.LOvHL
Sk - - = S S Sy *x INFWIDVIdIY 13374 J1DIHIA
FONVNILNIVIW
743 54 =74 GC ¢ 574 (113 0T [i}3 1}
STt [ ST ST ST ST 0T 0T 07 01T INIWLYIYL YILVMWIOLS
09 071 0T o) 0¢ 0T S S = sk ONIYOLINOW DIddvyL
LAO0d3Iavdl
ANIWISHNDINITI
LNYVUYSNON
Jviol 5nv anc NNE AVIA dav IV g33 NvL 33a
(@anNIINOD)
(5,000 $)

(SHOFHVH ANV SL0d 40 NOISINIA FHL ONIANTIX3) mmﬂ— :-—.HQ z mmxm l—<..—|Hm<U
ALTHOHLNY INIWJOTIAIQ ISVYId



6129 0Tl T 068 SC6'T 009 [iY4 01C'T oG - 8S¢C Tvi0L
Y44 §ee = S S = S = S (£-545) IOYNIVYA ANY LNIWIAV] AVMIXVL
LUO4HUIV NIAVHANS
9T - - - - - - - 9p1 1D3C0Ud AVYMIXVL Q¥VND TYNOLLYN ¥IV
(59 d1v)
SZ1 5 o SeT - - - = = AINIWITYOV TI8YSYNEWITY FE-9T AVMNNY
060°c 0251 = S8/ = e S8/ e - = NOLLNYLSNODTY +£-9T AYMNNY
(8S dIv)
BEC - - - = 0L = ag = 1T NOISIA FE-9T AVMNNY

(W0'z$ -99 div)
, , NOLLDNYLSNOD
0¢s’T 067 061 obT'T = - - - - = ANV NDIS3A NOISNVAXI TYNIWYAL

(W9'T$ -79 dIv)

, ) NOLLONYLSNOD
SLET - Siv Siy - SCr - - - ANV NOIS3A NOISNYAX3 TYNIWNY3L

1H04HIV HLNOWSLHOd

(5,000 $)

(SYOFUVH ANV SLYOd SO NOISIAIQ FHL DNIANTIXT) mﬁ—ﬂ—<;< -—-Zé w .._lﬂ— Hmumm
. ALTIOHLNY LNIIWdOT3IAIQ ISVYId



BIOT weipue

= = e -+ 050
%T0'
e Tl - - 08T JIINVIVNO ALYLS
= : JHL A¥¥YD LON S30d
C %EP'D 007 ¥3AHLO
rme s s s emoniae e e L g i 5 eame ok A b atrmin rmt 2 ottt e omN EDZHZHZ OZ zgoog<ﬂ—a
%ETL'S ——- z 40 3ZIS WNWINIW
P . OOM ﬂ
S.LNIOd SISvg
i — - - e Qe 0SZ + (J1SSV1D)
’ 1H4 HLNOW 3INO 31VvY LSTHILINI
@ dN-MAUVIN + 3LVH ISTUIINT (OISSV1D) 91Hd HINOW 3INO SHL ONIGNT UL
'SQ3IaN
TVLIdYD ONDIROM
ANV SINIWIAOYdIWI
IVLIdYD NN OL Isodund
0S'v 0S'v IOVYIAY
d31HoIAM

—_ _ ze0T-1€-T1 3LVa WyalL

oTT oTT ¢

HLNOWSLHOd
. Te- IGVIIVAY
0S't 020Z-1£-10 91T 911 40 ALD @ 000°ST ATLNIHUMD INNOWY
(00T} dNve
J19YIIVA qeoz-1g-2t - - AINIAIAOYd IHL ALTIIOVA
% 3LV IIva 6T0C-0£-90 610Z-0E-TT 000'sT 103U 40 INNOWY
% dLvu el ver SISKTYNV 1a3d
ISSUIAINI  ALTHNIVIN v v DNIANVLSLNO
FONVIVE IONVIVE NNVE (00Ty) L1030
INIQINOYUd FHL 40 ¥ILLIT ONIATOATY
(5,000 $)

SISATVNY 1930 S NIANVYISINO ANV SILLITIDVA 11A3¥D
ALTYOHLNY INIWdO1IAIA 3SVId



6.5 e 2 ] IONVIVd ANNd ONISOTD
b ST INOZ 3aV¥.L NOIZUOS
961 551 aNN4 NVOT ONIATOATY vLe G2l SR e S
6L€ 881 ONI9AIYA YOLUVH 0gs'c
SSANND @3.L0IY1isTY 8¢ LINSWIHLLIY 1SOd -HN 40 31V1S
(s 8bT SANN4 A3LVONISIA o€ ¥IHLO ANV STUNLIANIAXT TYLIdVD
$00°T 880°T SANNS GILOTHLISIYNN 299 LNIWIWNOOUd 13N
6T70Z-0£-90 6T0C-0E-TT Sob SASNIAXT ONLLYYILO
LV 3ONVIve 1v IDNVIVE SIDNVIVE ANN4 TVLOL
S6€°T S1143IN38 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSYHId
ony ane MNL PA-2¢} ay U 834 WY 234
. . pag sannd 40 sasn
% l.u«.j o ,/ Tl B e e g e 005 o
»18 $ HSYD ™ St . ) g gvec
A3LIHLSIUND T e : wrt Z
00T T4 5334 ONINUVd
008’1 59¢ $33d ONIYOOW
SADNVIVE HSVD AILOTYLSTUNN QILDIC0Ud 905 SNOISSIINOD ANV STVINIY ALITIOVA
ALTIEVI] WY3L HNOT "GINIWYILIA 38 OL 13A SYH “(NISYE
ONINYNL YIATY YNOVLVISId) Y-NI-52 8H HLIM A31YIDOSS 055 SOVUVH / SNOLLVLSIO3Y
314 1STHITINT ANV AOTId NOLLYZILYOWY NVO1 267 00 SIS 1and
‘JWILYIAO JTAOTdIWT SAaNN4 40 S3IDUNOS
40 LNIWNIVLNOD QINNLLNOD (b ANV NOLLJWNSNOD N o8
oS K SEon (£ ol
: 1 9034¥a 40 350 aNY STy
L1SYOIHO4 IUNLIANIAX3 T LIdYD 40 ADVHNIDY (1 IANTONI S AL R =S )
SNOLLD3COYd FUNLNA QUYMOL SITLIATLISNIS LNIHAMD -
INNOWY (5,000 §)

NOISSNDSId

(s,000 $)

0C0T 'T€ LSNOHNV OL 6TOC ‘T ¥3gw3dada
(SanN- GILI14153y DNIANTIXI) M3 IAYT >0 >N_<_>_ —)—DW >>O.._u_ _n_m<U
SHOGUVH ANV SLd0d 40 NOISIAIQ

ot



vi8 Y18 £68 008 0e0'T EITT 8401 09¢'T 966 <66 FONVYIVE ANMd DNISOTD
4

744 (62) £6 (0£2) (£8) ¢ (z81) $9Z (96) MO HSVD L3N
0CSC 65¢C PEC 76€ 0%z 4 Z5E Tee TZC TsE
8¢ - - 8¢ - - - - - - INIWIHILIY 1SOd -HN 40 JLV1IS
o¢ 01 - - 01 - - 0T - - YIHLO ANV S3¥NLIANIIXT WLIdYD
o€ 01 - - - o1 - - 01 s SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHOYd
00t 01 0T ST 0t 01 01 ST 0T 01 SILLTTIOVS ANV SONIQIING
€21 b1 1 €1 BT €T BT bT i €1 IALLYYLSININGY ANV WHINIO
ZsT ST ST ST ST o1 81 0z 0z 8T S3LLMILA
z99 08 08 9 9/ o/ 0L L9 49 0L INIWTIND0 13N
S6£°'T 0zt STT Ske STT 01T St¢ S0T 001 674 S1TJ43IN38 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId
SANN4 40 3sn
] ¢4 08T yidS 9T /5T 07 ST S6v [ Y44 5S¢
0SS - 0ST - - szt - 0ST - T4 JOVIYYHM / SNOLLYHLSIDFY
TA s S 52 0T o1 - - - i 5334 ONINYYd
S9¢ - - - - - S 0z 00T - $334 ONIIOOW
00z 8 S8 08 08 08 S¢ 0L 0z L SIS 1and
90s 09 LS LS A S8 SS SS SS SS SNOISSIONOD ANV STVINIY ALTIIDVS
SANM4 40 SIDUNOS
880°T €68 008 050T EITT BZ0T O9ZT 966 66 880'T JONVIVE GNNJ DNINIJO
IVIOL 5av anc NNC AViA ddv v 934 NVT J3d
000 9) (SaNNF GILOTHLISIYNN)

MOTd HSVD 40 LNIWILVYIS
3 SHOFUVH ANV SLi0d 40 NOISIAIQ



|
|
|
|
l

=\
<))
i
=]
L]
o]
N|
=i
N
|
[=]
gl
<
=
-}
™
L]
Q|
2]
2]
[=}
g
N
Q)
&

ADNVIVE ANNd ONISOTO

1T ¥4 T (92) 6 €1 T (82) T 6T MO1Td HSVD 13N

vTT z z s F : 4 T T :

00T S e 0S - e = 0S - = (D082) -¥3HLO TV
- - - - - - - - - - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIHOU
- - - - - - - - - - SILLILLA

[~}
o~
'

1
o
t
t
o~
‘

1

JALLVYLSINIWAY ANV TYY3INIO

=]
(;
(Nl
'
o
'
o
t

SILLITIDVY ANV SONIQIING

- - - - - - S1I43NIg ANV S3DIAYIS TINNOSHAd
SANN4d 40 3Sn

|
o
=i
o)
~
o
N
A
i

<l
-

™
N
o
o

= S - - DONIONNS INVID
o€ € 3 1% 3 € 3 v £ 14 S334 IDYMOTHS 13Nd
0€ 0T - - 0t - - 0t - - SNOILLYYLSIDIY
S9 ot - 0z - 01 - 01 - ST ., 5334 39vVSN ¥aId
SaNN4 40 SIDUNOS

3
=i
3
M~
=i
3
™N
™|
3
[/
(g
3
i
Lo
3
™
3
o~
3
=]
o~
3
o~
3
o))
-

JONVIVA ANNd DNINIdO-

|
|
|
l

VLol onv

-
=
(!
P
2
L
>~
<
=
3
o.
=
x4
b
b
4
£
[t
g
<
=
4
|
[l

(5000 $) (Ssannd @ILOI¥MLSTY)
GNNZ OSNIDAIUA HOMAVH ~-MOTE HSYD 40 INJWILVYILS

et SHOGUVH ANV SLHO0d 40 NOISIAIA



|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

8T¢ 8TC¢ VvI¢ 8ic voe T6T 6Z1 9T 6ZT 80T IDNVIVE ANNd DNISOTD
£9 bT (+1) Q! €1 4 41 (z1) 1T €1 MO HSVD LIN
9z T 14 T 4 v [ 8¢ v 4
- - - - - - - - - - ¥IHLO TIV
0¢ z [4 z 4 4 € € z z S30IAYIS TYNOISSIHOUd
= = S = = - - - - - S3rnNILnN
9 - 4 - - 4 - - 4 - JALLVYLSINIWGY ANV VYIN3D
- - - - - - - - - ) SILLITIDV4 ANV SONIATING
- - - - - - - = - > SLI43IN3IF ANV STDIAYIS TINNOSHId
0s s ST - ) = > Y4 i - Q3LVAIDLLNY SNYO1 M3N
SANNd 40 Asn
6ET ST ST ST ST 91 ST 9T ST ST
S T - 1 - T . T - T JONVIVE ANNS -JWODNT LSFHILNI
Lz € € € 3 £ £ £ € £ SNYOT-3WODNI LSI¥ILNI
£0T 4! 14! 4! 45 4! 4 43 4 1 SINJWAVATE NVOT
SANN4 40 SADUNOS
SST ¥IZ 8IZ %0Z 16T 6T 29T 6T 89T G&T JONVIVE ANNd DNINIJO
TVIOL 5nv nt NAC AV qdv VI a3d NVT J3a
(50009 (Sann4 aiLory1s3y)

€T

QNN4 NYOT SNIATOAIY -MO14 HSYD 40 INJIWILVIS
SYOGUVH ANV SLi0d 40 NOISIAIA



Tt T €T TT TT €T £ T 54 ST IDNVIVE ANNS ONISOTD

) () 14 = (@) = - (@) - = MOTd HSYD 13N

L]l
ol
'
o
[

i
oI
1
I

- - - - - - JIHLO0 1V

- - - - - - S3DIAYES TYNOISSIZ0Ud
- - - - - SALIN

9 < - - 4 - - 4 - - JALLVYLSININGY ANV TVHINIO
- - SIALLIIOVL ANV SONIQTING
SJI4INIG ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSHId

SANN4 40 3sn

¥T

4 = Z = E - - & & =
- - S - - - ¥IHLO TW
4 S 4 - STYANTY ALITIDVS
Sannd 40 s3IdUNO0S
€T €T T TT 5 T €T 5T ST ST JONVYIVE dNNd DNINIJO
TVi0oL 5nv i NAC AVIA Hdv avii q3d NVL RE
(5000 8 (SANN- AT1D2141S7¥)

ANN4 INOZ 3aViL NDIFYO4 -MOTd HSYD 40 LNIWILVYLS
SHOGUVH ONV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIC



E

>
m

INTERNATIONAL 58 In
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director %
RE: Revolving Loan Fund

Date: December 4, 2019

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of Revolving
Loan Fund Documents”, the Pease Development Authority entered into the following Loan Agreements
during the months of August through November 2019:

1. Borrower Gerald Worcester
Amount of Loan $97,500.00
Interest Rate 4.00%
Closing Date October 24, 2019
Maturity Date October 24, 2026
Purpose Purchase of a vessel together with all

gear, equipment, licenses, permits and accessories.

Uiy TAKING YOU THERE






my.

o

v |~
o
4

=M
<Z|x
- |-

November 18, 2019

Mr. James Jalbert

Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines
185 Grafton Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Re:  Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area
100 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Mr. Jalbert:

This letter will authorize C & J Trailways (“C & J”) to use and to enter upon and utilize a
3.78 +/- acre parking area situated at 100 New Hampshire Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire
as shown on the attached Exhibit A (the “Premises”) for the period commencing February 22, 2020
through midnight May 3, 2020 for the purposes of parking C & J customer vehicles on a valet
basis only. The privileges granted under this Right of Entry will expire at midnight on May 3,
2020, unless terminated earlier or extended by mutual agreement of the Parties.

This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

1. C & I’s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the
entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the Premises and/or the exercise
of any of the authorities granted herein. C & J expressly waives all claims against the Pease
Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring
as a consequence of C & J’s and its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or
the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. C & J
further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the Pease Development Authority, its
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney’s fees arising out of or related to C & J’s, and
its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or any activities conducted or
undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization.

2. C & J understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at
will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or

")) TAKING YOU THERE

wiww peassdey oo

55 International Drive Portsmoulh, NH 03801



Mr. James Jalbert

Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines
November 18, 2019

Page 2

termination.  The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance
and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities.

3. C & J, and/or any agent of C & J, providing to the Pease Development Authority
satisfactory evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Four
Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) per occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an
additional insured; automobile liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00) and evidence of workers compensation coverage to statutory limits.

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision
that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of C & J which would otherwise resuit
in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of
the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) provide that the insurer shall
have no right of subrogation against Pease Development Authority; and (iii) a provision that any
liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing with
respect to any insurance carried by PDA. It is the intent of C & J that such policies will not be
cancelled. Should a policy cancellation occur, PDA will be advised in accordance with policy
provisions.

4. C & J’s agreement that all vehicles parked at the Premises will be driven to and
from the Premises by a valet service provided by C & J at its sole expense and that its patrons will
not be allowed to self-park vehicles on the Premises. C & J’s further agreement to take such
steps as may be required to ensure that velicles are not left on the Premises in excess of the
term limits of this Right of Entry and to assume full responsibility for the removal of vehicle(s)
left on the Premises.

5. C & J agrees the vehicles may be parked in the area depicted in Exhibit A. PDA
has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Premises used for vehicle
parking as a priority for Pease operations.

6. C & J shall provide snow removal and salting, as necessary, for the Premises during
the periods of use provided for under the terms of this Right of Entry.

7. C & J shall coordinate the initial snow removal with the Pease Maintenance
Department. All snow removal, sanding, and salting of the Premises shall be at C & J’s own cost
and expense.

8. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of C & I’s
patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at its
invitation.



Mr. James Jalbert

Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines
November 18,2019

Page 3

9. C & J’s agreement that C & J’s maintenance and management of the Premises shall
be done at C & J’s own costs and expense.

10.  C & J’s agreement to restore the Premises to the same or better conditions existing
prior to the commencement of this Right of Entry.

2. C & J’s agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the
Premises.

13, C & J’s agreement to pay a fee of $179.97 per day for the period of use under this
Right of Entry and pro-rated for partial periods. Provided C & J utilizes the Premises for the entire
duration of the Right of Entry through May 3, 2020, it is expected that the total amount to be paid
for the use of the property will be $ 12,957.84 (72 days at $179.97 per day).

14 Municipal Services Fee. To the extent applicable, in addition to the Fee required to
be paid under the terms of this ROE, C & J shall also pay to PDA, as additional rent, a municipal
services fee in accordance with the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City of
Portsmouth, the Town of Newington and the PDA effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire,
police and roadway services provided by or on behalf of PDA at the Airport and will be subject to
increases each year only to the extent the cost of providing such services increases. The municipal
services fee shall be paid quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion provided for the
payment of the ROE Fee. To the extent the ROE Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and
provided such municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, police and roadway
services, C & J may offset against any fee paid to PDA the portion of such municipal taxes as are
attributable to fire, police and roadway services, and PDA shall have no further obligation to
provide such services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against the ROE Premises, or
on C & J for all three of fire, police and roadway services and PDA either has no obligation to
provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal services fee required to
be paid under this ROE shall terminate.

In the event the ROE Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport
District, C & J shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance
with the provisions of RSA 12-G:14, 11 (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by a
municipality of property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District.



Mr. James Jalbert

Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines
November 18,2019

Page 4

Please indicate by your signature below C & J’s consent to the terms and conditions of this Right
of Entry and return the same to me for countersignature.

Very truly yours,

avid R. Mullg
Executive Director

Agreed and accepted this [ ] day of T\R)VWMK/ , 2019

Jal&ﬁ.e&si@-@:ﬂm & J Bus Lines

By: O/ML-O LE.S ke

It’s Duly Authorized

PAC&NROEParking Lot ROE 100 NH 11-18-19.docx



EXHIBIT “A”

PREMISES

100 NEW HAMPSHIRE AVE SITE PLAN DESIGNED 3Y: MRM DATE: 1U15HS  SCALE: 12830

[?

P“'r‘ ~ FPEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERHATIONSL DRIVE, POSTSMOUTH, NH 0360

mrr Y E v







1.
I

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 International Drive Portsmoulh, NH 03807

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

November 18, 2019

William R. Bartlett, President

2-Way Communications Service, Inc.
23 River Road

Newington, NH 03801

Re:  Right of Entry — 19 Durham Street
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Mr. Bartlett,

This letter will authorize the 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. (*“2-Way”) and/or its
agents and contractors to enter upon the premises located at 19 Durham Street and as shown in the
attached Exhibit A (the “Premises”), for a period of thirty (30) days commencing December 1,
2019 through December 31, 2019, for inspection purposes to determine if the Premises is suitable
for 2-Way’s intended use. Such inspection may include a review of environmental matters,
including adequacy of utility services, general site conditions, and any other non-destructive
inspection or evaluation of the Premises you deem necessary. This Right of Entry will expire at
the close of business on December 31, 2019, unless otherwise extended by written agreement of
2-Way and Pease Development Authority. This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

1. 2-Way providing Pease Development Authority, upon completion of its inspection,
with a copy of any report, letter or summary with respect to conditions found at the Premises;

2. 2-Way’s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the
entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any
of the authorities granted herein. 2-Way expressly waives all claims against the Pease
Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring
as a consequence of 2-Way’s use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance
of responsibilities under this authorization. 2-Way further agrees to indemnify, save, hold
harmless, and defend the Pease Development Authority, its officers, board members, agents and
employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgements, costs
and attorney’s fees arising out of 2-Way’s use of the Premises or any activities conducted or
undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization.

)i TAKING YOU THERE

www oeasedev org



Page 2
November 18,2019
RE:  Right of Entry — 19 Durham Street
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

3. 2-Way and/or any agent or contractor of 2-Way providing to the Pease
Development Authority satisfactory evidence of commercial general liability insurance to a limit
of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence, naming the Pease
Development Authority as additional insured; automobile liability insurance in the amount of One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00); and evidence of workers compensation coverage to statutory
limits,

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision
that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of 2-Way which would otherwise result
in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of
the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) an agreement by the insurer
that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by
registered mail to Pease Development Authority; (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right
of subrogation against Pease Development Authority; and (iv) a provision that any liability
insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to
any insurance carried by PDA.

4, 2-Way’s agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the
Premises. 2-Way acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no legal
rights or interests shall arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a Lease Agreement
is executed by the parties.

Please indicate by your signature below of 2-Way’s consent and return the same to me with
evidence of insurance as required.

Very truly yours,

4
o i\

Executive Director

DRM/raa
Th
Agreed and accepted this [57_ day of f\/p vember , 2019

2-Way Communications Service, Inc.

By: JJJ/]/Z» V( CS{W‘E‘\
Print Name: Wi !{{an f°. Bartle +
Its Duly Authorized: ot~

PAROE2-Way Communications Service, Inc - 19 Durham Street (through 12-31-19).docx



Page 3

Right of Entry — 19 Durham Street

November 18, 2019

RE

Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

EXHIBIT “A”

SCALE: 172306

18919

Ma DATE: 15

DESIGNED 3Y:

ight of Entry

19 Durham St R

TEMCUTH, NH 92361

UE. PQR

RHATIOMAL DRI

S5 INTE.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

1o sinnt ttem g v

8







PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 Inisrnational Drive Partsmouth, NH 03801

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an Extension of the Right-
of-Entry with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation for the
Portsmouth Transportation Center and associated parking facility located
at Pease International Tradeport for a period of one (1) year: all in
accordance with the draft Extension of Right of Entry attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\NH DOT Park and Ride 12-19.docx

() TAKING YOU THERE

LN
R NV AN






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 international Drive Portsmouth, NH 093807

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

December 2, 2019

Victoria Sheehan, Commissioner

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
PO Box 483

Concord, NH 03302-0483

Re:  Extension of Right of Entry - Park and Ride Facility
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Dear Commissioner Sheehan:

This letter will serve to extend the Right of Entry dated September 3, 1998 granted to New
Hampshire Department of Transportation (“NHDOT”) and/or its agents to enter upon the premises defined
as Exhibit A of the Right of Entry dated September 3, 1998 and Exhibit A-1 of the Extension of Right of
Entry dated October 4, 1999, and as subsequently expanded on May 16, 2014 (the “Premises™) for the
purpose of operating the Portsmouth Transportation Center and the associated parking facility. In
contemplation of the transfer of the Premises to the NHDOT, the Right of Entry is hereby extended from
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 and will expire at midnight on December 31, 2020, unless
otherwise extended by agreement of NHDOT and Pease Development Authority.

All other terms and conditions of the Right of Entry dated September 3, 1998, as amended, shall
remain in full force and effect. Please indicate by your signature below NHDOT’s consent and return the
same {0 me.

Sincerely,
David R. Mullen

Executive Director

Agreed and accepted this _ day of , 2019

NH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By:
Print Name:
[ts Duly authorized:

cc: Anthony [. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel
PANHDOT\ROEANHDOT 12-19-19.docx

0 ( TAKING YOU THERE






MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to a one year extension of the Right-of-
Entry with the Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc. for the purposes of operating a
flight simulator retroactively effective from October 1, 2019 through
September 30, 2020; all in accordance with and the memorandum of Paul
E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport Director, dated December 12,
2019, all attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Skyhaven Flying 12-19.docx

U TAKING YOU THERE






FEM

PEASE

- =

AIRPORT 35 Adriine Ave | Forisy

MANAGEMENT

Memorandum

To:  David R. Mullen, Executive Director W2t

From: Paul E. Brean, Airport Director /@Jb

Date: 12/12/2019

Subj: Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc. Flight Simulator “Right of Entry”

The Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc. (“SFC™) is a general aviation flying club based at
Skyhaven Airport. SFC has been a party to a right of entry (ROE) with the Pease
Development Authority to allow SFC to us a portion of the airport terminal building at
238 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, New Hampshire for the purpose of housing and
using a flight simulator. Unfortunately, the ROE expired September 30, 2019, without
either party realizing it. As such, SFC is requesting an extension of the ROE to continue
to use a portion of the airport terminal building, for the purpose of housing and using a
flight simulator. SFC will pay an $85.00 monthly rental fee for the use of the premises,
will be responsible for maintaining the area, provide the necessary insurance coverage,
and will abide by the Minimum Standards for Skyhaven Airport.

I request that you seek Board of Directors approval at the December 19, 2019, meeting,
to approve a one year extension of the ROE retroactively effective from October 1,
2019, through September 30, 2020.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.

PABOARDMTG201ROE Skvhaven Flying Club Simulator 12-19 docy

QOO0 TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL S5 lnlwnaiianat Drive, Porisvauth, M 08501

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

December 19, 2018

Ron Stock, President

Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc.

PO Box 232

North Hampton, NH 03862-0232

Re:  Right of Entry -Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc.
Skyhaven Airport, Rochester, NH

Dear Mr. Stock:

This Right of Entry will authorize Skyhaven F lying Club, Inc. (“SFC”) to enter upon a
portion of the airport terminal building as more specifically described in Exhibit A at Skyhaven
Airport, 238 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, NH 03867 (the “Premises”) commencing on October
1, 2018 for a period of one (1) year through September 30, 2019, for the purpose of housing and
using a flight simulator and for no other use without the express written consent of the Pease
Development Authority (“PDA”). This Right of Entry may be extended by the mutual consent of
the Parties for an additional one (1) year period through September 30, 2020 subject to the approval
of the PDA Executive Director. This ROE is subject to the approval of the PDA Board of
Directors at its next meeting on January 17, 2019.

The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense
to the PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such
rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time. This Right of Entry shall
terminate upon either Party providing at least 30 days advance written notice ahead of the date on
which the Agreement is to end, unless terminated earlier or extended by agreement of the Parties.
This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

1. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of SFC
members, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their
invitation or the invitation of any one of them.

2. SFC understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only
temporary use of the facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at
will by PDA or terminated at will upon providing thirty (30) days advance written notice and that
PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination. The use of the Premises shall
be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other

" TAKING YOU THERE



Ron Stock, President
Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc.
December 19, 2018

Page 2

Airport activities. PDA may also terminate this Right of Entry for cause upon providing SFC
with seven (7) days advance written notice.

3. SFC agrees to assume all risks of loss or damage to property and injury or death to
persons by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Premises, or the activities
conducted by it under this Right of Entry.

4. SFC expressly waives all claims against PDA for any such loss, damage, personal
injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of such possession and/or use of the
Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this Right of
Entry.

5. SFC and/or any agent or contractor of SFC providing to the PDA satisfactory
evidence of commercial general liability / aviation insurance to a limit of not less than one million
dollars ($1,000,000.00), naming the Pease Development Authority and the State of New
Hampshire as additional insureds and workers compensation coverage to State statutory limits.

Each such policy or certificate therefore issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable
contain: (i) a provision that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of SFC, which
would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or
limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) an
agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days
prior written notice by registered mail to Pease Development Authority; (iii) provide that the
insurer shall have no right of subrogation against Pease Development Authority or the State of
New Hampshire; and (iv) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried
shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA.

6. SFC’s agreement to secure all necessary Federal, State, municipal and/or local
permits as may be required for its operations.

7. SFC’s agreement to pay a rental fee of $85.00 per month for the use of the Premises
(inclusive of utilities) with the first payment due on or before October 1, 2018 and all subsequent
payments due on or before the first day of each month for the duration of this Right of Entry.

8. PDA retains the right to access the Premises for the purpose of maintaining any
PDA owned equipment which is housed therein. PDA will notify SFC when such access is required
or if notification is not possible, advise SFC of such access as soon as practicably possible
thereafter.

9. [Reserved]



Ron Stock, President
Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc.
December 19, 2018

Page 3

10.  SFC’s agreement to leave the Premises in the same or better condition as existed at
the time of the commencement of this Right of Entry.

11. SFC’s agreement to provide trash disposal containers at the Premises and to ensure
that the Premises is kept neat, clean and free of al] trash and debris generated from its operations.

12. SFC’s agreement to abide by the Minimum Standards for Commercial and Non-
Commercial Aviation Operators at Skyhaven Airport.

13. To the extent applicable, SFC agrees to hold the State of New Hampshire and Pease
Development Authority, harmless with respect to taxes levied against the premises subject to this
Agreement as a consequence of the application of RSA 72:23 L. If applicable, SFC agrees to pay
in addition to other payments all properly assessed real and personal property taxes against the
premises subject to this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of RSA 72:23 I. Failure of
SFC to pay its duly assessed personal and real estate taxes when due shall be cause to terminate
this Agreement by Pease Development Authority. SFC shall, in addition reimburse Pease
Development Authority for any taxes paid by it pursuant to RSA 72:23 I as a result of SFC’s failure
to pay said taxes.

14, Except in circumstances involving the sole negligence of the PDA and its
employees, SFC covenants and agrees to indemnify, a hold harmless and defend PDA and the
State of New Hampshire from and against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, losses,
and damages asserted by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation, and public authority on
account of or based upon any death or injury to person or loss of or damage to any property
sustained or occurring (or which may be claimed to have been sustained or have occurred) on, in,
or about Skyhaven Airport and the Premises.

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the
consent of the SFC to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me for
countersignature. A fully executed copy of this Right of Entry will be provided to you shortly
thereafter.

Sincerely,

} >\"""E_'_V);:'; ’
- o nd

Executive Director



o s ST P e W

e 1 B 2 [

Ron Stock, President
Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc,
December 19, 2018

Page 4

Agreed and accepted this _‘Zﬁday of b.—e/e—ﬂ/wk\k

,20_ LY

SKYHAVEN FLYING CLUB, INC.

By: /l/)_/@_/
Duly Aithorized

Its: P{_\_p__.g.\. Ot

ce: Paul Brean, Airport Director
Andrew Pomeroy, Airport Operations Manager
Irving Canner, Director of Finance
Mark H. Gardner, Deputy General Counsel

P\SK YHAVENSkyhavenFlyingClubROE\SkyhaveFlyingClubROE 1218.docx



Ron Stock, President
Skyhaven Flying Club, Inc.
December 19, 2018

Page 5

EXHIBIT A

PREMISES



ores wosrlymuag pERBONS

LOBED HN ‘HLNOWSL¥Od ‘3AIMA TYNOILVNHILNI 66 ALIHOHLNAVY LNIWdOTIAIG SV Id VA..

J=uZEIE 1TIVOS S1/5/9 '31Va WY 1A GANDIS3A Baly 9sesT] qni) BulAl4 - [RUIWID | UBABUAY

[

.._|I|.|||'||I.F[I|l|-|

S {_ ﬁaﬂr :
ST




CHOATE N—

t617-248-5122
f 617-502-5122
jransom@choate.com

November 21, 2019

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL
Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Attn: Executive Director

Re: 20 Durham Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Dear Mr, Mullen:

Reference is made to that certain Sublease by and between Pease Development Authority
(“Landlord”) and GEB, Inc. (“Qriginal Tenant”) dated November 1, 1995, as amended by that
certain Lease Amendment No. 1 dated October 12,2011, and assigned to 1635 Realty, LLC
(*Tenant”) pursuant to that certain Assignment and Assumption of Ground Lease dated June 26,
2019 by and between Original Tenant and Tenant and consented to by Landlord (as amended and
assigned, the “Lease”). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same
meaning given to such terms in the Lease.

This letter shall serve as Tenant’s Option Notice to Landlord, exercising its first option to
extend the Lease for a period of five (5) years.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any q;lesti'ons.
Very truly yours,
ey Kt
oseph P. Ransom
Enclosures

cc:  Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Esq.

CHOATE HALL & STEWART LLP
Two International Place | Boston MA 02110 | T 617-248-5000 | F 617-248-4000 | choate.com

9518038v1






my
m

z
-
m
(e}
4

oi—-
» m
c<
A
™|z
o0%|>
i
= m
= |-

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA") Board of Directors hereby
approves and authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations
with 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. and to execute a Lease for the
premises located at 19 Durham Street; all as otherwise on terms and
conditions substantially similar to those set forth in the Letter of Intent
from David R. Mullen, Executive Director, dated December 10, 2019;
attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\201942-Way Communications LOl.docx

OOOCO TAKING YOU THE R E

WWW peaseday or g






»ﬁ\’\w
ASE

NTE AL
NT
Y

\'
U

TION
P

A
OPM
ORI

oj-

N
L
H

~ M|z
—+m

E
A

December 10, 2019

William R. Bartlett, President

2-Way Communications Service, Inc.
23 River Road

Newington, NH 03801

Re: 19 Durham Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Dear Mr. Bartlett:

Pursuant to our recent discussions, the following is a summary of the central business terms under which
I'am prepared to make a presentation regarding a lease agreement to the Pease Development Authority’s
(“PDA”) Board of Directors on behalf of 2-Way Communications Service, Inc. ("2-WAY™), a New
Hampshire corporation.

Premises: The location of the proposed leased premises is a building located at 19 Durham
Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801, consisting of 8,502 +/- square feet, with the
associated right to utilize vehicle parking spaces and driveways adjacent to the
leased premises, all as shown on the plans attached as Exhibit A (the “Leased
Premises” or “Premises”).

Term: This Lease shall be effective upon execution by both parties and shall continue
for a base term of five (5) years from the date of January 1,2020. 2-WAY is also
granted two (2), five (5) year options to extend the Lease, said options to be
exercised by it in writing to the PDA no more than twelve (12) months and no less
than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the then current term.

Building

Area Rent: The annual rent per square foot during the base term of the Lease (January 1,2020
through December 31, 2024) and any extension terms shall be as follows, payable
in twelve equal monthly installments on the first of the month:

Year 1 (2020): $6.50 per square foot
Subsequent Years:  Prior year’s annual rent with an annual adjustment of the
lesser of CPI or 3%.

e

TAKING YOU THERE

W prasaclay org



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 2

Municipal
Services Fee:

Utilities:

Triple Net Lease:

Use:

Signage:

Condition
of Leased
Premises:

PDA shall grant 2-WAY a rent credit for the period of fit-up of the Premises until
occupancy for the permitted use, but in no case shall the rent credit be for more
than the first two (2) months of the base term (January and February, 2020).
Consistent therewith, 2-WAY shall notify the PDA in writing of the date of its
occupancy of the Premises.

In accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Services Agreement by and
between the PDA and the City of Portsmouth with an effective date of July I,
1998, 2-WAY shall pay to PDA a municipal services fee to include the cost of
providing police, fire and public works services.

PDA will bring utility lines at reasonable capacities to the points existing as of the
effective date of the Lease or such other points as may be designated by PDA. 2-
WAY shall be responsible for installing and paying for all utilities, including
electric, gas, telephone, water and sewer from such points to the Leased Premises.

This Agreement shall be triple net to PDA and all costs associated with the use,
occupancy, maintenance and insurance of the Leased Premises shall be borne by
2-WAY.

2-WAY shall use the Premises as a business office for the commercial sales and
service of radio communications equipment, consistent with the requirements of
the Industrial Zone of the PDA’s zoning regulations.

2-WAY may erect and maintain suitable signs on the Premises only upon
recetving the prior written approval of PDA. 2-WAY shall submit drawings of
proposed signs and information on the number, size, type, and location, all of
which PDA may review for harmony and conformity with the overall structure
and architectural and aesthetic setting of the Leased Premises and the Airport, as
well as with PDA’s own land use control regulations and may approve ot
disapprove accordingly, but PDA’s consent will not be unreasonably withheld,

2-WAY shall take the Leased Premises in an “as is” condition without warranty
or representation of any kind; provided, however, 2-WAY shali have no liability
or responsibility to PDA for environmental impacts and damage caused by the use
of the United States of America - Department of the Air Force (“Air Force” or
“Government”) of Hazardous Substances on any portion of Pease, including the
Leased Premises. 2-WAY and PDA acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force
to indemnify PDA and 2-WAY to the extent required by the provisions of Public
Law No. 101-511 Section 8056.

l"\ ‘Jn\f’((_/_é



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 3

Tenant’s Work:

2-WAY shall not place or construct any improvements, changes, structures,
alterations or additions (cumulatively referred to in this Section as “Alterations”)
in, to or upon the Premises without PDA’s written consent. Unless 2-WAY is
subject to an earlier notice requirement under the PDA’s Land Use Controls or
other applicable requirements with respect to the information required under this
section, any request for PDA’s consent shall be made by providing written notice
and shall be accompanied by preliminary engineering or architectural plans or, if
consented to by PDA, working drawings. If PDA grants its written consent all
such work shall be done at 2-WAY’s sole cost and expense, subject, in all cases,
to the following covenants:

(1 All work and Alterations shall be done in compliance with all applicable
governmental regulations, codes, standards or other requirements,
including fire, safety and building codes and Land Use Regulations
promulgated by PDA and with the provisions of Article 25 of the proposed
Lease (See Article 25 of proposed Lease attached as Exhibit B). This
obligation shall include compliance with all applicable provisions of the
FFA (as defined in Section 25.8), including obligations imposed upon
PDA in rtespect to construction and construction related work.
Additionally, the installation of some types of equipment, including, but
not limited to certain radio/communication equipment, may require the
advanced approval of the FAA.

@) All Alterations shall be of such a character as not to matertally reduce the
value and usefulness of any of the buildings or other improvements below
their value and usefulness immediately before such Alteration. All work
performed hereunder shall be performed in a good and workmanlike
manner, shall conform to drawings and specifications approved by PDA
and shall not be disruptive of the overall operation the Airport. All
contractors engaged by 2-WAY to perform such work shall employ labor
that can work in harmony with all elements of labor at the Airport.

3 During the period of construction of any Alterations, 2-WAY or any
contractor, subcontractor or sublessee of 2-WAY, shall maintain or cause
to be maintained the following insurance:

@ The commercial general liability and property damage insurance
provided for in paragraph (a) of Section 7.2 of the proposed Lease
(See Article 7 of proposed Lease attached as Exhibit C) shall be
maintained for the limits specified thereunder and shall provide
coverage for the mutual benefit of PDA and 2-WAY as named



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 4

Insurance:

Sublease and
Assignment:

insured in connection with any Alteration permitted pursuant
hereto;

(i)  Fire and any other applicable insurance provided for in Article 7
which, if not then covered under the provisions of existing policies,
shall be covered by special endorsement thereto in respect to any
Alteration, including all materials and equipment therefore
incorporated in, on or about the Leased Premises (including
excavations, foundations, and footings) under a broad form all
risks builder’s risk completed value form or equivalent thereof:
and

(i) ~ Workers® compensation insurance covering all persons employed
in connection with the work and with respect to whom death or
bodily injury claims could be asserted against PDA, 2-WAY or the
Leased Premises, with statutory limits as then required under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire.

(4)  2-WAY shall provide PDA with MYLAR as-built drawings, along with
an electronic copy, when any Alteration authorized hereunder is
completed.

(5) 2-WAY may dispose of the internal freezer located on the Premises (see
Exhibit A), in a commercially reasonable manner, providing written
documentation to the PDA regarding the disposition of the freezer.
Should 2-WAY receive payment for the freezer, it shall pay over to the
PDA the value of said payment amount, minus 2-WAY’s reasonable and
documented costs and expenses, within thirty (30) days.

2-WAY shall provide insurance coverages in accordance with Article 7 of the
proposed Lease. (See Exhibit C).

2-WAY may not assign its rights under the Lease to, or enter into a sublease of
the Leased Premises without the written approval of PDA..

No subletting, assignment or transfer shall release 2-WAY’s obligations or alter
the primary liability of 2-WAY to pay the rent and to perform all other obligations
to be performed by 2-WAY under the Agreement. The acceptance of rent by PDA
from any other person shall not be deemed to be a waiver by PDA of any provision
hereof. Consent to one assignment or subletting shall not be deemed consent to
any subsequent assignment or subletting. If any assignee of 2-WAY or any
successor of 2-WAY defaults in the performance of any of the terms hereof, PDA

ke



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 5

Brokerage:

Indemnity:

US Air Force
Quitclaim Deeds
And Federal
Pacilities
Agreement:

may proceed directly against 2-WAY without the necessity of exhausting
remedies against such assignee or successor. If2-WAY assigns the Agreement,
or sublets all or a portion of the Leased Premises, or requests the consent of PDA
to any assignment or subletting, or if 2-WAY requests the consent of PDA for any
act that 2-WAY proposes to do, then 2-WAY shall pay PDA’s reasonable
processing fee and reimburse PDA for all reasonable attorneys’ fees, excluding
any fees to in-house counsel, incurred in connection therewith. Any assignment
or subletting of the Leased Premises that is not in compliance with these
provisions shall be void and shall, at the option of PDA, but subject to any
applicable cure provisions, terminate the Agreement,

Subject to PDA’s policy on brokerage commissions dated January 25, 1996,
which permits a commission for the rental or leasing of PDA property based on
the following percentages only for the initial or base term of the lease:

6% of the base rent for the first year in which rent is due
5% of the base rent for the second year in which rent is due
4% of the base rent for the third year in which rent is due
3% of the base rent for the fourth year in which rent is due
2% of the base rent for the fifth year in which rent is due

2-WAY shall indemnify PDA consistent with the terms set forth in Article 13 of
the proposed Lease attached hereto as Exhibit D.

Any Lease entered into between PDA and 2-WAY is expressly subject to the
terms of the US Air Force Quitclaim Deeds to PDA found in the Rockingham
County Registry of Deeds at Book 4227 Page | and Book 4564 Page 985
including the Federal Facilities Agreement included therein. Copies of the
aforementioned documents are available upon request,

This letter does not constitute a reservation of the Leased Premises, an option to lease the Leased
Premises, or an offer to lease the Premises, and no legal obligation shall arise with respect to the Leased
Premises or lease thereof until a lease agreement is executed by the Parties.

I believe this proposal addresses the terms as discussed to date. It is my hope that you will be in a
position to advise us of your commitment to Pease by executing this original and the enclosed copy in
the space provided and returning the original to my attention so that a lease agreement can be prepared.
If you have any questions, please give me a call.

Wib



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 6

Sincerely,

e

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

I have read and understand the foregoing and it correctly states the terms upon which 2-WAY will
proceed to negotiate a mutually acceptable Lease Agreement for the Premises with PDA, subject to the
approval of the PDA Board of Directors and any other governmental approvals that may be required.

2-WAY

2 Ji0 /2019 Wikd, W £ o=

Date 4 By: William R. Bartlett
Its duly authorized President

PAZ-Way CompunicatonsiLONZ- Wy LOLdoex



William R. Bartlett

2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 7
EXHIBIT A
Leased Premises
N CHAIN UNK FENCE
|
702 SF&*\
= 2 _ ’ _
/// / g oo
; ROOM
* //// LADIES
RGOM
/
| T 77— ¥ /‘,— =
G Y
11
11
g 835"
-
Ll
7.710 SF&
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE = 8,502+ 4
135'.97
PROJECT: 19 Durham Street Floor Plan OEMGNED OY: MAM  DATE: 11MGNT  SCALE: 11g~=1'
;m: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 5 INTERNATIONAL ORIVE, PORTSwOUTH, i canet

e



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 8§

EXHIBIT A
Leased Premises

(Aerial View)

Exhibit Depicting 19 Durham 8t DESIGNED BY: 4RM  OATE WASMY  SCALE: 1100z

w PEASE DEVWELOPMENT AUTHORITY 5§ INTERHATIONAL DRIVE. PORTSMOUTH, RH 06300t

et At Artad



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY

December 10, 2019
Page 9

EXHIBIT B

Environmental Protection
Article 25 of Proposed Lease

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

25.1. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall comply with all Legal Requirements that
are or may become applicable to Lessee’s or sublessee’s or assignee’s activities at the Leased Premises,
including but not limited to, the Land Use Controls, the applicable environmental laws and regulations
identified in Exhibit E (“Environmental Laws™), as amended from time to time.

25.2. Lessee and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee shall be solely responsible at their sole cost and
expense for obtaining all environmental permits and authorizations, filing all notices with the appropriate
regulatory authorities and taking all actions required under Legal Requirements for their operations
under this Lease or any sublease or assignment, independent of any existing Airport permits,
authorizations or notices.

25.3. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor against and from all claims, judgments,
damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, habilities and losses (including, without limitation,
diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on the use of the Premises, and
sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants' fees, and experts’ fees), resulting or arising
from discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage, or disposal of any Hazardous or Regulated
Substances as defined in Section 25.5, or any other action or omission by the Lessee, or any sublessee
or assignee of the Lessee, giving rise to Lessor criminal, civil or administrative liability or responsibility
under Legal Requirements.

This indemnification of Lessor by Lessee includes, without limitation, any and all claims,
judgment, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses tncurred by Lessor or Air
Force in connection with any investigation of site conditions, or any remedial or removal action or other
site restoration work required by any federal, state or local governmental unit or other person for or
pertaining to any discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous or Regulated
Substances arising or resulting from any act or omission of the Lessee or any sublessee or assignee of
the Lessee at the Leased Premises after the Occupancy Date. "Occupancy Date" as used herein shall
mean the earlier of the first day of Lessee’s occupancy or use of the Leased Premises or the date of
execution of this Lease. “Occupancy” or “Use” shall mean any activity or presence including
preparation and construction in or upon the Leased Premises or any portion thereof.

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termipation of the Lease, and the

Lessee’s obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the Lessor incurs costs, liabilities or responsibilities
for the Lessee’s or its sublessees or licensees actions or omissions of the types described in this Atticle



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 10

25.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee and its sublessees and assignees do
not assume any liability or responsibility for environmental impacts and damage caused by the use by
the Air Force of toxic or hazardous wastes, substances or materials or PFAS (as defined below) on any
portion of the Airport, including the Leased Premises. The Lessee and its sublessees and assignees have
no obligation to undertake the defense, remediation and cleanup, including the liability and responsibility
for the costs of damages, penalties, legal and investigative services solely arising out of any claim or
action in existence now, or which may be brought in the future by any person, including governmental
units against the Air Force, because of any use of, or release from, any portion of the Airport (including
the Leased Premises) of any toxic or hazardous wastes, substances or materials or PFAS prior to the
Occupancy Date. Furthermore, the parties recognize and acknowledge the obligation of the Air Force
to indemnify the Lessor and Lessee to the extent required by the provisions of Public Law No. 101-51 1,
Section 8056 and/or Public Law No. 102-484, as amended.

In addition, Lessor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessee against and from any and
all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses (including,
without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on the use of
the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants’ fees and experts' fees),
resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous or
Regulated Substances, or any other action by Lessor giving rise to Lessee’s criminal, civil or
administrative liability or responsibility under Legal Requirements. This provision shall survive the
expiration or termination of the Lease, and the Lessor's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the
Lessee incurs costs or liabilities for the Lessor's actions of the types described in this Article 25.

The provisions of this Section 25.4 do not relieve the Lessee, its sublessees or licensees of any
obligation or liability with regard to third parties or regulatory authorities by operation of law.

25.5.  As used in this Lease, the term “Hazardous or Regulated Substances” means any hazardous or
toxic substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, or per- or polyfluoroalkyl substance,
including without limitation perfluorinated compounds and their precursors, (collectively, “PFAS™),
that is or becomes regulated by any local governmental authority, the State of New Hampshire or the
United States Government. The term “Hazardous or Regulated Substances” includes, without
limitation, any material or substance which is (i) defined as a “hazardous waste,” under New Hampshire
RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a “hazardous substance” under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil,
gasoline or other petroleum product, (iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous waste
pursuant to Parts Env-Hw 100 or Env-Hw 400 (“Hazardous Waste Rules”) of the New Hampshire Code
of Administrative Rules, (vi) designated as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 311 of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §1317), (vii) defined as a “hazardous waste” pursuant
to Section 1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. (42
US.C. §6903), or (viii) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to Section 101 of the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq.
(42 U.S.C. §9601), (ix) defined as “perfluorinated compounds” or “precursor” to a perfluorinated
compound pursuant to New Hampshire RSA ch. 125-C, and (x) so defined in the regulations adopted

me



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 11

and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, or as such laws or regulations may be further
amended, modified or supplemented.

As used in this Lease, the terms “release” and “storage” shall have the meanings provided in RSA 147-
B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided in RSA 147-A:2, as amended.

25.6. Lessor’s rights under this Lease specifically include the right for Lessor to inspect, at all
reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, the Leased Premises and any buildings or other facilities
thereon for compliance with Legal Requirements, including but not limited to Environmental Laws and
occupational health and safety laws, whether or not the Lessor is responsible for enforcing them. Such
inspections are without prejudice to the right of duly constituted enforcement officials to make such
inspections. Lessor agrees to comply with Lessee’s reasonable requirements and procedures with regard
to access to the Leased Premises, and if applicable the rights of the tenants under the building space
leases.

25.7.  Lessee is advised and acknowledges that portions of the Alrport, more fully described in Exhibit
Cof'the Deed as “ACM Zones” may contain current and former improvements, above and below ground,
that contain asbestos. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessor is not responsible for
any removal or containment of asbestos. If Lessee and any sublessee or assignee intend to make any
improvements, alterations or repairs, including demolition, that require the removal of asbestos, an
appropriate asbestos removal and disposal plan, complying with all Legal Requirements, must be
incorporated in the plans and specifications and submitted for prior approval. The asbestos disposal
plan shall identify the proposed disposal site for the asbestos. In addition, non-friable asbestos which
becomes friable through or as a consequence of the activities of Lessee will be abated by Lessee at its
sole cost and expense.

25.8. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that the Airport has been identified as a National Priority List
(NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
(CERCLA), as amended (42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq.). Lessee acknowledges that Lessor has provided it
with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement (“FFA”) entered into by EPA, and the Air Force on
April 24, 1991, and Modification No. 1 thereto, effective March 18, 1993, and Lessee agrees that it will
comply with and be bound by the terms of the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the
Leased Premises and that should any conflict arise between the terms of the FFA and the provisions of
this Lease, the terms of the FFA will take precedence. The Lessee further agrees that the Lessor assumes
no liability to the Lessee or any sublessee(s) or assignee(s) of Lessee should implementation of the FFA
interfere with their use of the Leased Premises. The Lessee and its sublessee(s) and assignee(s) shall
have no claim on account of any such interference against the Lessor, Air Force, EPA, State, NHDES,
or any officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof, other than for abatement of rent.

Pursuant to its obligations under Federal law, the Air Force bas provided and Lessee
acknowledges receipt of the "Notices and Covenants Related to Section 120(h)(3) of CERCLA, as
amended.” The notice and a description of remedial action by the Air Force are set forth in Paragraph
VI of the Deed.

Wb



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 12

25.9. The Air Force, EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees, contractors, and
subcontractors have the right, at no cost, upon reasonable notice to the Lessee and any sublessee or
assignee, to enter upon the Leased Premises for the purposes enumerated in this subparagraph and for
such other purposes consistent with the FFA:

(1) toconduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary, drilling, soil
and water sampling, testpitting, testing soil borings and other activities related to the Pease Installation
Restoration Program ("IRP"), the FFA or any order issued to Air Force by EPA or NHDES or by a court
of competent jurisdiction addressing Hazardous or Regulated Substances (collectively, “Order™) (the
term IRP as used herein refers to the broad Department of Defense-wide program to identify, investigate
and clean ups contaminated areas on military installations as described in the Department of Defense
Instruction Number 4715.7);

2) to inspect field activities of the Air Force and its contractors and subcontractors in
implementing the IRP, the FFA or any Order;

(3) to conduct any test or survey required by the EPA or NHDES relating to the
implementation of the FFA or environmental conditions at the Leased Premises or to verify any data
submitted to the EPA or NHDES by the Air Force relating to such conditions;

©) to conduct, operate, maintain or undertake any other response or remedial action as
required or necessary under the IRP, the FFA or any Order, including, but not limited to monitoring
wells, puraping wells and treatment facilities.

25.10. Lessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to the extent applicable to the Premises, to comply
with the provisions of any health or safety plan in effect under the IRP, the FFA or any Order during
the course of any of the above described response or remedial actions. Any inspection, survey,
investigation, or other response or remedial action will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with
representatives designated by the Lessee and any sublessee or assignee. Lessee and any sublessee or
assignee shall have no claim on account of such entries against the United States or the State or any
officer, agent, employee, contractor, or subcontractor thereof.

Lessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to the extent applicable to comply with the
provisions of the “Environmental Use Restrictive Covenants” set forth in Paragraph VI.B of the Deed.
It is the intent of the Air Force and the Lessor that the Environmental Use Restrictions bind Lessee and
its sublessees and assignees, and that the Air Force reserves to itself the enforcement of this restrictive
covenant against Lessee hereunder.

25.11. Lessee further agrees that in the event of any authorized sublease or assignment of the land area

of the Leased Premises, it shall provide to the Air Force, EPA and NHDES by certified mail a copy of
the agreement of sublease or assignment of the Leased Premises within fourteen (14) days after the

Wb



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 13

effective date of such transaction. Lessce may delete the financial terms and any other proprietary
information from any sublease or assignment submitted to the above mentioned entities.

25.12. The Airport air emissions offsets and Air Force accumulation points for hazardous and other
wastes will not be made available to Lessee. Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining from some other
source(s) any air pollution credits that may be required to offset emissions resulting from its activities
under the Lease and establishing any waste accumulation locations as may be required under
Environmental Laws or other Legal Requirements.

25.13. Any permit required under Hazardous or Regulated Substance Laws for the management of
Hazardous or Regulated Substances stored or generated by Lessee or any sublessee or assignee of Lessee
shall be obtained by Lessee or its sublessees or assignee and shall be limited to generation and
transportation. Any violation of this requirement shall be deemed a material breach of this Lease.
Lessee shall provide at its own expense such storage facilities for Hazardous or Regulated Substances,
complying with all Legal Requirements, as it needs for management of its Hazardous or Regulated
Substances.

25.14. Lessee, and any sublessee or assi gnee of Lessee whose operations utilize Hazardous or Regulated
Substances, shall have a completed and approved plan for responding to Hazardous or Regulated
Substances spills or other unauthorized discharges and emissions prior to commencement of operations
on the Leased Premises. Such plan shall comply with changes in site conditions or Legal Requirements
and shall be updated from time to time, as may be required to comply with changes in site conditions or
Legal Requirements and shall be approved, where required, by agencies having regulatory jurisdiction
over such plan. Such plan shall be independent of, but not inconsistent with, any plan or other standard
of Lessor applicable to the Airport and except for initial fire response and/or spill or release containment,
shall not rely on use of the Airport or Lessor personnel or equipment. Should the Lessor provide any
personnel or equipment, whether for initial fire response and/or spill or release containment or otherwise,
on request of the Lessee, or because the Lessee was not, in the opinion of Lessor, conducting timely
cleanup or corrective actions, the Lessee agrees to reimburse the Lessor for its costs.

25.15. Lessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Lessee, must maintain and make available to Lessor,
the Air Force, EPA and NHDES all records, inspection logs, and manifests that track the generation,
handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as all other records relating to
Hazardous or Regulated Substances required to be maintained pursuant to Legal Requirements. The
Lessor and the Air Force reserve the right to inspect the Leased Premises and Lessee’s, its sublessee’s
or assignee’s records for campliance with Legal Requirements relating to the generation, handling,
storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as the discharge, emission or release of
Hazardous or Regulated Substances. Violations of Legal Requirements may be reported by Lessor and
the Air Force to appropriate regulatory agencies, as required by Legal Requirements. The Lessee, its
sublessees or assignees shall be liable for the payment of any fines and penalties or costs that may accrue
to the Government or Lessor under Legal Requirements as a result of the actions or omissions of Lessee,
its sublessees or assignees, respectively.
Wi



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10,2019
Page 14

25.16. Lessee acknowledges that the Premises may contain wetlands protected under Federal and State
laws and regulations, which, among other things, restrict activities that involve the discharge of fill
materials into wetlands, including, without limitation, the placement of fill materials; the building of any
structure; site-development fills for recreational, industrial, commercial, residential, and other uses;
causeways or road fills; and dams and dikes. The Lessee covenants and agrees that in its use of the
Premises, it will comply with all Legal Requirements minimizing the destruction, loss, or degradation
of wetlands. The Lessee, its successors and assigns, further covenant and agree that any development of
any portion of the Premises containing wetlands will be subject to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act
of 1977 as amended, the State of New Hampshire Fill and Dredge in Wetlands Act as amended, the
Pease Development Authority Wetlands Management Plan (adopted June 25, 1998), and the Land Use
Controls, as amended. For purposes of this provision, development includes new structures, facilities,
draining, dredging, channelizing, filling, diking, impounding, and related activities.

Lessee, its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of any Wetlands
Management Plan and the Land Use Controls in effect at Pease. Lessee, its sublessees and assignees
will minimize the destruction, loss or degradation of wetlands on the Leased Premises. Lessee, its
sublessees and assignees will obtain prior written approval from Lessor before conducting any new
construction in wetland areas.

25.17. Prior to the development of any portion of the Leased Premises on which a wetland has been
identified in the Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement dated August 1995 (“SEIS™), the
Lessee, its sublessees and assignees, as applicable, shall, if one has not previously been completed,
perform a wetland delineation.

25.18. Prior to the storage, mixing, or application of any pesticide, as that term is defined under the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, the Lessee, its sublessees and assignees shall
prepare a plan for storage, mixing and application of pesticides (”Pesticide Management Plan”). The
Pesticide Management Plan shall be sufficient to meet all applicable Legal Requirements. The Lessee,
its sublessees and assignees shall store, mix and apply all pesticides within the Leased Premises only in
strict compliance with the Pesticide Management Plan.  The pesticides will only be applied by a licensed
applicator in accordance with Legal Requirements.

25.19. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees must notify the Lessor and the airport manager of its
intent to possess, store, or use any licensed or licensable source or byproduct materials, as those terms
are defined under the Atomic Energy Act and its implementing regulations; of Lessee’s, its sublessees
and assignees intent to possess, use, or store radium; and of Lessee’s, its Lessees and assignees intent to
possess or use any equipment producing ionizing radiation and subject to specific licensing
requirements or other individual regulations, at least sixty (60) days prior to the entry of such materials
or equipment upon the Airport. Upon notification, the Lessor and the airport manager may impose such
requirements, including prohibition of possession, use, or storage, as deemed necessary to adequately
protect health and human environment. Thereafter, the Lessee must notify the Lessor and the airport
manager of the presence of all licensed or licensable source or other byproduct materials, of the presence
of all radium, and of the presence of all equipment producing ionizing radiation and subject to specific

Wb



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 15

licensing requirements or other individual regulation; provided, however, that the Lessee, its sublessees
and assignees need not make either of the above notifications to the Lessor and the airport manager with
respect o source and byproduct material which is exempt from regulation under the Atomic Energy Act.
The Lessee shall not, under any circumstances, use, own, possess or allow the presence of special nuclear
material on the Leased Premises.

25.20. The Lessee, its sublessees and assignees acknowledge that lead-based paint may be present in
and on facilities within the Leased Premises. Prior to beginning any Alterations, other construction or
construction related work, (to include paint stripping or sanding), excavating, demolition, or restoration,
the Lessee, any sublessee or assignee must test any paint which would be disturbed unless a conclusive
determination has been made that lead-based paint is not present. If paint is lead-based, the Lessee, any
sublessee or assignee is required to handle it in accordance with the Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard
Reduction Act of 1992, 42 U.S.C. Section 4852(d) and all Legal Requirements at its own expense.
The Lessee is required to ensure that any lead-based paint is maintained in good condition.

The Lessee hereby acknowledges that it has received in Paragraph VIL.D. of the Deed the
required disclosure in accordance with Title 10.

25.21. The Lessee acknowledges that chlordane was used at selected housing units formerly located on
or around the Leased Premises. The Lessee, its sublessees or assignees will follow Legal Requirements
should the Lessee, its sublessee or assignee choose to disturb or excavate any of this material. Any cost
associated with this action shall be at the Lessee’s, its sublessee’s or assignee’s expense.

25.22. In addition to the environmental compliance obligations set forth in the Lease Agreement, Lessee
and its sublessees and assigns agree to comply with the provisions of any current or subsequently
implemented Legal Requirement relating to the management, treatment or control of stormwater,
including but not limited to Total Maximum Daily Limits (TMDLs) established under either
Environmental Laws or other Legal Requirements and applicable to any watercourse or watershed at the
Tradeport and the Leased Premises.

i

END OF ARTICLE 25




William R. Bartlett

2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 16
EXHIBIT C
Insurance
Article 7 of Proposed Lease
INSURANCE
7.1
A. Risk of Loss. Lessee shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Leased Premises,

including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from any causes
whatsoever.

B. Insurance. During the entire period this Lease shall be in effect, the Lessee at its expense
will carry and maintain:

) Property insurance coverage against loss or damage by fire and lightning and against loss
or damage or other risks embraced by coverage of the type now known as the broad form of extended
coverage (including but not limited to riot and civil commotion, vandalism, and malicious mischief and
earthquake) in an amount not less than 100% of the full replacement value of the buildings, building
improvements, improvements to the land, and personal property on the Leased Premises. The policies
of insurance carried in accordance with this Section shall contain a “Replacement Cost Endorsement.”

(2)  Comprehensive general liability insurance endorsed for products and completed
operations liability insurance, on an “occurrence basis” against claims for “personal injury,” including
without limitation, bodily injury, death or property damage, occurring upon, in or about the Leased
Premises including any buildings thereon and adjoining sidewalks, streets, and passageways, such
insurance to afford immediate minimum protection at the time of the Term Commencement Date, and
at all times during the term of this Lease, to a limit of not less than one million ($1,000,000) dollars, per
occurrence with respect to damage to property and one mitlion ($1,000,000) doliars, per occurrence with
respect to personal /bodily  injury or death to any one or more persons and with no deductible or such
deductible amount as may be approved by Lessor, with an umbrella insurance policy of not less than two
million ($2,000,000) dollars. Such insurance shall also include coverage against liability for bodily
injury or property damage arising out of the acts or omissions by or on behalf of Lessee, or any other
person or organization, or involving any owned, non-owned, leased or hired automotive equipment (if
such coverage is not provided by a separate policy under 7.B.(4)) in connection with Lessee’s activities.

(3) Worlers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance in an amount and form which

meets all applicable requirements of the labor laws of the State of New Hampshire, as amended from
time to time, and which specifically covers the persons and risks involved in this Lease.

4 Automobils liability insurance in amounts approved from time to time by Lessor, but not
less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit for owned, hired and non-owned

automobiles.
W&fs



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 17

7.2 All policies of insurance required to be carried under this Article shall be effected under valid
and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required under this
Lease, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to transact such insurance
coverage in the State of New Hampshire. The policies of insurance required in Sections 7.1.B. (2) and
(4) shall be for the mutual benefit of Lessee, Lessor and any Leasehold Mortgagee, as defined in Article
19, with the Lessor and Leasehold Mortgagee named as additional insureds. The policy required in
Section 7.1.B.(1) shall name Lessor, Lessee and any Leasehold Mortgagee as loss payees as their
interests may appear subject to the provisions of Section 19.7(9) hereof,

Upon the execution of this Lease (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration
date of each policy furnished pursuant to this Article) Lessee shall provide a copy of the original of each
policy required to be furnished pursuant to this Article (or, with the consent of Lessor, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld a certificate of the insurer reasonably satisfactory to Lessor which
sets forth evidence of all requisite coverages) bearing a notation evidencing the payment of the premium
or accompanied by other evidence reasonably satisfactory to Lessor of such payment, shall be delivered
by Lessee to Lessor.

7.3 All policies of insurance shall provide for loss thereunder to be adjusted and payable to Lessor
or Lessee in accordance with the terms of this Lease.

7.4 Eachsuch policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable contain,
(1) a provision that no act or omission of Lessee, or any employee, officer or agent of Lessee, which
would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit
the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained, (ii) an agreement by
the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by
registered mail to Lessor and to any Mortgagee, (iii) a provision that any liability coverage required to
be carried shall be primary and noncontributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA, and (iv)
provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA.

7.5.  The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement and in no way
limit the indemnity covenants contained this Agreement. On the insurance policies that PDA is named
as an additional insured, PDA shall be an additional insured to the full limits of the liability coverage
purchased by Lessee, even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement.

7.6.  All policies of insurance required to be maintained by Lessee shall have attached thereto the
Lender's Loss Payable Endorsement, or its equivalent, or a loss payable clause acceptable to Lessor, for
the benefit of Lessee’s Mortgagee, but the right of any such Mortgagee to the payment of insurance
proceeds shall at all times be subject to the provisions of this Lease with respect to the application of the
proceeds of such insurance.

Wb



William R. Bartlett
2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 18

7.7.  Lessee shall observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of insurance at any time in
force with respect to the Leased Premises and Lessee shall also perform and satisfy the requirements of
the companies writing such policies so that at all times companies of good standing reasonably
satisfactory to Lessor shall be willing to write or to continue such insurance. Lessee shall, in the event
of any violations or attempted violations of the provisions of this Section 7.7 by a subtenant, take steps,
immediately upon knowledge of such violation or attempted violation, to remedy or prevent the same as
the case may be.

7.8.  Any insurance provided for in this Lease may be effected by a policy or policies of blanket
insurance or may be continued in such form until otherwise required by Lessor; provided, however, that
the amount of the total insurance allocated to the Leased Premises shall be such as to furnish in protection
the equivalent of separate policies in the amounts herein required, and provided further that in all other
respects, any such policy or policies shall comply with the other provisions of this Lease. In any such
case it shall not be necessary to deliver the original of any such blanket policy to Lessor, but Lessee shall
deliver to Lessor and to any Mortgagee a certificate or duplicate of such policy in form and content
acceptable to Lessor.

7.9.  Over the term of this Lease and any extensions thereof, Lessor reserves the right to request
increases in mandatory insurance coverage limits for each respective coverage area required under this
Lease as the same may be appropriate, commercially reasonable and prudent in view of then existing
conditions and circumstances, provided that such changes shall not occur more often than one (1) time
per five (5) year period. Lessor agrees to provide Lessee with a thirty (30) day written notice when
making any request for an increase in required insurance coverage limits.

7.10  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of Article 7, the insurance policies required to be
provided by the Lessee may have reasonable deductible amounts. The Lessee shall also have the right
to self-insure for the property insurance required by Section 7.1.B(1) provided that the Lessee provides
the Lessor with evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Lessor that the Lessee has net assets, in the case
of a not-for-profit entity or net worth in the case of a for profit entity, in an amount equal to no less than
500% of the replacement value of the buildings, improvements and personal property on the leased
premises. Such evidence shall be provided to the Lessor on an annual basis.

e

END OF ARTICLE 7 ik




William R. Bartlett

2-WAY
December 10, 2019
Page 19
EXHIBIT D
Indemnification

Article 13 of the Proposed Lease

GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY LESSEE

13.1. In addition to any other obligation of Lessee under this Lease to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless Lessor, Lessee agrees ta indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessor against and from any and
all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, assessments, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses
(including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction
on the use of the Premises, sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, consultants’ fees and
experts’ fees) resulting or arising during the term of this Lease:

(1) from any condition of the Premises (except as otherwise set forth in Article 25 , including
any building structure or improvement thereon,

2) from any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the performance of any covenant or
agreement on the part of Lessee to be performed pursuant to the terms of this Lease, or from any act or
omission of Lessee, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees, Lessees, licensees or invitees;
or

3) from any accident, injury, death, loss or damage whatsoever caused to any person or
property occurring during the term of this Lease, on or about the Leased Premises (including parking
areas), or upon the land, streets, curbs or parking areas situated on the Leased Premises.

In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against Lessor by reason of any matter for
which Lessee has hereby agreed to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Lessor, Lessee, upon notice
from Lessor, covenants to resist and defend such action or proceeding with counsel acceptable to Lessor.

Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this Section 13.1, (i) Lessee shall be under no
obligation to PDA in respect to such matters included in items (1) through (3) above in existence prior
to the effective date of this Lease or caused by the negligence of PDA, its officers, agents or employees,
its assigns, agents, contractors, servants or employees; and (ii) construction of the Facility in accordance
with the provisions of this Lease and approved plans shall not be deemed to diminish the value of the
Premises.

13.2. The term “Person” as used in this Article and Article 25 shall include individuals, corporations,
partnerships, governmental units and any other legal entity entitled to bring a claim, action or sther
demand or proceeding on its own behalf or on behalf of any other entity.

w
END OF ARTICLE 13 W‘“







ny

55 International Drive RPortsmouth, NH 03807

ol
> m
c<
|-
@)
=z
= |

= m

November 20, 2019

James Jones

d/b/a Jones Snow Plowing Services
207 Atlantic Avenue
North Hampton, NH 03862

RE: Contract for Snow Removal Services

Dear Mr. Jones:

In accordance with the terms of Contract for Snow Removal Services for the facilities for
the Division of Ports and Harbors, the Pease Development Authority will exercise its fourth and
final option to extend the term of the Contract for the season of December 1, 2019 through April
30, 2020.

Please provide PDA with a current certificate of insurance at your earliest possible
convenience. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

DRM/rao
cc: Geno J. Marconi, Division Director

Irving Canner, Director of Finance
Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel

P:\PortAuthority\Contracts\Uones\ones Snow Plow 1 1-20-19 Final Option.docx

OO0OOO TAKING YOU THERE

WW W peasedev org






= Loy oy o vy et e TS Foex py oy g r b Akl a0
55 international Drive Portsmaoulh, N 028

e
3001

ofl-

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Read Custom Soils, for the purpose of providing FAA approved runway
sand for the Airport runways at the price of $89.00 per ton for the period
of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020; in accordance with the
memo from Sandra McDonough, Airport Operations Specialist, dated
December 12, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Runway Sand 12-19.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

www.paassdev org






i

PEASE

AIRPORT 36 Alrline Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
MANAGEMENT 503 .4332.6536

Memorandum
To: Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Director/ PSM Airport Director /?@Wl/

cC: File

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison %‘\ﬂ"
Date:  12/12/2019

Re: FAA Approved Runway Sand

The Pease Development Authority (PDA) advertised for sealed bids to supply FAA Approved
Runway Sand. As is the case with winter operations on highways, sand is a very critical component
to successful winter operations at the airport. The FAA has very stringent standards for sand used on
airports and, as a result, it generally costs more than standard highway sand and there are very few
suppliers.

The current contract for Runway Sand is $102.68 per ton with Holliston Sand Co. Inc and expires on
December 31, 2019.

Two companies submitted a bid prior to the scheduled bid opening, November 22, 2019 at 2:00 p.m.
The bid results were:

Company Location Bid
Holliston Sand Co. Inc Slatersville, RI $102.67Ton
Read Custom Soils Wareham, MA $89.00/Ton

I recommend you seek Board approval to award a contract to Read Custom Soils for supply of FAA
Approved Runway Sand in the amount of $89.00 per ton which is $13.68 per ton less than last year’s
price and $13.67 per ton less than this year’s other bidder. This will be the first year this company is
producing Runway sand so I toured the plant in New Hampshire where Read Custom Soils gets their
runway sand and found it to be acceptable. The new contract will begin January 1, 2020 and expire
December 31, 2020.

PABOARDMTGR201NSA acceptance memo 2019 IP.doc

OO0O0OC TAKING YOU THERE






my.
I

58 internalions! Drive Porlsmouth, NH 032801

(@]
z

U_
> m
c<
— ™3
" |z
ol b
|-
-=
—Am
<Z |y
=]~

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, Ohio, for the purpose
of purchasing potassium acetate based runway deicing liquid at a price of
$4.51 per gallon for a period of January 1, 2020 through December 31,
2020; all in accordance with the memorandum of Sandra McDonough,
Airport Operations Specialist, dated December 12, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2018\RunwayDeicingLiquid 1218.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE

A S N

www.peasedav, org






\

PEASE

AIRPORT 36 Airling Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
MANAGEMENT $03.433.6536

Memorandum

To: Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Director/ PSM Airport Director/g <
CC: File

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison =

Date:  12/12/2019

Re: Potassium Acetate Liquid Runway Deicer

The Pease Development Authority accepted bids to supply FAA-Approved Potassium Acetate Liquid
Runway Deicer to be used in winter operations at the airport. The FAA is very restrictive on what
deicing chemicals can be used at airports because of the corrosive qualities that cause serious damage
to critical aircraft components. Potassium Acetate is one of very few chemicals permitted by the
FAA, and is one of the most environmentally accepted. The current contract for Potassium Acetate
expires December 31, 2019.

Two companies submitted bids prior to the scheduled bid opening, November 22, 2019 at 2:15 p.m.

The low bidder was Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, Ohio, at $4.51 per gallon, up
$.02 from last year’s contract. Cryotech was the other company that submitted a bid. Their bid was
$4.77 per gallon, $.26 more than the low bidder.

[ recommend you request Board approval to award a contract to Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial

of Marion, Ohio, for Potassium Acetate Based Runway Deicing Liquid in the amount of $4.51 per
gallon. This contract will begin January 1, 2020 and expire December 31, 2020.

PABOARDMTG\20190\PA acceptance memo 2019a.doc

QOO0 TAKING YOU THERE






m

z
-
m
)
r4

55 international Drive Pertamouih, NH 03801

oq-
> m
c<
Mz
™ |z
o%|»
v |-
-=Z
—m
<Z |y
= |-

Director Levesque:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a contract
with Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, Ohio, for the purpose
of purchasing sodium formate based runway deicing solid at the price of
$0.76 per pound for a period of January 1, 2020 through December 31,
2020; all in accordance with the memorandum of Sandra McDonough,
Airport Operations Specialist, dated December 12, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Runway Deicing Solid 12-19.docx

i TAKING

Y O U

THERE

www peasedev.org






Y

PEASE

AIRPORT 38 Atrling Ave. Portsmouth, NH 0330+
MANAGEMENT 603.433 6538

Memorandum

To: Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Director/ PSM Airport Direclm/%‘/‘/

CC: File
From:  Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison 5
Date:  12/12/2019

Re: Sodium Formate Contract

The Pease Development Authority accepted bids to supply FAA-Approved Anhydrous Sodium
Formate Based Runway Deicing Solid to be used in winter operations at the airport. The FAA is very
restrictive on what deicing chemicals can be used at airports because of the corrosive qualities that
cause serious damage to critical aircraft components. Anhydrous Sodium Formate is one of very few
chemicals permitted by the FAA, and is one of the most environmentally accepted. The current
contract for Sodium Formate expires on December 31, 2019.

One company submitted a bid prior to the scheduled bid opening November 22, 2019, at 2:30 p.m.

The one bidder was Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial at $0.76 per pound. This is up $0.025 per
pound from the current year’s cost with the same contractor.

[ recommend you seek Board approval at the December, 2019 meeting to enter into a contract with
Nachurs Alpine Solutions Industrial of Marion, Ohio, for Sodium Formate Based Runway Deicing
Solid in the amount of $0.76 per pound. This contract will begin January 1, 2020 and expire
December 31, 2020.

PABOARDMTG\2019\ST acceptance memo 2019.doc

OO0O0) TAKING YOU THERE






-
A

m

(e}
z

Fortsmiouth, N

N
03801

o=
> m
c<
~mMiD
T |z
o° >
—Am
= |-

Director Torr:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the

Executive Director to accept and bind insurance coverages for the Pease

Development Authority to be provided by Cross Insurance, Inc. as outlined
on the schedule attached hereto, in the projected total premium amount
of $117,687.31 for the period of 12/31/19 through 12/31/20, in

accordance with the memorandum of Anthony I. Blenkinsop,
General Counsel, dated December 10, 2019 and attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Ins- Cross 12-19.docx

Deputy

VOO TAKING Y OU

www.pDeasedev.

THERE

0y






m
>
rm

INTERNATIONAL 55 | ) rive Portsm e 0
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <##A_~

From: Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel /@
Re: Renewal of PDA’s Insurance Program — Cross Insurance, Inc.

Date: December 10, 2019

In 2017, Cross Insurance, Inc. was selected to be the broker of record for seeking and binding the
following insurance coverages for Pease Development Authority:

Commercial General Liability;

Business Auto;

Umbrella;

Crime/Employee Dishonesty;

Employment Practices;

Airport Liability;

Pollution liability (Skyhaven Airport Av Gas tank only); and
Cyber liability.

O o

Attached please find a proposed premium summary for the upcoming year. While premiums
have increased for Commercial General Liability, Business Auto, Airport Liability, and
Umbrella, premiums for Crime, Employment Practices, Pollution and Cyber coverages remained
essentially the same. As noted in the premium summary, Business Auto and Commercial
Package rates increased due to overall claim experiences industry wide.

At the December 19, 2019, meeting of the Board of Directors, please request approval to bind all

of the aforementioned coverages in the projected total amount of $1 17,687.31 for the renewal
policy period of 12/31/19 -12/31/20.

PAINSURANCE\2020 Renewal\lns Bd Memo Cross 12-19.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

WN W pea:ssdﬁsz.sng






Proposed Premium Summary

Policy Type Company AM Best Standard & | Expiring Proposed
Rating Poor Rating | Premium Premium

Commercial Hanover A A $25,071 $29,725

Package/(General

Liability & Contents)

Business Auto Hanover A A $24,010 $28,051

Umbrella Hanover A A $9,302 $10,671

Crime/Employee Hanover A A $2,457 $2,457/year

Dishonesty 3 year term

Employment Chubb A++ AA $9,021 $9,590

Practices Liability

Airport Liability Starr Aviation A A+ $25,189 $27,578

Pollution Freberg/Admiral | A+ A+ $5,746.08 $5,879.98

Cyber (NEW) Allmerica A A $3,735.33 $3,735.33

Financial Benefit
Total $104,531.41 $117,687.31
Notes:

Commercial Auto

O Increased vehicle schedule from 28 units last year to 33 units this year

o Vehicles #10, #19, & #20 have increased comp/collision deductibles

* Thisis a Hanover company position. They have increased minimum deductibles
for all classes of vehicles: Light $500, Medium $1,000, Heavy $2,000

Package/General Liability — Most of the increase is due to increase in Golf Course revenue from
$1,749,000 to $2,691,163.
Umbrella premium is based on underlying liability premium (General Liability, Auto Liability,
Employers Liability). Any incrase to underlying will result in increased umbrella premium.
Airport liability increased from $25,189 to $27,578, which is a very good outcome given that we
are current in the midst of a hard aviation insurance market. Many commercial aviation clients
are currently receiving 20-30% rate increases.

o Given market changes, Starr can no longer offer excess auto liability at no cost. When
the market was soft we added $25 Million excess auto liability above PDA’s $5 Million
umbrella at no charge. However, Starr is now only able to offer $5M excess of the
current $5 Million umbrella for a $10,000 additional premium. The airport liability policy
will continue to provide $50 Million auto on airport premises liability, which applies any
time PDA vehicles are driving within the airport gates. It’s only off airport auto liability
which will now be limited.

¢ CRrOSS







NTE

ASE

S international Drive Portsmouin, NH 03801

IO N

oi—

E
A

o |-
= |-

A A
o} N
0] Y

T |z

R
E
T

c<

M
R

—m

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to accept and bind the property insurance coverage with
USI - New England, Inc. as outlined on the schedule attached hereto, in the
projected total premium amount of $97,303.00 for the period of 12/31/19
through 12/31/20, in accordance with the memorandum of Anthony I.
Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel, dated December 12, 2019 and
attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Ins- USI 12-19.docx

(OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

www, peasedev org






!
I

-
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

rnaticnal Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801

[43)

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <P~

From: Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel /Jé[%
Re: Renewal of PDA’s Property Insurance Program — USI New England, Inc.

Date: December 12, 2019

In 2017, USI New England, Inc. was selected to be the broker of record for seeking and binding
property insurance coverage for the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”).

Attached please find a proposed premium summary for the upcoming year. As you will note,
USI New England, Inc. negotiated a renewal in the projected amount of $97,303.00. This
coverage is applicable to PDA facilities which are owned, occupied or controlled by PDA (e.g.,
the Airport Passenger Terminal Building, the Air Traffic Control Tower, 55 International Drive).
As to PDA owned buildings leased to third parties, tenants are responsible for securing property
and other applicable coverages in accordance with the lease terms (e.g., Hangars 205, 212 and
213 leased to and occupied by Port City Air). The renewal premium represents a 13% increase
over last year’s rate, which is a function of the hardening of the insurance market nationally due
in large part to substantial losses stemming from events such as wildfires, floods, and storms.
PDA’s individual claims history has been minimal.

At the December 19, 2019 meeting of the Board of Directors, please request approval to bind

property coverage in the projected total amount of $97,303.00 for the renewal policy period of
12/31/19 -12/31/20.

PAINSURANCEN2020 Renewal\lns Bd Memo USI 12-19.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasadev.org






Premium Summa

12/31/19to

Property 1 0 r n
S ligiﬁg a Czd(iflébs) A++XV  Admitted n/a $78,567 $97,303
. 12/31/20
2017 2018 2019 Value/Premium
Change

Building 91,642,740 91,642,740 100,351,340 9.50%
Contents 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,028,000 0.93%
EDP 440,200 440,200 440,200 0.00%
Business Income 3,486,000 3,486,000 3,360,200 3.61%
Mobile Equipment 6,328,834 6,328,834 7,786,828 23.04%
Total Values 104,897,774 104,897,774 $114,966,568 9.60%
Premium $78,567 $78,567 $97,303 23.85%
Rate 0.0749 0.0749 0.0846 13.00%







PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 Internalional Drive Porlamouth, NH 02801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a change order to the
construction contract with Pike Industries (“Pike”) (PDA’s selected
contractor for the Runway Reconstruction Project) to provide LED runway
lights in an estimated amount of $68,700.00; all in accordance with the
memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated
December 10, 2019 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Runway Change Order for LED Lights 12-19.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

wWww . neasedev.org






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 international Dove Portsmouth, MH 03801
DEVELOPRNHE_cT
AUTHO
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director W’: -

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager CKA/UO‘-/

Date: December 10, 2019 B

Subject: LED Runway Lights for Runway Reconstruction Project

Earlier this year, when applying for the grant to fund the runway reconstruction project, airport and
engineering staff considered the option of upgrading the runway lights from incandescent fixtures to LED
fixtures. At that time, the Airport improvement Program did not recognize LED fixtures as an eligible
expense. Nevertheless, the bid sheets included LEDs as an additive alternate for the purpose of comparing
prices. The cost to PDA to purchase and install LEDs without grant funds would have been approximately
$200,000. As a result, we elected to replace the lighting in kind, that is, with conventional incandescent
fixtures.

Recently, FAA changed its position on LEDs declaring them eligible for reimbursement and we have
received the required approval to upgrade PSM’s runway lights to LEDs. FAA will fund the appropriate
share of the extra cost with the caveat that reimbursement is subject to the availability of funds at the
end of the project.

In all airport construction projects, quantities are estimated for bid purposes and then, upon completion
of the project, a “balancing change order” is prepared to reconcile under- and overages. After balancing
the quantities for this project we anticipate that the cost of the LED lights will be covered within the
current contract amount and that grant funding will be available to reimburse 95% of the cost. However,
because this change order would need to be approved at the front end of the project, | recommend that
you seek Board approval to revise the contract sum, to cover the cost of LED lights.

The current amount of the construction contract with Pike Industries is $20,795,617.50. To have the LEDs
delivered to the project in time for installation next year, a change order to the contract in the
approximate amount of $68,700 is needed. (568,700 is the difference between the LEDs and the
incandescent lights currently in the contract. The $200,000 cited earlier would have been PDA’s obligation
to cover the full cost of LEDs, not just the incremental cost.)

In the unlikely event that FAA does not share in the the cost of the lights and PDA bears the full sum, we
believe this investment is justified and will be paid back through reduced energy costs and reduced
maintenance/replacement costs.

At the December meeting, please seek Board approval to execute a change order to the Pike Industries
contract in the approximate amount of $68,700 to provide LED runway lights for the runway
reconstruction project.

N:\ENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\LED RW Lights.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

et NN

wWww feasaedey org






INTERNATIONAL 55 International Orive Porismouth, NH 03801
VELOPMENT
UTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
TO: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
FROM: David R. Mullen, Executive Director < 24—
RE: Signage Change
DATE: December 10, 2019

******************************************************************************

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor
Revisions to Existing Signs” adopted by the Board on June 20, 2005, I am pleased to report that

PDA has approved a minor signage change request to change existing signage at property located
at 130 International Drive as follows:

Replace the Andover Healthcare monument sign and the signage on the metal
canopy to read Milliken; the monument signage will be the same footprint and
signage over the door will be in the same location but smaller in size.

This change is to reflect a change in tenancy.

Photos have been attached which depict both the existing and the proposed minor signage
changes referenced above.

The Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of Minor Revisions to
Existing Signs also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this
instance, Director Loughlin was consulted and granted his consent on November 22, 2019.

PABOARDMTG\2019\SIgnage Milliken 12-19.docx

OOO0OO TAKING YoOu THERE

e’ e N

www.peasadev org






tiha -ﬁ
. OLZEG

uun.i.sa.....rs....
ik
koig UL

STSC-TrP-eas xny
8915-8pb-cy8-l

Lo o

NDIS

Auedwog uhig wosh) 61070

B

IHOTIATH
———
INIMYND
—_— ]
Le-Z£065
3vas
e
a0°4) = ub/E
¥INoIsI0
—_— e
Asuryg g
$31vs
-
ubig Justtnuopy 4/
NolladsIa
—_
10 jeuopRwIRY] g |
NOiLY30T
—_
finowsyog - sweg
133044
_ ]
00 4 uaxiny
WINDLSND
_—
6102-)d9s-50
3iva
Hi inewsiseg

T

(1602 13pmod 1eapa uties /m) wnuuryy paysiug

(1Aun W | aukioe 825 #) anym
(1003 180p0 URS /M YW 0y ued) SpEZH SWS onjg uayyIw

HSINIL NLLYS IAVH OL SIHSINIS INIVE TTV xd!gnuﬂﬁ m: °]_ oo

bnunnuozuwiglgigiggl
osaq eyuusl Buisos vo pejiersy 3q o) iy may —

18002 ulis Buyites pavasy) pue soway —

NOLLVTIVLISNI

UmMoys se wioloq 1euiqes aius buoje pueq woununje 521" paysnig —

83/ wnujwnje o) pajunow ysny ‘ufits jo BPIS 30q uo (@, JAuiA yym ofio SUBYIIN,
PuB 18] I euo) I 0€ 1L voising sseayiasps, aukiae youys y, wno-ng —
Spud g do) 080" 'se38) YoRq pue ey PanN 524" T NIYE B INOLY

°qn 'bs ‘winje .7 +- autey 9jbus 9175 X 7 X o7 JWYE —

Jauiqea ubls wnujunje pajeougs) ‘pejeuwnyy-uoy /g —

Uolied0) ues uy adejdas pue ubls Eupsixe J0 asodsip pue ssowsy —

“TIVASNI GNV FUNLIVINNYIY

S31ON NOILINTOYd

¥ed5 0f Joy | Apg eouniejey Jog
NOIS BNILSIX3

353438 0L
35va AUNVYY SNILSIA o

038n-34 38 0L
3SV8 AUINVHY DNLLSHE

™

—

{AYVSSIIN Sv)

SQ0Y HOHINY ._<zoEnm<Jl

ubis qyuswnuoy 4/g ( 1 ) A1p

MUA SRl eI
MIIA NV1d

™

L3

7
|

1108 HOHINY INELSHA /2 8/€ 9§

_

9L

/

2770
AR

.

—
&

$1108 SNLINNOW
VI0.Z/1 INILSDA

3

» %2

= ddjeuen

Uplstaln w..,m__ua,w.__mm_w,*.

5

e 01—

o LZ

1—

£

.
J

«0:&




TR T
Ei 18-TE0ES 01206

e 61°1d3$-92
yinousiiod uoxiA

. OLZED

| et ———————

NOLLVZIHOHLNY NYOM

Grews 3wiaT wesniwa 931811
NDIT DNLOEVS
SESO-YYP-ChE ixE4

8915-8t-EV8-L

ANWI GO

NOIS

“edased ne 1o 0up

AT UE WOY 1S Ve
RO AT} Ave W) pAsjerTe
20 pondes ‘prinparin) 0q 1V A
2 gou o0 ‘Avedwey ubrs vosdy
PoiTtendua pu peurbue
o1 o1 venenang pue wirep s

Aundwog uts wesk) 61070

T__Hien P IETCT ST |
SNOISIATY
14-2£069
ORIMYYD
ol =il = b/
IS
Asueyy ‘g
U3INDIS30
supjuap g
$31v8
$133197 I8 309 Jopaixy
NOLLAYISID ]
i jeuoprwieiu] oEL
NOHYI0

yinowsyog - owss |
A33rowd

LTI
NIWO01END
§10Z-1d9g+60
3lve
NN yinomtiog
TN A

G ?\..”_).\Ww)mma. /5,,

fyarews 03 u1Rd) Gp6ZH SING 9nIg waNIN T

T mns 990100

{umoys se) Adouea (elaw 0] $1800US PUB SPMS Wy WM JUNON —
obioj pue s1anaf Bulisixe PIRISIp puR dACUISY —

JAUIA YU YSIP PUR SIONO] SN, WNUNUDIE Ojeid Y, 110-1n) ~
TIVASNI GNV JYNLOVANNVIV

S3LON NOILONAOHd

‘NOILVTIVLSNI

10GuAS (@,

k' SSVID H3IA0 Q3HALINID

|

ofeag 0f 10N | AjuQ 99ue18jeYy 104

ojeag 0L 10N | eadA)
VL3O BNILNNOW / MIIA QN3

X
—|

o ﬁ_v*. Wil

(0,038 SV) JAISIHAY
AJONYJ “LSIX3 NI SGNLS VL3N

(dAL) SLAN ¥3IVYS

431137 WANIWNTY
JLVd LNOLND

AJONV ONLLSIX3

ol=0E

NDIS QITTVLSNI

sda))a7 wnuwnfy aiejd yno-ng jojas (1) ‘A3

ofe5$ 01 10N | Amnp paussRjey J04
N9IS DNILSIXT

=P 8L T

F 4649




05 International

Urive Porismoutn, NH 03801

Director Allard:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the proposed design of the wayfinding signs for the
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM); all in accordance with the
memorandum of Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport Director
dated December 11, 201 9, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\PSM - Wayfinding signs 12-19.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasedev org






DA

AIRPORT ichine A f
MANAGEMENT M dum
cmoran
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director > L2
From: Paul E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport Director /\p‘k &
Date: December 11, 2019
Subj: Air Terminal Wayfinding Signs

The Airport continues to receive feedback that commercial passengers have difficulty distinguishing the
Commercial Airport Terminal from the New Hampshire Air National Guard Base and General Aviation
Facilities when travelling to the airport. In an attempt to better serve our commercial passengers | request
to replace the existing “Airport” signs with specific “Air Terminal” wayfinding signs.

The Air Terminal sign will incorporate the Allegiant Airline logo and the internationally recognized icon
for commercial air service. The design is based on the NH DOT highway wayfinding signs which is
reflective green with a dimension of 2 ft. tall by 4 ft. wide. The design will allow air carrier logos to be
added or removed with ease. The airline logo will be limited to a dimension of 5 inches by 8 inches. Five
existing signs will be replaced and two additional signs will be added for a total of seven signs on
Tradeport property. The following table describes the proposed signage locations:

Sign # | Address Sign Type | Sign Area (sq. ft.)
1 Woodbury Rd. Rotary Wayfinding | 8
2 Intersection Arboretum Dr. and Pease Blvd. Wayfinding | 8
3 24 New Hampshire Ave Wayfinding | 8
4 75 New Hampshire Ave Wayfinding | 8
5 1 Grafton Drive Wayfinding | 8
6 185 Grafton Drive Wayfinding | 8

With regard to PDA Board approval, the signs are consistent with NH DOT wayfinding signs and clearly
identify the commercial airport terminal. Inclusion of the commercial air carrier logo is not for
advertising but to assure the passenger is proceeding to the correct location for a commercial passenger
flight. At this month’s Board meeting, please ask the Board of Directors to approve the design of the
commercial airport wayfinding signs as proposed.

QOO0 TAKING YOU THERE
PABOARDMTG\20[9\Memo re-waytinding Signs.docx






O™ qH ; sarjss

WENITg) 11010 JAUIA :10]0) punoudyoeg sjeuaiey A
1IN} Ul pled pue 819]dwod s} J8pJo ay3 jpun Auedwo) usis Yanowis}og Jo Auadold ay3 ujewal }J0MLIE WO3SND pue sugisap IV ANVdWOD NOIS HLNOWSLHOd A8 ‘6T0Z LHOIYAJOD®
WM&MWMMMMWMM :9leq JUNLIVYNDIS “Jojjuow so/pue 1a3utid uo Suipuadap Asena
.uewee.n.@aﬁ Aew Jojod pue azis jenyoe LON aJe sudjsag LY00-9€-£09
I3UINKOS 0 W3 TV ‘[enoddde siyy 03 Suipiodde uonesLqe) dzIOYINE | 4aPIO AW sjuasaldal ‘JLON 3SVA1d | woarudisyanowsyiod

pue suopieoydads Alessadau ||e sulelu09 | 18y AjLIan PUE W04 5143 pamaiaal Ajinjales aaey | "994 [euoilippe ue aq [[im “uolsiaas Jad Sz¢
$10109 SN 03 s3yxew Yads pue 510103 WI0ISND *Pasn q ||im $10j0d Juied g [AUIA prepuR)S “GOf SIY) 03 SUORINIISUI 32 pasIeyd 3q [jim suolsiaai [euoptppy

"Auo suojsiaaa Z apnjouy 95z$ 19n0 siapuo ||y
[BGI3A puE sajou ‘s3uImelp snoiaaud ||e seoe|das pue JapJo uonanpoud [eulj ay) s} wioq 49PI0 SIY3 PUBISISPUN | | 10 woysiaes T spnpus 052$ J5pun S13pI0 [y

o ssquispy | WO UBISyInowsod ®91A18s 0L AINSIS NYNLIY 61/01/21 ‘NOISIA3Y







E

>
wn

E

INTERNATIONAL 55 ntzrnational Drive Portsmouth, MH 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director "~ =) -

From: Anthony 1. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel ‘/—@ﬁ

Date: December 10, 2019

Re: Election of Officers - Proposed Motions

******************************************************************************

In accordance with Article III, Section 3.4 of the PDA By-Laws, the Legal Department proposes
that the format and motions set forth below be followed in connection with the Annual Meeting
to be held on Thursday, December 19, 2019:

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Executive Director: “In accordance with Section 3.4 of the PDA By-Laws, our
agenda today includes the election of officers. Pursuant to
Section 3.6 of the PDA By-laws, the officers you need to
elect are a Vice-Chairman and a Treasurer of the Board, both
of whom will serve in such capacity for a term of one (1)
year or until the next Annual Meeting, whichever first

occurs.”
I. Meeting Chairman: “Do I have a motion for election of a Vice-Chairman?”’
Board Member: I move that we elect as Vice-Chairman

of the Pease Development Authority.”

Meeting Chairman: “Is there a second?”
“Is there any discussion on the motion?”
“I’1I call for a vote.”

II. Meeting Chairman: “Do I have a motion for election of a Treasurer?”

Board Member: “I move that we elect as Treasurer of
the Pease Development Authority.”

Meeting Chairman: “Is there a second?”
“Is there any discussion on the motion?”
“I’ll call for a vote.”

PABOARDMTG\2019\Officer Elections 12-19.docx

JOM) TAKING YOU THERE

www peasadav.org






-

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 Intsrnational Drive Portamouth, Ni 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director 1

From: Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General CounseW

Date: December 10, 2019

Re: Committee Appointment - Proposed Motion

******************************************************************************

In accordance with Article III, Section 3.4 of the PDA By-Laws, the Legal Department
proposes that the format and motion set forth below be followed in connection with the
appointment of Committee members at the Board meeting on Thursday, December 19, 2019:

COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

I. Executive Director: “Mr. Chairman, our agenda today also includes, in
accordance with Sections 3.4 and 3.9.4 of the PDA By-
Laws, the appointment by the Chairman of Directors to
Committees. [ would ask you to make your appointments
at this time.”

Chairman: “I hereby appoint the following Committee members. . .”

“Further, I will again review the committee appointments
after the City of Portsmouth has appointed an individual to
fill its position on the Board given the retirement of
Director Bohenko. This will be done in an effort to assure
that there are no conflicts, to affirm that the newly
appointed individual has an interest of being on the
committee, as well as the necessary skill sets which may be
required for the specific committees.”

PABOARDMTG\2019\Committee Appt 12-19.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE

wWww peassdav org






PDA COMMITTEE LISTING — EFFECTIVE December 10,2019

Executive Committee

Kevin H. Smith, Chair

Peter Loughlin, Vice Chairman
Robert Allard, Treasurer

Staff Contact: Mullen/Hinchee

Finance Committee

Robert Allard, Chair

John Bohenko

Margare;t Lamson

Staff Contact: Mullen/Canner

Airport Committee

Kevin H. Smith, Chair
Robert Allard

Margaret Lamson

Staff Contact: Brean/Stowell

Capital Improvement and
Land Planning Committee
Peter Loughlin, Chair

Robert Allard

Frank Torr

Neil Levesque

Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Golf Committee

John Bohenko, Chair

Robert Allard

Franklin Torr

Staff Contact: Mullen/DeVito

Audit Committee
John Bohenko, Chair
Peter Loughlin

Neil Levesque

Staff Contact: Canner

Standing Committees

Marketing and Economic Development
Committee

Peter Loughlin, Chair

Neil Levesque

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Mullen

Zoning Adjustment & Appeals Committee
Frank Torr, Chair

Peter Loughlin

Kevin H. Smith

Staff Contact: Hinchee/Stowell

Ad Hoc Advisory Committees

Transportation Management Committee
Margaret Lamson, Chair

John Bohenko

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Stowell

Port Committee

Peter Loughlin, Chair

John Bohenko

Frank Torr

Neil Levesque

Ex Officio: Chair DPH Advisory Council
Staff Contact: Mullen/Marconi

Legal Bill Review
Kevin H. Smith, Chair
Peter Loughlin

Frank Torr

Staff Contact: Hinchee

Notes: Executive Committee must have Board Chairman as Executive Committee Chair and Board Vice-Chair as Executive
Committee Vice-Chair. Finance Committee must have Board Treasurer as Chairman of Finance Committee. Other than that,
each Committee must have a minimum of three Directors appointed to each Committee with a Chairman selected from such
appointees; appointments to Committees are at sole discretion of Board Chairman.

PABOARD DIRECTORS INFO\Committee Lists\Committee List 12-19-19.docx






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL S8 International Drive Porismouth, MM 03801
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM

Date: December 10, 2019

To: PDA Employees — Non-Classified

From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <J@#t~

Subject: 2020 Holiday Schedule

The following days will be holidays for all PDA full-time employees during 2020:

New Year’s Day Wednesday 01/01/20
Martin Luther King/Civil Rights Day Monday 01/20/20
Presidents’ Day Monday 02/17/20
Memorial Day Monday 05/25/20
Independence Day Observed Friday 07/03/20
Labor Day Monday 09/07/20
Columbus Day Monday 10/12/20
Veterans’ Day Wednesday 11/11/20
Thanksgiving Thursday 11/26/20
Day after Thanksgiving Friday 11/27/20
Christmas Day Friday 12/25/20

Full-time employees shall, on July 1, accrue and will be entitled to, two (2) floating holidays of
the employee’s choice. However, in the event an employee does not utilize the floating holidays
within one (1) year of the accrual, such floating holidays shall be forfeited. Floating holidays
may not be utilized in hourly increments and must be taken as a full day off from work.

PABOARDMTG\201912020 Holidays.docx

OOCOC TAKING YOU THERE

www.peasadaey oryg






1N
L

PEASE

AIRPORT 38 Airtine Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801
MANAGEMENT 603,433 6536

Memorandum

+5Y
To:  Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Director/ PSM Airport Directorj

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison <5
Date: 12/12/2019

Subj: Noise Report for November, 2019

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received two noise inquiries in November, 2019
concerning fixed wing aircraft.

One inquiry was from a resident in Dover, NH concerning a C-17, a large military cargo aircraft.
The caller was concerned that the aircraft was flying too low. The Portsmouth air traffic
controllers give permission for the plane to depart, but the climb out practices are determined by
the aircraft’s capabilities and the departure controller. The aircraft must climb at least 200 ft.
per nautical mile.

The second inquiry was from a resident of Eliot, ME concerning a small single engine aircraft
that appeared to be flying low and circling around his property. Portsmouth air traffic
controllers are responsible for aircraft departures from Pease, but are not responsible for what
the aircraft does after that. We are unable to determine if the aircraft even departed from
Portsmouth International Airport.

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are
researched and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have
indicated that call backs are unnecessary.

PABOARDMTG\2019\memo re-Noise for November 2019.doc

OO TAKING YOU THERE






55 Iniernational Drive Portsmouin, NH G380

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to expend funds up to $40,376.75 for the following legal
services rendered to the Pease Development Authority:

1. Kutak Rock, LLP

Through November 30, 2018 $§ 328.25*
$  328.25%
2. Sheehan Phinney Bass + Green
October 1 - October 31,2019 $14,210.00
October 1 - October 31,2019 $10,330.50
November 1, - November 30,2019 $12,412.00
November 1, - November 30,2019 $ 3.096.00
$40.,048.50
Total $40,376.75

“The balance will be paid by the City of Portsmouth.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Legal Services 12-1 9.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE






KUTAK ROCK LLP

WASHINGTON, D.C.
Telephone 202-828-2400
Facsimile 202-828-2488

Federal ID 47-0597598

November 6, 2019

Suzanne M. Woodland
Deputy City Attorney
City of Portsmouth

1 Junkins Ave.
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Lynn Hinchee

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03861

Check Remit To:
Kutak Rock LLP

PO Box 30057

Omaha, NE 68103-1157

Wire Transfer Remit To:
ABA #104000016

First National Bank of Omaha
Kutak Rock LLP

A/C #24-690470

Reference: Invoice No. 2627949
Client Matter No. 294603-1

Invoice No. 2627949

294603-1
Re:  General
For Professional Legal Services Rendered
TOTAL FOR SERVICES RENDERED $615.00
DISBURSEMENTS
Freight and Postage 0.50
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 0.50
TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE $615.50
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION AND/OR WORK PRODUCT






Pease Development Authority Nov 20, 2019 PAGE 5

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.0O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY

RE: Permit Implementation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $14,210.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $0.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $14,210.00

BALANCE DUE: $14,210.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.,

AMOUNT PAID... §$

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan. com,
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly.






Pease Development Authority Nov 22, 2019 PAGE 4

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN pa
1000 ELM STREET
P.O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MATLBACK SUMMARY

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167
BILLING ATTORNEY:Robert P Cheney

TOTAL FOR PROFESSTIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $2,958.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $7,372.50

TOTAL THIS BILL: $10,330.50

BALANCE DUE: $10,330.50

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID. .. S

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www. sheehan. com,
scroll to the bottom and click » ClientPay " or contact our office directly.






Pease Development Authority Dec 11, 2019 PAGE 5

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.O. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MATLBACK SUMMARY

RE: Permit Implementation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $12,412.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $0.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $12,412.00

BALANCE DUE: $12,412.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID... $

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www. sheehan. com,
scroll to the bottom and click * ClientPay " or contact our office directly.






Pease Development Authority Dec 10, 2019 PAGE 4

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA
1000 ELM STREET
P.O0. BOX 3701
MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MATLBACK SUMMARY

RE: Trade Port - General Representation

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167
BILLING ATTORNEY:Robert P Cheney

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: $3,096.00
TOTAL EXPENSES: $0.00

TOTAL THIS BILL: $3,096.00

BALANCE DUE: $3,096.00

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the
client/case number on all related correspondence.

AMOUNT PAID... $

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com,
scroll to the bottom and click ClientPay " or contact our office directly.






o]
z

national

Drive Forts

mouth

N 03807

U__
> m
c<
M=o
U -4
o b
o |-
]
-=
~ m
1|~

Director Torr:

MOTION

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby

authorizes the Executive Director to conduct a voluntary 2019 annual

leave buy-back program for qualified PDA employees on the terms and

conditions set forth in the memorandum from David R. Mullen, Executive
Director, dated December 10, 2019 and attached hereto.

NARESOLVES\2019\Annual Leave Buy Back 12-19.docx

www.peasedev.org

JOV TAKING YOU THERE






m

mouih, NH 033801

tional Drive Por

INTERNATIONAL S
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
Memorandum

To: PDA Board of Directors

From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director /}Z’&A/

Date: December 10, 2019

Subj: Annual Leave Buy-back 2019

CC: Tanya Coppeta, Irv Canner

Based upon recent internal discussions with senior staff, I am requesting that the Pease Development
Authority (PDA) Board of Directors authorize the implementation of a voluntary Annual Leave Buy-back
program for 2019,

Historically, this has been a popular program with our employees as we have had upwards of 60% of
eligible employees participate in this program since it was initially introduced in 2009. As you may recall,
the program allows full-time, non-classified, eligible employees to “cash out” up to 40 hours of annual
leave while mandating that the employee maintain a balance of not less than 40 hours after the draw
down. The program also gives the employee the option to receive payment in either 2019 or 2020. The
buy-back is based on the employee’s rate of pay as of December 11, 2019.

The benefit of the program is two-fold. First, it provides the participating employee the opportunity to
receive incremental cash during the holiday season. Second, it benefits the PDA by lowering the vacation
liability we carry on the balance sheet, which is currently in excess of $400,000.

Based upon preliminary information, it is expected that approximately 25 employees will elect to
participate in this voluntary program. With this assumption, we anticipate that the cash flow impact to
the PDA will be approximately $40,000.

Thank you for your consideration.

P:\BOARDMTG\2019\Annual Leave buyback 12_11 FINAL.docx

OOy TAKING YOU THERE






Z
-
m

ny

LTy el Dieyrdarmeg it il a0
etional Drve Porfsmouth N 03801

o1l-
»>m

o=
(o]
z

c<

— ™ l>
T |z
oC|»
- m

<Z|,
el

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”") Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to direct PDA staff to
begin drafting proposed amendments to the PDA Land Use Controls related
to the construction and post-construction stormwater program and the
illicit discharge detection and elimination program, and to consult with the
planning departments of both Newington and Portsmouth with regard to
the proposed programs’ language; all in accordance with the memorandum
of Maria J Stowell, P.E., Manager, Engineer dated December 12, 2019:
attached hereto.

NARESOLVES\2019\Land Use Controls 12- 19.docx

(OO TAKING YOU THERE

wWww.peassdeyv org






MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive DireclorW

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager Q[U“lqu

Date: December 12, 2019

Subject: Land Use Control Amendments for Construction and Post Construction Stormwater
Program

In conjunction with PDA’s pending individual stormwater discharge permit and the CLF Settlement
Agreement, PDA staff along with our consultants will be drafting proposed language to amend the
PDA Land Use Controls. The amendments will be used to assist in addressing measures to control
pollutants in construction and post-construction site runoff and the illicit discharge detection and
elimination programs, and will include practices to be followed by, among others, designers,
contractors and facility operators.

Typically, the first steps in the promulgation of Land Use Controls are authorization from the PDA
Board and coordination with PDA’s land use enforcement agents, the City of Portsmouth and the Town
of Newington.

At next week’s Board meeting please seek authorization for the PDA staff to begin drafting proposed
amendments to the PDA Land Use Controls related to the construction and post-construction
stormwater program, and the illicit discharge detection and elimination program, and to consult with
the planning departments of Newington and Portsmouth regarding the proposed programs’ language.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\ConPostconProgram.docx

TAKING YOU THERE

GO ADT A W DA ARG sy o

A R SR






Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council
555 Market St.

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Tel 603-436-8500

Fax 603-436-2780

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 13,2019

PRESENT: Roger Groux, Chairman

Jeff Gilbert, Treasurer

Erik Anderson

Brad Cook

Chris Snow

Geno Marconi, Secretary, Director, DPH

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 7:11 pm after a presentation by Maine Marine Composites on
the Healy Wave Energy Buoy project.

APPROVE MINUTES
Chris S. made a motion to accept the October 9, 2019 minutes, Brad seconded, no further
discussion, the council voted and the motion carried.

FINANCE REPORT

Jeff commented there appears to be a significant variance between the budget and actual
operating income. Geno reported that the report is early in the year, and only goes through
September. The Division will start making up the difference in moorings in January and
February. Also, the busy season for salt is just kicking in, the recent ship we had here was 42,000
metric tons of salt and equated into over $80,000 of revenue. Another ship will be coming the
first week in December. Jeff said it sounds like it’s just a matter of timing and Geno confirmed
that it was.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Geno reported on 2 items from the PDA October board meeting:

1- The dredging contract in Hampton/Seabrook was awarded to the lowest bidder, Pepperell
Cove Marine Services. This is for removing and replacing the moorings during the dredging.

2- Geno reported the State legislature appropriated $3.25 million to replace the failed seawall at
the Portsmouth Fish Pier, with that the Division received a proposal from Appledore for
design and permitting the project. The Division didn’t proceed with the project until it was
confirmed that the accounts were set up and the funds were available to us. The proposal was
approved by the PDA board at their October 17" meeting and is for $324,046.00. Prelim
design should be available within 60 days, the draft wetlands permit should be ready mid-
December. One of the big concerns is if they will require us to do the in water work during
the dredge window, which is from November to March. We are hoping to get construction
started this coming summer,

Geno reported the Port has been busy with the salt business.

Geno then reported that he went to the CBOC to get authorization to expend $5,003,025 as a

match for the BUILD grant, which was approved. The next step is to go to the Fiscal Committee

and the Executive Council. The draft agreement will be presented to the AG’s office for review

prior to going to either of those. Roger asked if there is an anticipated completion date and Geno

explained the BUILD grant funds need to be completely expended by September of 2025 so to be

cautious we have worked backwards from that date to set goals and a substantially complete date

that doesn’t put us in a corner in case something goes wrong. When he gets final document

Page1 of 3




(agreement) he will provide it to the PAC.
Roger asked if the entrance closures onto 95 will create a problem for the salt trucks going to
Southern Maine. Geno said the trucks will have to go on the bypass and merge onto 95.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Fisheries- Before going into his Fisheries report, Erik asked about the fish pier and AME’s
proposal of $325,000 which has a level of detail that he can understand but he expressed concerns
that they’ve had a substantial amount of work into that facility there since they did the conditional
survey some time ago and curious as to why they are getting $325,000 to do another engineering
study. Geno explained it is a totally different engineering study. We’ve got 44 years out of the
PFP seawall, the wall will be replaced with a wall similar to Hampton so if it fails in the future it
will not fail to the degree that it has. The past condition survey was requested for a proposal to
replace and/or repair the entire facility. Then the seawall failed and we asked them to look at the
most important factor to replacing the wall and they determined it is the tiebacks and that is when
they dug the hole and inspected the tiebacks. Discussion continued regarding the tiebacks, the
anchor system, the whaler, the past concept study, the new proposal, and the construction
schedule. Director indicated his frustration is that it may not start for another year due to
wetlands permits and having to do the work during the dredge window. If it is determined that
the work does not have to be done during the dredge window the project can be expedited at that
point. Erik reiterated that the longer the wall stays in the condition that it’s in it will continue to
worsen. Geno said to take in consideration that the entire pier is built the same way and that is
what is keeping him up at night. If it continues to erode the pier is at the risk of being shut down.
Erik expressed concern over the estimated cost. Geno said that there are 2 things driving the cost
of this project, 1-the use of the barge crane rather than a land side crane is expensive due to daily
equipment rentals, and 2-construction costs across the board have increased by 40%. Geno also
mentioned that the proposals (from AME) are negotiated prior to the Division bringing it before
the PDA board. Roger brought the conversation to a close by saying the good news is we have
the money to fix the pier and we may be able to do it faster than we thought.

Regarding the Fisheries, Erik reported that the lobster season is winding up, there is 1 (one) boat
that is ground fishing out of Hampton, it’s a slow time of year all around. Erik reported that the
wind energy task force (BOEM) doesn’t appear to have any local fishery representation at the
table. They are concerned about the transmission lines and after extensive research he hasn’t seen
any studies done or answers on the topic. Bottom line, the Fisheries have a concern about
potential offshore wind and energy transmission lines. Erik mentioned he has sent a letter to the
Governor to ask for a place at the table for the Fisheries industry.

Government-Ned said he has no new information on the Market St. extension project but has
requested an update from Peter Rice. Roger asked if they are going to build a rotary (at the end
of Deer St.), and Ned said it is in the budget but won’t be done for about 5 years. Roger thanked
Geno for his input to the City and Geno said the City was responsive to his concerns, they put
mountable curbs on the median strip and kept the curb widths at their current width. So the lines
are going to be narrowed, but the width of the road is not changing. Ned mentioned the City is
extremely supportive of the Port.

Moorings- Chris reported that the commercial licensing and permit renewal days are Dec 10 and
Jan 7™ and there is a flyer in the packet.

PDA liaison- Roger reported that Lonza is seeking authority to build a 7 story parking garage
which is indicative of the amount of jobs they are expecting.

Maritime/Public Affairs- Geno reported on Don’s behalf, he said the PMC has been talking
about next year’s events and Geno told them that before they (the PMC) commit to anything they

Page 2 of 3



10.

need to be sure to talk to him about the availability of the dock here at Market St. pending
construction etc. The fish pier will not be available.

Dredging- Geno reported on Chris H.’s behalf. Hampton/Seabrook is being done now. The
Division has the money to do Rye, we need to do some sampling in the State Anchorage. We
received a proposal from the environmental consultants and it is still being worked on by Tracy
and Geno. The dredge disposal site has been approved, it should be Isles of Shoals South. There
is some work being done on keeping the Arundel site open. Erik asked if Isles of Shoals North
site has a cap. Geno answered that the new shoals site was based on the material coming out of
the turning basin, if some of that material can be diverted for beach nourishment it will open up
some space for other dredge spoils. Geno indicated that is why the sampling needs to be done at
the state anchorage in Rye, to determine if it is compatible with that permitted site.

Geno reported that he co-authored a letter to the congressional delegation (Senator Jeanne
Shaheen) regarding the turning basin with Chris Williams, Coastal Coordinator for DES. The
Water Resources Development Act (WRDA) is going to be presented and we would like the
turning basin to be included again. Geno did reach out to the Port partners on the river and
encouraged them to do the same. Geno mentioned this body also penned a letter to Senator
Shaheen.

Recreational Piers- Brad reported that all is quiet and that the Port staff did a great job with the
float removals this year and everything is closed up tight for the winter.

NEW BUSINESS

Roger mentioned the support letter for WRDA.

Roger reported there was a meeting held with DOS that included Commissioner Quinn, Deputy
Commissioner Bailey, DMV Director Bielecki, Director Marconi, Chief Harbormaster Tracy
Shattuck, and the new state police captain that’s going to be overseeing Marine Patrol.
Commissioner Quinn’s showed some interest in improving the safety and access of the ocean.
Roger said he pointed out some inequities with the registration system and with that there is
another meeting coming up in December with the DMV Director and Deputy Commissioner
Bailey regarding how the registration fees are divided. Roger reported we have a very good
situation with Senators Waters, Sherman, D’ Allesandro, and Clark and if it got to the point where
we needed to push some legislation through we would most likely have their support. Jeff
indicated the Senate is typically able to take new bills until the beginning of January and there are
ways to tack stuff on if needed. Roger indicated if we can work jointly with DOS it would be a
lot easier.

OLD BUSINESS
No old business.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Peter Welch commented that the Town of Newington planning board or building inspectors have
not heard from Mahoney for the $25 million pier. Roger commented that he is sure they will be
along sooner or later, and that they are a huge operation up and down the East Coast. Mahoney is
Granite State Minerals. Their locations go from Philadelphia to Maine.

PRESS QUESTIONS
There were no members of the press present.

ADJOURNMENT
Jeff made a motion to adjourn, Erik seconded, all were in favor and the meeting adjourned at 7:50
P.M.

Page 3 of 3






PEASE

l__r‘:IE_R NATIONAL 555 Markst Sirest, Suite | Partsmouth, N D280
PORTS AND HARBORS

To: David Mullen, Executive Director W\/

From: Geno Marconi, Director ﬁ

Date: December 9, 2019

Subject: Heidi & Elisabeth Fisheries, LLC. Right of Entry extension request

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) received a request from Heidi & Elisabeth
Fisheries, LLC (“Heidi”) to exercise its first option to extend its right of entry for use of space at the
Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier facility at Pierce Island for an additional year. Heidi has been a
responsible tenant and continues to provide a valuable service to the local seafood community.
Therefore, the Division requests your approval of the extension of Heidi’s right of entry as required
by the original approval of the right of entry by the PDA Board of Directors at its December 20,
2018 meeting. The right of entry shall continue under the same terms and conditions, which include
following items:

PREMISES: Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier at Pierce Island.

PURPOSE: Provide a location for Heidi to store equipment and prepare fresh fish for
shipment.

TERM: January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.

FEE: $880.00 per month for the duration of the term.

INSURANCE: Minimum insurance coverage to include Vessel Protection and

Indemnity Insurance in the amount of $100,000 to $1,000,000 to be determined
on a case by case basis depending on the size of the vessel and endorsed for
dockside liability as the same may be required or appropriate in
connection with the individual operations of each entity doing business on
state property. Coverage amounts and types may change from time to
time contingent upon the nature and scope of operations. Said policy shall
include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the State of New Hampshire and the
PDA-DPH and provide that such coverage shall be primary and non-contributing
with respect to any coverage, self-insured or otherwise, which may be carried by the
State or PDA-DPH. Amounts and types may change from time to time contingent
upon the nature and scope of operations of each entity authorized to conduct business
at Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier. Insurance provided pursuant to the ROE may
not be cancelled without providing PDA with at least thirty (30) days advance written
notice.

() TAKING YOU THERE

fax! B03-435-2780 WW N Gegseday o






ADDITIONAL TERMS
AND CONDITIONS:
I.

2.

(98]

10.

Heidi agrees to comply with all Administrative Rules and Policies
promulgated by PDA-DPH.

Prior to occupancy, Heidi and the PDA-DPH will inspect the
Premises and document the current condition. Heidi will be
responsible for maintaining the building for any damages occurring
after the inspection.

Heidi will maintain the floor drain to ensure proper drainage.

Heidi will share with the PDA-DPH the cost of maintenance of the
refrigeration system using a service provider approved by the PDA-
DPH.

Heidi will keep the Premises and the areas adjacent to the Premises
clean and free from debris and trash.

Equipment will be stored as to prevent obstruction of other activities
and in a manner that is safe.

Pallets will be stacked as to prevent obstruction of other activities
and in a'manner that is safe. - :

Heidi will use the hoist in accordance with the Hoist Safety
recommendations (attached).

Only owners, captains, and employees of Heidi will be allowed
access to the Premises.

Any additional requirements as the PDA-DPH may from time to
time deem necessary due to prevailing conditions.






P

INTERNATIONAL

\
b,

—
EASE

e

DE
A

VELOPMENT
UTHORITY

MOTION

Director Lamson:

In accordance with the provisions of 12-G:42 X (c), the Pease
Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors hereby approves of the
Final Adoption of Administrative Rules Chapter Pda 501 - 511 and Pda 513
- 515, as attached hereto, and authorizes the Division Director of Ports
and Harbors to take any necessary or recommended action in accordance
with RSA 541-A:14, in furtherance of this matter: all in accordance with
the Memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated December 6,
2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\DPH-500 Rules-Final Adoption 12-19.docx

000 TAKING YOU THERE

wWww peasedey. o 5






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

59

[&3]

&
3)

i Slreel, Sulle 1 Portsmouth, NH 03801

PORTS AND HARBORS

Date: December 6, 2019

To: Pease Development Authority, Board of Directors

From: Geno Marconi, Division Director W

Subject: Final Adoption, Administrative Rules; Pda 501-511 and Pda 513-515

Moorings and Anchorages, Notice number 2019-69

In accordance with RSA 12-G:42 X (c), the Pease Development Authority (“PDA™),
acting through its Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division™), shall adopt rules pursuant
to RSA 541-A. As you know, the Division has been working to readopt, with amendments,
Administrative Rules Chapter Pda 501-511 and Pda 513-515 Moorings and Anchorages (the
“Rules”) and is now in the final stages of the process.

In accordance with RSA 12-G:44, IV, the Rules final proposal-annotated text was
submitted to and approved by the PDA Board of Directors on September 19, 2019. On
September 20, 2019, the Division submitted the Pda 500 rules final proposed-fixed text to the
Office of Legislative Services (“OLS™) in preparation for the Joint Legislative Committee on
Administrative Rules (“JLCAR”) meeting on October 17, 2019. Prior to the JLCAR
meeting, the Division received comments back from an OLS attorney who recommended the
PDA submit a Conditional Approval Request to JLCAR to address two substantive items.
That request was submitted to OLS on October 11, 2019. With that, JLCAR conditionally
approved the Final Proposal at their meeting on October 17. In accordance with RSA 541-A,
the Division prepared a Conditional Approval Response (“CAR”) which was presented to
and approved by the PDA Board of Directors at its November 21, 2019, meeting. The
approved CAR was submitted to OLS on November 22,2019. On December 2, 2019, OLS
provided confirmation that the Board has complied with the conditional approval and that the
Pda 500 rules may be adopted (attached).

Therefore, the Division of Ports and Harbors recommends that the PDA Board of
Directors approve the Final Adoption of Administrative Rules Chapter Pda 501-511 and Pda
513-515 (attached) to be submitted to OLS and become effective the day after they are
received at the Office of Legislative Services all pursuant to RSA 541-A:14.







Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 1

Readopt Pda 501 — Pda 502.03, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as follows:
CHAPTER Pda 500 MOORINGS AND ANCHORAGES
PART Pda 501 PURPOSE AND SCOPE

Pda 501.01 Purpose. The purpose of Pda 500 is to establish provisions for administering a system
for permitting moorings to be set and used in state tidal waters.

Pda 501.02 Scope. Pda 500 shall apply to all mooring permits issued. Any person who sets, seeks
to set, or uses a mooring in state tidal waters shall comply with Pda 500.

PART Pda 502 DEFINITIONS

Pda 502.01 “Business organization™ means any enterprise, whether corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, proprietorship, association, business trust, real estate trust or other form of organization,
that is organized for gain or profit, carrying on any business activity within the state, except such enterprises
as are expressly made exempt from income taxation under the United States Internal Revenue Code as
defined in RSA 77-A:1, XX.

Pda 502.02 “Channel” means the portion of a waterway delineated by navigational aids as
designated by the federal government or by the division.

Pda 502.03 “Collective mooring area” means the shorefront property mooring area of a marina or
condominium within which the holder of a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit(s) is authorized
to set commercial moorings for hire in accordance with a mooring plan approved by the authority pursuant
to Pda 506.09(h).

Readopt with amendment Pda 502.04, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as
follows:

Pda 502.04 “Commercial entity” means a business organization engaged for profit in a fishing or
charter boat business or other water-dependent business.

Readopt Pda 502.05 - Pda 502.19, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as follows:

Pda 502.05 “Commercial mooring for hire” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to
Pda 500 and owned by a:

(a) Marina duly registered to do business in the state of New Hampshire or a condominium, which
in turn rents, leases, or otherwise authorizes use of the mooring, if a marina, to a member of the general
public or, if a condominium, to a member of the condominium unit owners’ association, on a daily or
seasonal basis; or

(b) Shorefront property owner who in turn rents or leases the mooring to a tenant of the shorefront
property who occupies the shorefront property.

Pda 502.06 “Commercial use mooring” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to Pda
500 and owned by a commercial entity for use only by the commercial entity.

Pda 502.07 “Commercial vessel” means:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 2

(a) A commercial fishing vessel or charter boat used primarily for commercial use purposes, which
use is verified by a commercial vessel affidavit and the issuance to the vessel owner of a commercial vessel
registration by the New Hampshire department of safety; or

(b) A vessel used primarily for commercial use purposes to further the purposes of a water-
dependent business.

Pda 502.08 “Commercial vessel affidavit” means the notarized documentation submitted to and
accepted by the New Hampshire department of safety pursuant to RSA 270-E:2, lI(e).

Pda 502.09 “Condominium” means real property and any interests therein, with frontage located on
state tidal waters that has lawfully submitted to regulation as a condominium in accordance with RSA 356-
B.

Pda 502.10 “General use mooring” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to Pda 500
and owned by a member of the general public for use only by the mooring permit holder.

Pda 502.11 “Marina” means a shorefront location including, but not limited to, a boat yard or yacht
club, with access to the water and parking, providing anchorage, docks, or moorings and open to the general
public.

Pda 502.12 “Mean high-water mark” means “mean high water” as determined by the United States
National Geodetic Survey, and indicated on maps of the United States National Geodetic Survey.

Pda 502.13 “Mean low water line” means the “mean low water line” as determined by the United
States National Geodetic Survey, and indicated on National Oceanic Atmospheric Administration (NOAA)
Coast Survey Charts, United States — East Coast, Maine — New Hampshire, North American Datum of
1983, published by the United States Department of Commerce in 1984.

Pda 502.14 “Moor” means to attach, make fast, or otherwise secure a vessel to a mooring.

Pda 502.15 “Mooring field” means an area or areas within state tidal waters where the chief harbor
master or designee has determined that 3 or more moorings can be set.

Pda 502.16 “Mooring location” means the place in state tidal waters where a mooring is set.

Pda 502.17 “Mooring subfield” means an area of a subdivided mooring field, as provided in Pda
509.01.

Pda 502.18 “Nearshore area” means that portion of a mooring field or mooring subfield, as described
in (a) or (b) below, whichever is the greater:

(a) The portion within 50 feet of the mean high-water mark; or
(b) The portion from the mean high-water mark to the mean low water line.
Pda 502.19 “Non-revenue mooring” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to Pda 500

and owned by a state agency as defined in RSA 21-G:5, IIl, and for which the division waives the mooring
permit fee.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 3

Readopt with amendment Pda 502.20, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 502.20 “Not-for-profit entity” means any enterprise, whether corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, proprietorship, association, business trust, real estate trust, or other form of organization
carrying on any activity within the state consistent with the stated purposes of such organization and
operating on a nonprofit basis, including, but not limited to, such enterprises as are expressly made exempt
from income taxation under the United States Internal Revenue Code as defined in RSA 77-A:1, XX.

Readopt Pda 502.21-502.22, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as follows:

Pda 502.21 “Open to the general public” means that any person is allowed the use of facilities with
or without the payment of a fee or other consideration, subject to applicable health and safety restrictions.

Pda 502.22 “Pennant” means a line by which a vessel is made fast to a mooring buoy.

Readopt with amendment Pda 502.23, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as
follows:

Pda 502.23 “Shorefront property”:
(a) Means:

(1) Any property recognized as a legal building lot by a municipality with shore frontage on
state tidal waters;

(2) A loton state tidal waters that is divided by a road so that the buildable portion of the lot is
on the opposite side of the road from the state tidal waters or divided by an exclusive right-of-
way which has been acquired as a result of an eminent domain proceeding which-resulted in
the break or loss of property between the property owner’s residence and the portion of the lot
with shore frontage; or
(3) A lot of record with shore frontage on state tidal waters; and
(b) Does not include:
(I) A deeded right-of-way;
(2) A right-of-way or right of access granted by lease or any other type of agreement; or
(3) Lots not contiguous to the shore.
Readopt Pda 502.24 — Pda 503.01, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as follows:
Pda 502.24 “Shorefront property owner” means an individual, trustee(s) of a trust, business
organization, or not-for-profit entity owning shorefront property. This term does not include the individual
members, owners, or tenants of a marina, condominium, condominium unit owners’ association, or related

associations.

Pda 502.25 “Shorefront property mooring” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to
Pda 500 within a shorefront property mooring area and owned by a shorefront property owner.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 4

Pda 502.26 “Shorefront property mooring area” means a water surface area relating to the shorefront
property of a shorefront property owner, marina, or condominium, determined by extending the side
boundary lines of the property owner’s lot, marina’s lot, or condominium’s common area perpendicular to
the shoreline into the state tidal waters out to, but not to cross, the channel, or, if there is no channel, to a
line midway between the low water mark of the shorefront property and the low water mark of the opposite
shore.

Pda 502.27 “Shorefront property mooring location” means the place where a shorefront property
mooring is allowed to be set within a shorefront property mooring area.

Pda 502.28 “Temporary seasonal mooring” means a mooring permitted by the division pursuant to
Pda 500 between April 1 and March 31 at the location of a general use mooring, shorefront property
mooring, or commercial use mooring, which location the permit holder has made available for temporary
seasonal use.

Pda 502.29 “Vessel used primarily for commercial use purposes” means a commercial vessel not
utilized for noncommercial use for more than 14 days cumulatively during the period from April 1 to March
31

Pda 502.30 “Wait list mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area” means a mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area for which the division has established a mooring wait list in accordance
with Pda 509.

Pda 502.31 “Water-dependent business” means a business organization, such as, but not limited to,
a restaurant, boat maintenance yard, wholesale or retail fishing business, or marine construction company,
seeking a commercial use mooring for the:

(a) Use of a commercial vessel to further the purposes of the water-dependent business; or

(b) Temporary use of customers, employees, subcontractors, and others who use the mooring in the
course of the business operations of the water-dependent business.

PART Pda 503 MOORING PERMITS REQUIRED; MOORING USE.

Pda 503.01 Mooring Permit Required. No person shall erect, install, maintain, use, have control
over, or set a mooring within the state tidal waters unless a complete mooring permit application has been
submitted to the division in accordance with Pda 500 and a mooring permit has been issued by the division.

Readopt with amendment Pda 503.02, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 503.02 Mooring Use: General Terms and Conditions.

(2) No mooring shall be set in state tidal waters unless permitted in accordance with Pda 500.

(b) Only one vessel shall be attached to a mooring.

(c) No vessel shall be attached to a mooring except the vessel for which the permit was approved,
unless the vessel attached to the mooring is a dinghy for the permitted vessel.

(d) No person other than those listed below shall use a mooring:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 5

(1) The holder of a permit for that specific mooring;

(2) The authorized temporary user of a commercial use mooring for which a commercial use
mooring permit was issued to a water-dependent business;

(3) The renter, lessee, or person otherwise authorized by the holder of a commercial mooring
for hire mooring permit to use a specific mooring;

(4) The authorized member(s) of a condominium unit owners’ association that holds a
commercial mooring for hire mooring permit;

(5) The tenant or lessee of shorefront property who occupies the property and rents or leases a
mooring from the shorefront property owner;

(6) The owner or operator of a vessel who has been directed orally, in writing, or by hand
signal, by the chief harbor master, the deputy chief harbor master, a harbor master, or an
assistant harbor master to secure such vessel to a mooring for which the vessel owner does not
hold a permit; or

(7) Any person whose vessel is in an emergency situation when failure to secure such vessel
to such mooring would otherwise present an imminent and substantial hazard to navigation or
to the safety of any passenger on such vessel.

(e) The holder of a commercial use mooring permit shall not rent or lease the mooring. The holder
of a commercial use mooring permit that is a water-dependent business as defined in Pda 502.3 1(b) may
allow temporary use of the mooring for business purposes by customers, vendors, or service providers.

(f) Only an individual shall be the holder of a general use mooring permit.

(g) The individual whose name appears on a general use mooring permit shall be an owner of the
vessel identified in the permit. '

(h) The individual, trust or trustee(s) of the trust, business organization, or not-for-profit entity
whose name appears on a shorefront property owner mooring permit shall be an owner of the vessel
identified in the permit.

(i) All moorings shall meet the equipment requirements of Pda 510.
(j) Moorings shall be located so as not to impede navigation or endanger other vessels.
(k) All moorings shall be subject to relocation in accordance with Pda 504.02.

() A water-dependent business as defined in Pda 502.3 1(b) shall maintain, on the premises, records
of all persons making temporary use of a mooring for which the water-dependent business holds a
commercial use permit. These records shall be open to inspection by the division director or designee at
any time during regular business hours.

(m) A marina or condominium unit owners’ association shall maintain, on the premises, records of
all persons making use of a commercial mooring for hire for which the marina or condominium unit owners’
association holds a commercial mooring for hire permit. These records shall be open to inspection by the
division director or designee at any time during regular business hours.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 6

(n) A shorefront property owner who holds a permit for a commercial mooring for hire shall
maintain records of all lessees occupying the shorefront property who rent or lease the mooring for hire.
These records shall be produced for inspection at the division office upon written request sent to the
shorefront property owner by the division director, within 10 business days of receipt of the request.

(0) A shorefront property owner may hold only one shorefront property permit for a mooring within
the shorefront property owner’s shorefront property mooring area dependent upon the person’s status as
shorefront property owner, and that permit may be a commercial mooring for hire or a shorefront property
mooring.

(p) Only one mooring permit under Pda 500 shall be issued for any one vessel, provided that 2
mooring permits may be issued for one vessel if one of the mooring permits is for a mooring location at the
[sles of Shoals.

(q) The granting of a mooring permit under Pda 500 shall not constitute authority to secure any
mooring or related equipment to any property above the mean high water mark.

Readopt with amendment Pda 504.01, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as
follows:

PART Pda 504 SETTING OF MOORINGS

Pda 504.01 Determination of Mooring Locations. The chief harbor master or designee shall
determine the location of a mooring for which a mooring permit has been issued in accordance with the
following criteria and procedures:

(a) The chief harbor master or designee shall consult with the permit holder or the permit holder’s
representative when the mooring location is being determined;

(b) The permit holder shall provide or arrange for the provision of the necessary mooring equipment
and the means to set the mooring; and

(c) The chief harbor master or designee shall designate the location where the mooring is to be set
so that:

(1) The mooring does not impede navigation or interfere with other vessels;
(2) The mooring placement accommodates the LOA and draft of the vessel; and

(3) The placement allows, to the extent practicable, the maximum use of the mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area without the relocation of existing moorings.

Readopt Pda 504.02 — Pda 505.02, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 504.02 Relocation of Moorings.

(a) The chief harbor master or designee shall require the owner of a mooring to relocate a mooring
under the following circumstances:

(1) The mooring is required to be relocated under Pda 510.04; or



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 7

(2) The chief harbor master or designee determines that the relocation of a mooring is necessary
in order to maximize, to the extent practicable, usage of a mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area to allow additional vessel(s) to be moored in the mooring field, mooring
subfield, or nearshore area.

(b) The owner of the mooring shall be responsible for the cost of relocating the mooring, except
when a relocation is required in order to accommodate another vessel under (a)(2) above. In such a case,
the owner(s) of the vessel(s) being accommodated shall be responsible for the cost of relocating the
mooring(s). If the owner(s) of the vessel(s) seeking accommodation declines to be responsible for the cost
of relocating the mooring(s), the existing mooring(s) shall not be relocated.

PART Pda 505 MOORING PERMITS

Pda 505.01 Types of Mooring Permits. The following types of mooring permits shall be issued
under the permit system established in Pda 500:

(a) General use mooring;
(b) Shorefront property owner mooring;
(¢) Commercial use mooring;
(d) Commercial mooring for hire mooring;
(e) Non-revenue mooring; and
(f) Temporary seasonal mooring for a:

(1) General use mooring; or

(2) Commercial use mooring.

Pda 505.02 Granting of Mooring Permits; Duration and Transferability of Permits.

(a) The division director or designee shall grant mooring permits pursuant to Pda 507, except as
specified for commercial mooring for hire mooring permits in Pda 506.09(h).

(b) A mooring permit shall be valid for a one-year period from April 1 to March 31 of the following
year. All mooring permits issued during the time period from April 1 to March 31 shall expire on March
31.

(¢} A mooring permit shall not be transferred to any other person, except as provided in Pda 508.

Readopt with amendment Pda 505.03, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 505.03 Determination of Suitability of a Replacement or Modified Existine Vessel for a
Permitted Mooring: Modification of Existing Mooring Permit.

(a) A mooring permit holder may seek a preliminary determination from the division of the
suitability of a permitted mooring for a replacement vessel to be acquired by the permit holder or for an



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 8

existing vessel that the permit holder seeks to modify and that is identified in a valid mooring permit in
accordance with the following procedures:

(1) The mooring permit holder may seek such preliminary determination by providing in
writing to the division the information specified in (b)(1)b. or (b)(2) below, as applicable;

(2) Upon receiving such a request for preliminary determination, the division shall determine
if the replacement vessel or the existing vessel after modification would meet the requirements
of (c)(1) below, as applicable; -

(3) If the division determines that the vessel to be acquired or modified would meet the
requirements of (c)(1) below, the division shall send notice of its preliminary determination in
writing to the mooring permit holder;

(4) The division shall not make any changes to the vessel information on the permit holder’s
mooring permit until the mooring permit holder has provided the division with the
documentation required under (b)(1) below for a replacement vessel or under (b)(2) below for
an existing vessel that will be modified; and

(5) The division shall withdraw its preliminary determination that a mooring would be suitable
for a replacement or modified vessel, if the information submitted for the preliminary
determination is incorrect or incomplete.

(b) If a mooring permit holder acquires a replacement vessel or modifies an existing vessel identified
in a permit as described in (e) below, the mooring permit holder shall, before attaching such replacement or
modified vessel to the permitted mooring:

(1) Ifthe vessel is a replacement vessel:
a. Notify the division in writing of the change in vessel;
b. Provide for the replacement vessel applicable information required under:
1. Pda 511.01(b)(8);
2. Pda 511.02(b)(9);
3. Pda 511.03(b)(10); or
4. Pda 511.05(b)(8);

c. Send to the division a copy of the replacement vessel registration, if the vessel is
required to be registered under New Hampshire law; and

d. Send to the division a photograph of the replacement vessel, if the vessel is not required
to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) Ifthe existing vessel identified in the permit has been modified as described in (e) below,
notify the division in writing of each specific modification made to the vessel; and

(3) Obtain from the division written confirmation of:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 9

a. Approval of the use of the mooring for the replacement or modified existing vessel,
under (c)(2) below; or

b. Satisfaction of the terms of conditional approval for the use of the mooring for the
replacement or modified existing vessel, under (c)(3) and (4) below.

(c) When the division receives a notification pursuant to (b) above, the division shall:

(1) Determine if the replacement vessel or the modified existing vessel named on the permit
can be moored at the permitted location in compliance with the requirements of Pda
504.01(c)(1) and (2);

(2) Approve the use of the permitted mooring for the replacement or modified existing vessel
and modify the permit to refer to replacement or modified existing vessel, if the division
determines that the mooring of the vessel would comply with the provisions cited in (1) above;

(3) Conditionally approve the use of the permitted mooring for a replacement or modified
existing vessel, if the division determines that the replacement or modified existing vessel
would comply with provisions cited in (1) and, in the case of a relocation:

a.. The relocation shall not reduce the total number of mooring locations existing
within a mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area at the time Jjust prior to
the relocation; and

b. The holder of the mooring permit sending notification to the division under (b)
above shall be responsible for the cost of relocating his or her mooring and for the
cost of relocating any other mooring(s) in the mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area which are relocated to accommodate the changed LOA or draft of
the replacement or modified existing vessel;

(4) After the holder of a mooring permit has received conditional approval under (3) above
and the required conditions are met, modify the permit to refer to the replacement or modified
existing vessel; and

(5) Deny approval of the use of the permitted mooring for the replacement or modified existing
vessel, if the division determines that:

a. The mooring location does not accommodate the LOA and draft of the replacement or
modified existing vessel, and:

1. It is not possible to relocate the mooring within the mooring field, mooring
subfield, or nearshore area in compliance with Pda 504.01(c)(1) and (2); or

2. The conditions for the relocation of a mooring under Pda 504.02 have not been
met; or

b. Mooring the replacement or modified existing vessel at the permitted mooring location
would impede navigation or interfere with other vessel(s) and:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 10

1. It is not possible to relocate the mooring within the mooring field, mooring
subfield, or nearshore area in compliance with Pda 504.01(c)(1) and (2); or

2. The conditions for the relocation of a mooring under Pda 504.02 have not been
met.

(d) If the division approves the modification of an existing permit under (c)(2) or (c)(4) above, the
division shall issue a modified permit to the permit holder, provided that the holder of the mooring permit
shall pay to the division an amount equal to the difference in the amount, if any, that the permit fee for the
modified permit exceeds the permit fee paid for the original permit. The expiration date of the modified
permit shall be the same as the originally issued permit. Upon expiration of the modified permit, the permit
holder may seek reissuance of the permit in accordance with Pda 506.04.

(e) Modification of an existing vessel shall consist of any change that affects vessel information for
an existing vessel as described in:

(1) Pda 511.01(b)(8);
(2) Pda 511.02(b)(9);
(3) Pda 511.03(b)(10); or
(4) Pda 511.05(b)(8).
Readopt with amendment Pda 505.04, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:
Pda 505.04 Updating Certain Information in a Mooring Permit. In order to maintain updated

information with the division, each permit holder shall notify the division in writing, within 30 business
days of the change, of any changes to information in the permit relating to:

(2) An applicant’s name, address, telephone number, or contact person as described in:
(1) Pda STL.01(b)(1)-(6);
(2) Pda 511.02(b)(1)-(7);
(3) Pda S11.03(b)(1)-(4), (6), (8)-(9);
(4) Pda 511.04(b)(1)-(4), (7)-(9); or
(5) Pda S11.05(b)(1)-(5), (7);
(b) Type of business organization as described in Pda 511.03(b)(7); or
(c) Organizational structure or nature of the business as described in Pda 511.04(b)(5) or (6).
Readopt Pda 506.01-Pda 506.03, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

PART Pda 506 MOORING PERMIT APPLICATIONS; PROCESSING OF INITIAL APPLICATIONS
AND APPLICATIONS FOR EXISTING MOORINGS



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 11

Pda 506.01 Mooring Permit Initial Applications: When Fee Returned. Each person seeking to set a
mooring within the state tidal waters shall submit a completed initial mooring application and permit form
in accordance with Pda 506.06, Pda 506.07, Pda 506.08, Pda 506.09, or Pda 506.10. If the division
determines that there are no mooring locations available in the mooring field, mooring subfield, nearshore
area, or at the location requested by the applicant, the division shall return the applicant’s initial application
and permit form and mooring permit application fee, and the applicant may file a mooring wait list
application in accordance with Pda 509 for a mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area. An
application for a mooring at a mooring location not previously permitted may be filed at any time.

Pda 506.02 Types of Mooring Permit Applications.

(a) General use mooring permit applications shall be used by general use and temporary seasonal
general use mooring permit applicants.

(b) Shorefront property owner mooring permit applications shall be used by shorefront property
mooring permit applicants.

(¢) Commercial use mooring permit applications shall be used by commercial use and temporary
seasonal commercial use mooring permit applicants.

(d) Commercial mooring for hire mooring permit applications shall be used by commercial mooring
for hire mooring permit applicants.

(e) Non-revenue mooring permit applications shall be used by state agencies.

Pda 506.03 Processing of Mooring Permit Applications. The division shall record the date and time
of receipt of each completed mooring permit application on the application.

Readopt with amendment Pda 506.04 — Pda 506.05, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as
follows:

Pda 506.04 Mooring Permit Applications for Existing Moorings.

(a) Except as provided in (f) and g below, no later than January 15 of each year, the division shall
mail mooring permit applications to current mooring permit holders. The division shall pre-enter all of the
permit holder’s information on the permit application relating to the applicant and the vessel, as provided
on the applicant’s current permit, except the date the applicant is required to specify when signing the
application.

(b) Applications shall be mailed to the permit holder at the address specified by the permit holder
on the mooring permit then in effect, or, if none is specified, to the permit holder’s permanent address.

(¢) A mooring permit holder shall only be able to reapply for a mooring permit by submitting an
application for the same type of mooring permit currently held, except that, if eligible:
(1) A shorefront property mooring permit holder may submit a permit application for a

commercial use or commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda 502.07(b);

(2) A shorefront property owner holding a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as
described in Pda 502.07(b) may submit a permit application for a shorefront property mooring



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 12

permit; and

(3) A general use, shorefront property, or commercial use mooring permit holder may notify
the division in writing at the time of a mooring permit reapplication that the:

a. Mooring permit holder will not be using his or her mooring location between April 1
and March 31 of the following year; and

b. Mooring location is available for use as a temporary seasonal mooring pursuant to Pda
506.11.

(d) Any applicant filing a mooring permit application in accordance with this section shall return
a completed application with the required information and documentation for the type of mooring applied
for as specified in Pda 511, and the permit fee, to the division’s office no later than March 1. Failure to
meet the application deadline, whether or not the applicant received an application form with information
pre-entered by the division, shall result in a denial in accordance with Pda 507, unless the applicant files a
completed application with the required information, documentation, permit fee, and late application fee
within 10 business days after March 1. An applicant who fails to comply with the March 1 deadline or the
late application deadline shall not submit an application under this section, but may make an application
pursuant to Pda 506.01, including possible placement on a wait list under Pda 509, unless the reason for the
late application was one of the reasons listed in Pda 514.04(d)(1)c. or Pda 514.05(d)(1)c. If the applicant
fails to comply with the March 1 deadline or the late application deadline for one of the reasons listed in
Pda 514.04(d)(1)c. or Pda 514.05(d)(1)c. and wishes to appeal the permit denial to the authority under Pda
514.06, the applicant shall first file his or her application for reconsideration with the division director under
Pda 514.03.

(e) If an application is in compliance with Pda 506.06, Pda 506.07, Pda 506.08, Pda 506.09, or Pda
506.10, as appropriate, and the division grants a permit under Pda 507, the division shall mail, by first class
mail, a photocopy of the permit to the mooring permit applicant within 10 business days of permit issuance.
The mailing shall be sent to the mooring permit applicant at the address specified by the applicant on the
mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

(f) When a current mooring permit holder makes a mooring location available for a temporary
seasonal mooring under (c)(3) above, the permit shall remain valid, provided that the permit holder
continues to own the vessel named in the permit or complies with Pda 505.03 if the vessel named in the
permit is modified or replaced.

(g) A general use mooring permit holder may submit an application to change the category of his or
her existing mooring to commercial at any time during the permit year provided he or she meets all of the
commercial mooring application requirements contained within Pda 506.08.

Pda 506.05 Mooring Permit Application: Alteration of Information Relating to Vessel Prohibited:
Correction of Certain Incorrect Pre-entered Information.

(a) When a current mooring permit holder makes an application for a mooring permit pursuant to
Pda 506.04, the applicant shall not alter information pre-entered on the application by the division relating
to the vessel. If any pre-entered information relating to the vessel identified in the permit in such an
application requires revisions, or if the applicant has a newly-acquired vessel, the applicant shall comply
with the requirements of Pda 505.03.

(b) If any pre-entered information as specified in (c) below is incorrect, the applicant shall make the



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 13

necessary correction(s) on the application form. The applicant shall return the signed and completed
application, the permit fee, and the vessel registration, on or before the deadline specified in Pda 506.04.
All applications pursuant to Pda 506.04 shall be returned to the division on or before the deadline specified
in Pda 506.04.

(c¢) The applicant shall correct, on the application form, any incorrect information relating to the
following:

(1) Any typographical or apparent clerical error, provided that no change to vessel information
shall be considered correction of a typographical or clerical error;

(2) Anapplicant’s name, address, telephone number, or contact person as described in:
a. Pda 511.01(b)(1)-(6);
b. Pda 511.02(b)(1)-(7);
c. Pda 511.03(b)(1)-(4), (6), (8)-(9);
d. Pda 511.04(b)(1)-(4), (7)-(9); or
e. Pda 511.05(b)(1)~(5), (7);
(3) Type of business organization as described in Pda 51 1.03(b)(7); or
(4) Organizational structure or nature of the business as described in Pda 51 1.04(b)(5) or (6).

Readopt Pda 506.06, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 506.06 General Use Mooring Permit; Application Requirements: Processing.

(a) Anapplicant for a general use mooring permit or temporary seasonal general use mooring permit
as provided in Pda 506.11(e)(1) shall obtain a general use mooring application form:

(1) In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

(2) By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the information and certifications required on the general use
mooring permit form, as provided in Pda 51 1.01(b) and (d).

(c) The applicant shall attach to the application:

(1) Ifthe vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 14

vessel; and

(2) Payment of the mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a
money order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and
Harbors” or “PDA-DPH.”

(d) The applicant shall:
(1) Sign and certify the mooring application form; and
(2) Return the application form with the attachments specified in (c) above.

(e) Upon receipt of an application for a general use mooring permit by the division, the chief harbor
master or designee shall verify that:

(1) The applicant has provided all applicable information requested on the application;

(2) Information pre-entered on the application by the division has not been altered in violation
of Pda 506.05, if the application is an application submitted by a current mooring permit holder;

(3) A photocopy of the current New Hampshire state registration is attached to the application
unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(4) A photograph of the vessel is attached to the application, if the vessel is not required to be
registered under New Hampshire law;

(5) The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application, if the vessel is required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;

(6) That there is a mooring location within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore
area or at the location for which application is made, sufficient to accommodate the applicant’s
vessel;

(7) The mooring permit fee is paid, and, if paid by check or money order, is made payable to
“Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH” and is attached
to the application;
(8) There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and
(9) The applicant has signed and certified the application.
(f) Within 30 business days of receipt of an application for a general use mooring permit by the
division, the chief harbor master or designee shall grant or deny the application consistent with the

provisions of Pda 507.02.

(g) If the applicant is granted a general use mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the
requirements of (e) above, the chief harbor master or designee shall:

(1) Record the permit number on the permit;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 15

(2) Assign the mooring location;
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

Readopt with amendment Pda 506.07 and Pda 506.08, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read
as follows:

Pda 506.07 Shorefront Property Mooring Permits.

(a) An applicant for a shorefront property mooring permit shall obtain a shorefront property
mooring application form:

(1) In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

(2) By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the information and certifications required on the shorefront property
mooring permit form, as provided in Pda 511.02(b) and (e), and, if a reapplicant, as provided in Pda
511.02(f).

(¢) For an initial application for a shorefront property mooring, the applicant shall attach to the
application:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the mooring
permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) If the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the
vessel;

(3) A copy of the deed for the shorefront property, from the appropriate county registry of
deeds, containing the book and page number for the recorded deed;

(4) A copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property;

(5) A copy of the portion of the tax map of the municipality in which the shorefront property
is located, including the property tax map number and lot number;

(6) Documentation relating to the organizational structure of the applicant, if the applicant is
not an individual, as required under Pda 511.02(c)(6), (7), and (8), as applicable; and

(7) Payment of the mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 16

money order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and
Harbors” or “PDA-DPH.”

(d) An applicant who is reapplying for an existing shorefront property mooring under Pda 506.04
shall attach to the application:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the mooring
permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) Ifthe vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the
vessel;

(3) A copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property;

(4) Documentation relating to the organizational structure of the applicant, if the applicant is
not an individual, as required under Pda 511.02(c)(6), (7), and (8), as applicable; and

(5) Payment of the mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a
money order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and
Harbors™ or “PDA-DPH.”

(e) If the applicant is a trust, business organization, or not-for-profit entity, the mooring permit
application shall be signed and certified by a duly authorized trustee, officer, partner, manager, proprietor

or member of such trust, business organization, or not-for-profit entity, as applicable.

(f) If the applicant is an individual, the applicant shall sign and certify the mooring permit
application form.

(2) Upon receipt of an application for a shorefront property mooring permit by the division, the
chief harbor master or designee shall verify that:

(1) The applicant has provided all applicable information and documentation requested on the
application under Pda 511.02;

(2) Information pre-entered on the application by the division has not been altered in violation
of Pda 506.05, if the application is an application submitted by a current mooring permit holder;

(3) The following are attached to the application:
a. A photocopy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on
the mooring permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under

New Hampshire law;

b. A photograph of the vessel, if the vessel is not required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;

c. A photocopy of the deed for the shorefront property, if applicable, from the appropriate
county registry of deeds, containing the book and page number for the recorded deed;

d. A photocopy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 17

e. A copy of the portion of the tax map of the municipality in which the shorefront
property is located, including the property tax map number and lot number, if applicable;
and

f. If the applicant is a trust, business organization, or not-for-profit entity, the
documentation required under Pda 511 .02(c)(6), (7), and (8), as applicable;

(4) The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application, if the vessel is required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;

(5) There is a mooring location within the shorefront property mooring area sufficient to
accommodate the applicant’s vessel;

(6) The mooring permit fee is paid, and, if paid by check or money order, is made payable to
“Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH” and is attached
to the application;

(7) There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and

(8) The applicant has signed and certified the application.

(h) Within 30 business days of receipt of the application by the division, the chief harbor master or
designee shall grant or deny the application consistent with the provisions of Pda 507.02.

(i) If the applicant is granted a mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the requirements of (g)
above, the chief harbor master or designee shall:

(1) Record the permit number on the permit;
(2) Assign the mooring location;
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

() Marinas, condominiums, condominium unit owners’ associations, or any of their individual
members, owners, tenants, or related associations shall not be eligible to apply under Pda 500 for a
shorefront property mooring.

(k) Only one shorefront property mooring permit shall be granted for each parcel of shorefront
property.

Pda 506.08 Commercial Use Mooring Permit: Application Requirements: Processing.

(a) An applicant for a commercial use mooring permit or temporary seasonal commercial use
mooring permit as provided in Pda 506.11(e)(2) shall:

(1) Obtain a commercial use mooring permit application form:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 18
a. In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

b. By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(2) Provide the information and certifications required on the commercial use mooring
application form, as provided in Pda 511.03(b) and (d); and

(3) Attach to the application the following:

a. Documentation relating to the business organization as required under Pda
511.03(c)(2)-(5), as applicable; and

b. Payment of the mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a
money order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports
and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH”.
(b) If the applicant is engaged in commercial fishing, the applicant shall attach to the application:
(1) A photocopy of the New Hampshire fish and game saltwater fishing license or New
Hampshire fish and game commercial lobster license of the applicant or, if the applicant is a

business entity, of at least one officer or one member of the business entity; and

(2) Documentary evidence of the commercial sales of marine species for the prior calendar
year, unless the business is starting up in the year of application.

(c) Ifthe applicant operates a charter boat, the applicant shall attach to the application:
(1) A photocopy of the US Coast Guard Captain’s license of the applicant, or, if the applicant
is a business entity, of at least one officer or one member of the business entity, for the type
and size of vessel of the applicant;
(2) A minimum of 2 items of business identification from the following list:

a. A business brochure;

b. A photocopy of the passenger manifest or log book for the most recent month of
business operations within the last 12 months prior to the application;

¢. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within the most
recent 12 months prior to this application; and

d. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association, including,
but not limited to:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 19

1. A current membership card; or

2. A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current membership of
the applicant in the association.

(d) If the applicant is a water-dependent business, as defined in Pda 502.3 1 the applicant shall attach
to the application:

(1) A minimum of 2 items of business identification from the following list:
a. A business brochure;

b. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within the most
recent 12 months prior to this application; and

¢. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association, including,
but not limited to:

1. A current membership card; or

2. A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current membership of
the applicant in the association;

(2) An explanation of how the mooring is used to further the purposes of the water-dependent
business as defined in Pda 502.31 (a) or (b), as applicable.

(e) If the applicant business organization is a business entity other than a sole proprietorship or

partnership, the application shall be:

(1) Signed and certified by a duly authorized officer or member of such business entity; and
(2) Returned with the attachments specified in (a)(3), (b), (c), and (d), above.

(f) If the applicant business organization is a sole proprietorship or partnership, the applicant shall:
(1) Sign and certify the mooring application form; and
(2) Return the application form with the attachments specified in (a)(3), (b), (c), and (d) above.

(g) Upon receipt of an application for a commercial use mooring permit by the division, the chief
harbor master or designee shall verify that:

(1) The applicant has provided all applicable information and documentation required under
Pda 511.03;

(2) Information pre-entered on the application by the division has not been altered in violation
of Pda 506.05, if the application is an application submitted by a current mooring permit holder;

(3) A copy of the current New Hampshire commercial vessel state registration is attached to
the application;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 20

(4) The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application;

(5) There is a mooring location within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area
or at the location for which application is made, sufficient to accommodate the applicant’s
vessel;

(6) The mooring permit fee is paid, provided that fees paid by check or money order shall be
made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-
DPH?” and is attached to the application;

(7) The applicant has provided proof of bona fide commercial activity under (b), (c), or (d)
above;

(8) There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and
(9) The applicant has signed and certified the application.
(h) Within 30 business days of receipt of an application for a commercial use mooring permit by the
division, the chief harbor master or designee shall grant or deny the application consistent with the

provisions of Pda 507.02.

(i) If the applicant is granted a commercial use mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the
requirements of (g) above, the chief harbor master or designee shall:

(1) Record the permit number on the permit;
(2) Assign the mooring location;
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

Readopt Pda 506.09, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 506.09 Commercial Mooring For Hire Mooring Permit: Application Requirements: Processing.

(a) An applicant for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit shall obtain a commercial
mooring for hire mooring permit application form:

(1) In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

(2) By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 21

Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the information and certification required on the commercial
mooring for hire mooring permit application form, as provided in Pda 511.04(b) and (d) and, if a shorefront
property owner reapplicant, as provided in Pda 511.04(e). If the applicant is a marina or condominium unit
owners’ association, the application may be for a collective mooring area with one or more proposed
mooring locations or for an individual mooring not contained in a plan for a collective mooring area. If the
applicant is a shorefront property owner, the application shall only be for one individual mooring within
the shorefront property owner’s shorefront property mooring area.

(c) The applicant shall attach:

(1) Documentation relating to the entity as required under Pda 511.04(c)(1)-(6), as applicable;
and

(2) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.” '

(d) If a marina, the applicant shall attach to the application:

(1) Documentation that demonstrates that the applicant meets the definition of a marina, such
as, but not limited to, the following:

a. A business brochure or a photograph of signage relating to the marina;

b. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within the most
recent 12 months prior to this application; or

¢. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association, including,
but not limited to:

1. A current membership card; or

2. A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current membership of
the applicant in the association; and

(2) An explanation of how the commercial mooring(s) for hire is used to further the purposes
of the business.

(e) The applicant, or its duly authorized officer or member, shall:
(1) Sign and certify the mooring application form; and

(2) Return the application form with the attachments specified in (c) and (d) above, as
applicable.

(f) Upon receipt of an application for a commercial mooring for hire by the division, the chief harbor
master or designee shall verify that:

(1) The applicant has provided all applicable information and documentation required on the



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 22

application;

(2) Information pre-entered on the application by the division has not been altered in violation
of Pda 506.05, if the application is an application submitted by a current mooring permit holder;

(3) If the application is for a single commercial mooring for hire, that there is a mooring
location within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area or at the location for
which application is made, sufficient to accommodate the maximum LOA as specified in the
application;

(4) If the application is for a collective mooring area, that there is one or more mooring
locations within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area for which application
is made, sufficient to accommodate the maximum LOA(s) as specified in the application;

(5) The mooring permit fee is paid, provided that fees paid by check or money order shall be
made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-
DPH” and is attached to the application;

(6) The applicant, if a marina, has provided proof of bona fide commercial activity under (d)
above;

(7) There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and
(8) The applicant has signed and certified the application.

(g) Upon verification of the information in (f) above, the chief harbor master or designee shall
forward the application to the division director.

(h) The division director shall review the application and prepare a report that includes a summary
of the application and a recommendation for approval or denial. [f the application is for a collective
mooring area, the director shall review and make a recommendation for each mooring location proposed
on the plan. The director’s report shall be forwarded to the authority for approval or denial of the

application. The authority shall approve or deny the application in accordance with the criteria in Pda
507.02.

(i) If the applicant is granted a mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the requirements of (f)
above, the chief harbor master or designee shall, for each individual mooring and for each mooring in a
collective mooring area:

(1) Record the permit number on the permit;
(2) Assign the mooring location;
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

Readopt with amendment Pda 506.10, effective §-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 506.10 Non-Revenue Mooring Permits: Waiver of Fees.




Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 23

(a) An applicant for a non-revenue mooring permit shall obtain a non-revenue mooring application
form:

(1) In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

(2) By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801
(b) The applicant shall provide the information and certification required on the non-revenue
mooring permit form for each mooring field, mooring subfield, nearshore area, or mooring location, as
provided in Pda 511.05(b) and (d). '
(c) The applicant shall attach to the application:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration(s) for the vessel(s) listed on the
mooring permit application; and

(2) The request for a non-revenue mooring as described in (h) below.
(d) The applicant shall:
(1) Sign and certify the mooring application form; and
(2) Return the application form with the attachments specified in (c) above.

(e) Upon receipt of an application for a non-revenue mooring permit by the division, the chief harbor
master or designee shall verify that:

(1) The applicant has provided all applicable information requested on the application;

(2) Information pre-entered on the application by the division has not been altered in violation
of Pda 506.05, if the application is an application submitted by a current mooring permit holder;

(3) A photocopy of the current New Hampshire state registration(s) is attached to the
application;

(4) The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application;

(5) There is a mooring location(s) within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore
area or at the location(s) for which application is made, sufficient to accommodate the
applicant’s vessel(s);

(6) There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 24

(7) The applicant has signed and certified the application.

(f) Within 30 business days of receipt of the application by the division, the chief harbor master or
designee shall grant or deny the application consistent with the provisions of Pda 507.02.

(g) If the applicant is granted a mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the requirements of (e)
above and (h) and (i) below, the chief harbor master or designee shall:

(1) Record the permit number(s) on the permit(s);
(2) Assign the mooring location(s);
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

() In addition to the application, the applicant shall submit a written request to the division. There
shall be a separate written request for each mooring field, mooring subfield, nearshore area, or location for
which a mooring(s) is requested.

(i) The request submitted pursuant to (h) above shall, at a minimum, include:

(1) The location(s) of the non-revenue mooring or the mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area in which the non-revenue mooring(s) is to be located;

(2) The reason(s) a non-revenue mooring(s) is needed,
(3) The number of non-revenue mooring(s) requested;
(4) The length of time the mooring(s) is needed; and
(5) The LOA and draft of the vessel(s) to be moored.

(j) The request for a non-revenue mooring shall be directly refated to the state agency’s statutory
duties or responsibilities.

(k) A non-revenue mooring permit shall be issued for a period of no more than one year. Waiver(s)
of mooring fees shall be automatically reconsidered annually for applicants under this section only upon
receipt by the division of a non-revenue mooring application and the review of a non-revenue mooring
request containing the information required in (1)(1)~(5)

Readopt Pda 506.11, Pda 507.01, and Pda 507.02, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as
follows:

Pda 506.11 Temporary Seasonal Mooring Permit: Application Requirements: Processing.

(a) If a general use mooring permit holder or a shorefront property mooring permit holder makes
the mooring location available for use as a temporary seasonal mooring, the permit holder shall notify the
division in writing prior to March 1. The chief harbor master or designee shall follow the wait list



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 25

procedures in Pda 509.06(b) to determine if any person on the wait list wishes to apply for a temporary
seasonal mooring permit at the mooring location.

(b) If a commercial use mooring permit holder makes the mooring location available for use as a
temporary seasonal mooring, the permit holder shall notify the division in writing prior to March 1. The
chief harbor master or designee shall follow the wait list procedures in Pda 509.06(c) to determine if any
person on the wait list wishes to apply for a temporary seasonal mooring permit at the mooring location,
provided that only a party engaged in bona fide commercial activity as provided in Pda 506.08(b), (c), or
(d) shall qualify for a temporary seasonal mooring at the mooring location.

(c) The chief harbor master or designee shall notify the person highest on the wait list contacted
under (a) or (b) above who expresses a timely interest in obtaining a temporary seasonal mooring permit
that the person may file a temporary seasonal mooring application for the available mooring location. At
the same time, the chief harbor master or designee shall provide the person with contact information of the
person whose mooring equipment is in place at the mooring location.

(d) Within 10 business days of the notification under (c) above, a temporary seasonal mooring
permit applicant shall complete a temporary seasonal mooring permit application.

(e) Anapplicant for a temporary seasonal mooring permit for a:

(1) General use mooring shall make an application for a temporary seasonal general use
mooring in accordance with Pda 506.06(a)-(d); and

(2) Commercial use mooring shall make an application for a temporary seasonal commercial
use mooring, in accordance with Pda 506.08(a)-(f).

(f) Upon receipt by the division of a temporary seasonal mooring permit application form for a:

(1) Temporary seasonal general use mooring permit, the chief harbor master or designee shall
verify that:

a. The applicant has provided all applicable information requested on the application;

b. A photocopy of the current New Hampshire state registration is attached to the
application unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

¢. A photograph of the vessel is attached to the application, if the vessel is not required
to be registered under New Hampshire law;

d. The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application, if the vessel is required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;

e. The mooring location is sufficient to accommodate the applicant’s vessel;

f. The mooring permit fee is paid, and, if paid by check or money order, is made payable
to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH” and is
attached to the application;

g. There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 26

h. The applicant has signed and certified the application; and

(2) Temporary seasonal commercial use mooring permit, the chief harbor master or designee
shall verify that:

a. The applicant has provided all applicable information and documentation required on
the application;

b. A copy of the current New Hampshire commercial vessel state registration is attached
to the application;

c. The vessel information on the New Hampshire state registration is the same vessel
information provided on the application;

d. The mooring location is sufficient to accommodate the applicant’s vessel,

e. The mooring permit fee is paid, provided that fees paid by check or money order shall
be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH” and is attached to the application;

f. The applicant has provided proof of bona fide commercial activity under (b) above;

g. There is no reason to deny the application under Pda 507.02; and

h. The applicant has signed and certified the application.

(g) Within 30 business days of receipt of the application by the division, the chief harbor master
or designee shall grant or deny the application consistent with the provisions of Pda 507.02.

(h) If the applicant is granted a temporary seasonal mooring permit under Pda 507, and meets the
requirements of (f) above, the chief harbor master or designee shall:

(1) Record the permit number on the permit;
(2) Assign the mooring location;
(3) Sign and date the permit; and

(4) Mail a photocopy of the permit to the applicant at the address specified by the applicant on
the mooring permit application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

(1) If a temporary seasonal mooring permit is granted pursuant to Pda 507 between April | and
September 30, and the temporary seasonal mooring permit holder supplies his or her own mooring
equipment, the permit holder shall have 30 business days from the date of issuance of the mooring permit
to set the mooring equipment in accordance with Pda 510.

(J) A mooring permit holder who has made a mooring location available for use as a temporary
seasonal mooring shall:

(1) Not use the mooring during the time period covered by the temporary mooring permit; and



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 27

(2) Be able to make the mooring location available for use as a temporary seasonal mooring
again only after at least one mooring season has elapsed after the mooring’s use as a temporary
seasonal mooring location.

PART Pda 507 GRANT OR DENIAL OF MOORING APPLICATIONS; REVOCATION OF PERMITS;
HEARINGS

Pda 507.01 Granting of Mooring Applications: Priority.

(a) Ifa wait list exists for the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area for which a mooring
permit application is received, the division shall place a mooring permit applicant on a mooring wait list,
as provided in Pda 509.

(b) If no wait list exists for the mooring location for which a mooring permit application is made
under Pda 506.01, a mooring permit shall be granted to an applicant if:

(1) The division determines that the applicant meets the requirements for the mooring permit
for which the applicant applied under Pda 506;

(2) There is a mooring location available in the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area or in the requested location that is suited to the LOA and draft of the vessel;

(3) The division has not denied the application under Pda 507.02; and
(4) The applicant’s application is the earliest complete mooring application received by the
division for the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, nearshore area, or mooring location,

if more than one application for the mooring field, mooring subfield, nearshore area, or mooring
location was received by the division.

Pda 507.02 Reasons for Denial of Application.

(a) The director shall deny a mooring permit application if:

(1) The division has not received the completed application, required documentation, and
permit fee by the deadline specified in Pda 506.04;

(2) The applicant has altered any information pre-entered by the division, as prohibited under
Pda 506.05;

(3) There is no available space in the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore
area;

(4) There is no mooring location in the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore
area or at the requested location for the applicant’s vessel in compliance with Pda 504.01(c)(1)
and (2);

(5) The applicant has not included the required mooring permit fee or, if applicable, late
application fee;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 28

(6) The vessel cannot be provided with a mooring location in the requested mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area or at the requested location without interfering with or
impeding navigation, thus constituting a hazard to public safety;

(7) The division determines that the water depth, shoreline configuration, wind exposure,
domestic water use in the area, or other environmental conditions and effects are such that the
vessel cannot be moored in a mooring location in the requested mooring field, mooring subfield,
or nearshore area or at the requested location;

(8) The mooring cannot be located in the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area or at the requested location without unreasonably interfering with recreational

uses of the water and adjacent land as described in (b) below;

(9) The applicant has not provided the required information and documentation under Pda
506.06, Pda 506.07, Pda 506.08, Pda 506.09, or Pda 506.10, for the type of permit applied for;

(10) The applicant has provided materially false information on the application form, or has
provided materially faise or invalid information in any of the documentation required under
Pda 506;

(11) The applicant has failed to:
a. Timely pay any fees or other costs due to the authority or the division under RSA 12-
(:42-53 or rules adopted thereunder, and such fees or other costs remain due and payable

at the time the application is filed,;

b. Timely pay any fines assessed under RSA 12-G:52 or RSA 12-G:52-a, and such fine
or fines remain due and payable at the time the application is filed; or

¢. Obey any lawful order of the director, the chief harbor master, the deputy chief harbor
master, a harbor master, or an assistant harbor master, and full compliance with such
lawful order remains outstanding at the time the application is filed; or

(12) The applicant has submitted an application containing false certifications.

(b) For the purposes of (a)(8) above, a mooring location shall be considered an unreasonable
interference if it would:

(1) Interfere with a shorefront property abutter’s use of the water in front of his or her property;
(2) Pose a safety hazard to users of the state tidal waters; or
(3) Creates any other interference that would constitute a hazard or nuisance.

Readopt with amendment Pda 507.03, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 507.03 Revocation of Mooring Permit.

(a) The director, after notice and an opportunity for a hearing, shall revoke a mooring permit for any
of the following reasons:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 29

(1) The location of the mooring interferes with or impedes navigation, thus constituting a
hazard to public safety, and it is not possible to relocate the mooring within the mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area or near the requested location so as to remove the hazard;

(2) A shorefront property owner who applied for and received a shorefront property mooring
permit or a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit has subsequently sold the shorefront

property;
(3) The mooring was transferred for any reason other than the reasons allowed in Pda 508;

(4) The applicant has provided materially false information on the application form, or has
provided materially false or invalid information in any of the documentation required under
Pda 506;

(5) The applicant has submitted an application containing false certifications;

(6) The division determines that the water depth, shoreline configuration, wind exposure,
domestic water use in the area, or other environmental conditions and effects are such that the
location is no longer appropriate for moorings and it is not possible to relocate the mooring so
as to avoid the problem;

(7) The mooring is located in the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area or at the
requested location in a manner causing unreasonable interference with recreational uses of the
water and adjacent land as described in (b) below, and it is not possible to relocate the mooring
within the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area or near the requested location so
as to avoid the interference;

(8) The permit holder obtains a different vessel or modifies an existing vessel and fails to
comply with Pda 505.03 before attaching the different or modified vessel to the permit holder’s

mooring;

(9) The permit holder failed to install a mooring buoy within the time period required under
Pda 510.01;

(10) The permit holder failed to obey any lawful order of the director, the chief harbor master,
the deputy chief harbor master, a harbor master, or an assistant harbor master;

(11) The permit holder violated any provision of:
a. RSA 12-G; or
b. Any rule adopted by the authority under RSA 12-G;

(12) The permit holder made any change in the mooring location without prior written
authorization from the division;

(13) The permit holder ceases to have any ownership interest in the vessel identified in the
permit holder’s permit;

(14) The permit holder failed to pay any fines or costs assessed under RSA 12-G relating to
vessels or moorings;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 30

(15) The permit holder failed to mark the mooring buoy in accordance with Pda 510.02;
(16) The permit holder returned the permit to the division in accordance with Pda 507.05;

(17) The permit holder did not provide the written notification to the division required under
Pda 507.05(a); or

(18) The permit holder is convicted of a crime in any jurisdiction in which the mooring was
used in the furtherance of criminal activity.

(b) For the purposes of (a)(7) above, a mooring location shall be considered an unreasonable
interference if it:

(1) Interferes with a shorefront property abutter’s use of the water in front of his or her property;
(2) Poses a safety hazard to users of the state tidal waters; or
(3) Creates any other interference that would constitute a hazard or nuisance.

Readopt Pda 507.04- Pda 507.06, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 507.04 Hearings: Notice of Denial.

(a) Any hearing required pursuant to Pda 507.03(a) shall be held by the director or designee.
(b) If a mooring permit is denied, or revoked under Pda 507.03 after notice and opportunity for a
hearing, notice of the denial or revocation and the reason(s) therefore shall be sent to the applicant in writing

within 10 business days of the decision.

Pda 507.05 Written Notification and Return of Permit Reauired in Certain Circumstances.

(a) A mooring permit holder shall provide written notification to the division within I5 business
days of:

(1) The sale or other disposition of the vessel for which the permit has been issued;
(2) The sale of the shorefront property used to qualify for a shorefront property mooring permit;

(3) The sale of the shorefront property used to qualify for a commercial mooring for hire
mooring permit as described in Pda 502.05(b); or

(4) The mooring permit holder’s not requiring the mooring for any reason.

(b) A person required under (a)(1) or (4) above to provide written notification to the division shall
return the permit to the division within 15 business days of the event requiring notification under (a)(1) or
(4) above.

(c) A person required under (a)(2) and (3) above to provide written notification to the division shall
return the permit to the division within 30 business days of the sale of the qualifying shorefront property.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 31

(d) A new mooring permit shall not be issued to the mooring permit holder within the period of time
covered by the permit required to be returned, if the holder fails to return the permit as required under (a)
above.

Pda 507.06 Removal of Equipment When Permit Revoked.
(a) When a mooring permit is revoked, the owner of the mooring shall remove the block and tackle
or other mooring equipment pursuant to Pda 510.07.

(b) If the owner of the mooring fails to remove the block and tackle or other mooring equipment
within the time required under Pda 510.07, the division shall cause the block and tackle or other mooring
equipment to be removed in accordance with Pda 510.08, at the expense of the owner.

Readopt with amendments Pda 508.01 and Pda 508.02, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read
as follows:

PART Pda 508 TRANSFER OF MOORING PERMITS

Pda 508.01 Transfer of Commercial Use Mooring Permits.

(a) A commercial vessel owner may transfer his or her commercial use mooring permit(s) to a new
owner if the permit holder’s business, including the vessel for which the commercial use mooring permit(s)
was issued by the division, is sold or under a contract of sale, subject to:

(1) The buyer’s submitting an application for a commercial use mooring permit for the same
type of business or another type of business that would qualify for a commercial use mooring
permit and all applicable documentation;

(2) Payment of the commercial use mooring permit transfer fee for transfers pursuant to Pda
508.01(a), provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order shall be made payable
to “Pease Development authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH;” and

(3) Approval of the transfer by the authority upon the buyer’s showing that he or she has
complied with all the requirements for a commercial use mooring permit.

(b) The owner of a water-dependent business as described in Pda 502.3 1(b) may transfer his or her
commercial use mooring permit(s) to a new owner if the permit holder’s business is sold or under contract
of sale, subject to:

(1) The buyer’s submitting an application for a commercial use mooring permit for a water-
dependent business as described in Pda 502.31(b) and all applicable documentation;

(2) Payment of the commercial use water dependent business mooring permit transfer fee for
transfers pursuant to Pda 508.01(b), provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money
order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors”
or “PDA-DPH;” and

(3) Approval of the transfer by the authority upon the buyer’s showing that he or she has
complied with all the requirements for a commercial use mooring permit.

(c) The division shall only consider written transfer requests made by the owner of record and
mailed or hand delivered to its office at:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 32

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(d) If a holder of a commercial use mooring permit ceases operation of the commercial entity for
which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse.

Pda 508.02 Transfer of Commercial Mooring for Hire Mooring Permit.

(a) A holder of a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit may transfer his or her commercial
mooring for hire mooring permit(s) to a new owner if the permit holder’s business is sold or transferred,
subject to:

(1) The buyer’s submitting an application for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit
and all applicable documentation;

(2) Payment of the commercial mooring for hire mooring permit transfer fee for transfers
pursuant to Pda 508.02, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order shall
be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or PDA-
DPH;” and

(3) Approval of the transfer by the authority upon the buyer’s showing that he or she has
complied with all the requirements for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit.

(b) The division shall only consider written transfer requests made by the owner of record and
mailed or hand delivered to its office at:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(c) If the holder of a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit ceases operation of the business
for which the permit was issued, the permit shall lapse.

(d) If a shorefront property owner holding a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as
described in Pda 502.05(b) sells the shorefront property, the commercial mooring for hire mooring permit
shall not be transferable under this section to the new owner of the property, but the new property owner
may apply for either a shorefront property mooring permit or a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit
in accordance with Pda 509.05(d).

Readopt Pda 508.03, effective 8-19-16 (Document # 11160), to read as follows:

Pda 508.03 Transfer of General Use, Shorefront Property Owner, Commercial Use, or Commercial
Mooring for Hire Mooring Permit to Surviving Spouse.

(a) Ifavessel is owned by spouses jointly with right of survivorship and passes to a surviving spouse
as a result of death, and the spouse whose name appears on a general use, shorefront property, or
commercial use mooring permit, or on a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit held by a shorefront



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 33

property owner as described in Pda 502.05(b) and granted by the division, dies during the term of the permit,
the division shall transfer the permit to the name of the surviving spouse if the conditions under () below
are met.

(b) If ownership of a vessel previously owned by a deceased spouse whose name appears on a
general use, shorefront property, or commercial use mooring permit, or on a commercial mooring for hire
mooring permit held by a shorefront property owner as described in Pda 502.05(b) and granted by the
division, passes by will or in accordance with the laws of intestacy to a surviving spouse, the division shall
transfer the permit to the name of the surviving spouse if the conditions under (c) below are met.

(¢) The surviving spouse shall present a written request for transfer under this section to the division
at the time that an application for an existing mooring permit under Pda 506.04 is filed with the division,
on or before the March 1 deadline. If the death occurred within 10 days before the March 1 deadline and
the surviving spouse submits the request within 10 business days after March 1, the surviving spouse shall
pay only the mooring permit application fee and no late fee.

(d) The surviving spouse shall provide the following documentation at the time of filing:
(1) The death certificate of the deceased spouse;

(2) Proof that the vessel was owned jointly by the spouses, if the vessel was owned jointly
with right of survivorship; and

(3) Either:

a. A copy of the decree of the probate court granting ownership of the vessel to the
surviving spouse, if the ownership of the vessel passed to the surviving spouse by will or
in accordance with the laws of intestacy; or

b. Evidence that the estate of the deceased spouse is in probate and that the ownership
of the vessel will pass to the surviving spouse by will or in accordance with the laws of
intestacy.

Readopt with amendment Pda 509.01, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as
follows:

PART Pda 509 MOORING WAIT LISTS

Pda 509.01 Mooring Wait Lists.

(a) When the division determines that a mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area is at
capacity, the division shall establish and maintain a mooring wait list for each mooring field, mooring
subfield, or nearshore area.

(b) Mooring wait lists shall be established for mooring fields, subfields, and nearshore areas in the
following areas:

(1) Cocheco River;

(2) Cocheco River nearshore area;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 34

(3) Exeter Town Landing;
(4) Exeter Town Landing nearshore area;
(5) Portsmouth Harbor, including the following subfields:
a. Goat Island;
b. Goat Island nearshore area;
c. Goat Island Back Channel;
d. Goat Island Back Channel nearshore area;
e. Hart’s Cove;
f. Hart’s Cove nearshore area;
g. Peirce [sland;
h. Peirce Island nearshore area;
i. Peirce Island Back Channel;
J. Peirce [sland Back Channel nearshore area;
k. Portsmouth North Mill Pond;
l. Portsmouth North Mill Pond nearshore area;
m. Portsmouth Yacht Club area;
n. Portsmouth Yacht Club nearshore area;
0. Outer Cutts Cove; and
p. Outer Cutts Cove nearshore area;
(6) Great Bay;
(7) Great Bay nearshore area;
(8) Hampton, including the following subfields;
a. Area |, in the vicinity of the boat ramp at Hampton Harbor Marine Facility;
b. Area l-A, the nearshore area of area 1 subfield of Hampton;

c. Area 2, extending north-west from area 1, in the tidal flats up to the area known as the
Willows;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 35

d. Area2-A, the nearshore area of area 2 subfield of Hampton;

e. Area 3, in the Hampton River in the vicinity of Blind Creek and Tide Mill Creek, north-
west of area 2;

f. Area 3-A, the nearshore area of area 3 subfield of Hampton;

g. Area 4, in the Hampton River, north of area 3, by Nudds Canal;

h. Area 4-A, the nearshore area of area 4 subfield of Hampton;

1.

Area 5, north of Great Boars Head on the oceanfront, in the vicinity of North Beach

and Plaice Cove; and

j-

Area 5-A, the nearshore area of area 5 subfield of Hampton;

(9) Gosport Harbor;

(10) Gosport Harbor nearshore area;

(11) Lamprey River;

(12) Lamprey River nearshore area;

(13) Little Bay, including the following subfields;

a.

b.

o

Area 1, in the vicinity of Upper Fox Point, just south of Fox Point;

Area 1-A, the nearshore area of area 1 subfield of Little Bay;

. Area 2, the Fox Point area, east of Fox Point;
. Area 2-A, the nearshore area of area 2 subfield of Little Bay;

. Area 3, the Adams Point area, extending % mile north of Adams Point;

Area 3-A, the nearshore area of area 3 subfield of Little Bay;

Area 4, the Scammel Bridge area, immediately adjacent to and south of the Scammel

Bridge and including the area around Cedar Point on the west and extending to Boston
Harbor Road to the east; and

h.

Area 4-A, the nearshore area of area 4 subfield of Little Bay;

(14) Little Harbour;

(15) Little Harbour nearshore area;

(16) Newfields Town Landing;

(17) Newfield Town Landing nearshore area;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 36

(18) Oyster River;
(19) Oyster River nearshore area;
(20) The following Piscataqua River areas:
a. Newington Town Landing/Patterson Lane;
b. Newington Town Landing/Patterson Lane nearshore area;
c. Bloody Point;
d. Bloody Point nearshore area;
e. Hilton Park; and
f. Hilton Park nearshore area;
(21) Rye Harbor;
(22) Rye Harbor nearshore area;
(23) Sagamore Creek;
(24) Sagamore Creek nearshore area;
(25) Seabrook; and
(26) Seabrook nearshore area.
Readopt Pda 509.02 — Pda 509.05, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 509.02 Maps of Mooring Field. Mooring Subfields, and Nearshore Areas. The division shall
maintain maps at the division office of mooring fields, mooring subfields, and nearshore areas.

Pda 509.03 Wait List Application.

(a) A person seeking to be placed on a mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area wait list
shall obtain a mooring wait list application form:

(1) In person, from the division office located at 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, New
Hampshire; or

(2) By sending a request in writing, including a self-addressed, stamped envelope to the
division office at the following address:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 37

(b) The applicant shall provide the information required on the mooring wait list application form,
as provided in Pda 511.06.

(c) The applicant shall attach to the application the mooring wait list fee, provided that fees paid in
the form of a check or a money order shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of
Ports and Harbors” or “PDA-DPH.”

Pda 509.04 Placement on Mooring Wait Lists.

(a) The division shall place the applicant’s name on the wait list or lists for the mooring field(s),
mooring subfield(s), or nearshore area(s) that the applicant has indicated in the wait list application, if the
applicant has paid the mooring wait list fee(s).

(b) No wait list applicant shall be listed more than once on a mooring wait list for a mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area. A wait list applicant may be listed in more than one subfield within a
mooring field. A wait list applicant may be listed both in a mooring field or mooring subfield and the
nearshore area of the mooring field or mooring subfield.

(c) The applicant’s position on the wait list shall be determined by the date and time a completed
mooring application or mooring wait list application is received by the division, with the earliest received
application being placed higher on the list for the requested mooring field(s) mooring subfield(s), or
nearshore area(s), except as provided in (d) below.

(d) A shorefront property mooring permit applicant or a shorefront property owner making an
application for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda 502.05(b)shall be placed
at the top of the wait list for the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area that
encompasses the shorefront property mooring area of such applicant. If there is more than one shorefront
property mooring permit applicant or water-dependent business applicant for the requested mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area, placement on the wait list shall be determined by the date and time a
completed application or mooring wait list application was received by the division, the earliest received
application being placed higher on the list for the requested mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore
area. If the shorefront property owner already has a mooring, the preference granted in this paragraph shall
not apply.

Pda 509.05 Procedures for Shorefront Property Owners.

(a) If a shorefront property owner submits an application for a shorefront property owner mooring
permit or for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda 502.05(b), and a mooring
location is available within the property owner’s shorefront property mooring area, the shorefront property
owner shall:

(1) If an applicant for a shorefront property mooring permit, be granted a shorefront property
mooring permit upon receipt by the division of a completed shorefront property mooring
application form and payment of the mooring permit fee; or

(2) If an applicant for a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda
502.05(b), be granted a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit within the shorefront
property mooring area, upon receipt by the division of a completed commercial mooring for
hire mooring permit application form and payment of the mooring permit fee.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 38

(b) If a shorefront property owner submits an application for a shorefront property mooring permit
or a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda 502.05(b), and a mooring location is
not available within the property owner’s shorefront property mooring area, the shorefront property owner
applicant shall be subject to wait list procedures pursuant to Pda 509.04(c).

(c) A shorefront property owner shall not hold both a shorefront property mooring permit and a
commercial mooring for hire mooring permit as described in Pda 502.05(b) at the same time relative to the

same property.

(d) The following shall apply if a shorefront property owner sells the shorefront property relative to
which a shorefront property mooring permit or a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit was issued:

(1) The mooring permit shall expire 30 days after the sale of the property;

(2) The mooring permit shall be returned to the division in accordance with Pda 507.05(c);
(3) During the 30-day period after the sale of the property, the new owner of the shorefront
property may apply for either a shorefront property mooring permit or a commercial mooring
for hire mooring permit for the existing mooring location, subject to the requirements of (a) and
(b) above; and

(4) If the new owner does not make such an application within the 30-day period, the mooring
location shall be available to the next person on the wait list, if a wait list exists for the area in
which the mooring is located.

Readopt with amendment Pda 509.06, effective §-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 509.06 Wait List Procedures.

(a) For purposes of this section, “written notice” means notice sent by certified mail.

(b) When a mooring location becomes available in a wait list mooring field, mooring subfield, or
nearshore area, the chief harbor master or designee shall send written notice to the first 5 persons on the
wait list for that mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area, subject to (c) below, that a mooring
location(s) might be available for the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area, and which
mooring location(s) might be available. Each person contacted shall indicate his or her interest in obtaining
a mooring permit for a mooring location identified as potentially available in the mooring field, mooring
subfield, or nearshore area within 10 business days of the receipt of written notice by the division. If the
number of moorings available exceeds the number of persons expressing an interest in a mooring, the chief
harbor master or designee shall send written notice to the next 5 persons in order of priority on the wait list,
subject to (c) below. For purposes of this paragraph, waiting lists shall be divided into groups of 5 according
to placement on the wait list, and mailings shall be sent out in groups of 5, or, if there are fewer than 5
persons in a group, to each person in the group.

(c) If the available mooring was used for commercial purposes by an entity that would have qualified
for a commercial use mooring permit, the following procedures shall apply:

(1) The chief harbor master or designee shall send written notice to the first person on the wait
list who has stated an intention to apply for a commercial use permit on the wait list for that
mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area, that a mooring location might be available
for the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area and which mooring location might



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 39

be available;

(2) The person contacted shall indicate his or her interest in obtaining a mooring permit for the
mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area within 10 business days of the receipt of
written notice by the division;

(3) If the person contacted does not indicate an interest in obtaining a commercial use mooring
permit for the mooring location in the mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area within
the required time, the chief harbor master or designee shall notify the next person on the wait
list for that mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area who has stated an intention to
apply for a commercial use permit, subject to the conditions as provided in (1) above; and

(4) If none of the persons who stated an intention to apply for a commercial use permit for that
mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area indicates an interest in the mooring location,
the chief harbor master or designee shall follow the procedures in (b) above and send written
notice to persons on the wait list in order of priority.

(d) The chief harbor master or designee shall notify the person highest on the wait list contacted
under (b) or (c) above who expresses an interest within the 10 business day period in obtaining a mooring
permit that the person may file a mooring application for the available mooring location. Within 10 business
days of notification of permission to file the mooring application, the person shall complete an initial
mooring permit application and otherwise comply with the requirements set forth in Pda 506 for the type
of mooring permit requested.

(e) The chief harbor master or designee shall review and process the application in accordance
with Pda 506 and Pda 507.

(f) If a mooring permit is granted pursuant to Pda 507 between April 1 and September 30, the
mooring permit holder shall have 30 days from the date of issuance of the mooring permit to set the mooring
equipment in accordance with Pda 510. If the permit is issued between October 1 and March 31, the
mooring equipment shall be set on or before May 1.

(8) Any person on a mooring wait list offered an opportunity to apply for a mooring permit pursuant
to this section, and who refuses the opportunity, shall not be offered a second opportunity to obtain a
mooring permit for 180 days from the date of refusal. Although the chief harbor master or designee shall
not offer the mooring wait list applicant an opportunity to apply for a mooring during this 180-day period,
the mooring wait list applicant shall retain his or her position on the applicable mooring wait list. If a
mooring wait list applicant refuses a second opportunity to obtain a mooring permit for the requested
mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area, the mooring wait list applicant shall be removed from
the wait list. The person’s standing on the wait list shall not be affected by the use of a temporary seasonal
mooring.

(h) A person’s name on a mooring wait list shall be removed from the list:

(1) When the mooring wait list applicant, in writing, requests the division to remove his or her
name from the list;

(2) When the mooring wait list applicant is granted a mooring permit for the mooring field,
mooring subfield, or nearshore area;

(3) If the mooring wait list applicant fails to submit a completed mooring wait list renewal



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 40
application and wait list fee or late fee in accordance with Pda 509.03 on or before the deadline
specified in Pda 506.04 or Pda 509.07; or

(4) If the mooring wait list applicant refuses 2 opportunities to obtain a mooring permit in
accordance with (g) above.

Readopt Pda 509.07 and Pda 509.08, effective 8-19-16 (Document # 11160), to read as follows:

Pda 509.07 Mooring Wait List Renewal Applications; Rights of Surviving Spouse.

(a) An applicant who seeks to remain on a mooring wait list(s) shall renew his or her wait list status
annually by March 1 of each year by submitting a mooring wait list application in accordance with Pda
509.03 and payment of the wait list fee, or within 10 business days after March 1 by submitting a mooring
wait list application in accordance with Pda 509.03 and payment of the wait list late fee.

(b) If a person on a mooring wait list dies, the person’s surviving spouse may request that the name
of the surviving spouse be substituted for the deceased spouse by submitting, with the renewal application,
a written request for such substitution and a death certificate for the deceased spouse. If the death occurred
within 10 days before the March 1 deadline and the surviving spouse submits the request within 10 business
days after March 1, the surviving spouse shall pay only the mooring wait list renewal fee and no late fee.

(c) The division shall mail a mooring wait list application form once annually on or before January
15 to each applicant on a mooring wait list, to the address specified by the applicant on the mooring wait
list application, or, if none is specified, to the applicant’s permanent address.

(d) If an undeliverable wait list application form is returned to the division, the division shall not
remail the form. The mooring wait list applicant shall be responsible for timely renewal of the applicant’s
wait list status without receipt of a renewal notice from the division.

Pda 509.08 Notification of Changes in Wait List Information: Surviving Spouse Procedures.

(a) In order to maintain updated information with the division, any person on a mooring wait list
shall notify the division in writing, within 30 business days of the change, of any change of wait list
information or any change of address or telephone number.

(b) If an applicant listed on a wait list dies and that person has a surviving spouse who wishes to be
substituted for the deceased spouse on the wait list, the surviving spouse shall follow the procedures set
forth in Pda 509.07(b).

Readopt Pda 510.01- Pda 510.03, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to read as follows:
PART Pda 510 MOORING EQUIPMENT

Pda 510.01 Mooring Buoys and Floats.

(a) Mooring buoys shall be polystyrene foam blocks or acrylonitrile butadiene styrene (ABS) type
plastic buoys. All other types of buoys shall be prohibited.

(b) All mooring buoys and floats shall be:

(1) Blue and white; or



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 41

(2) Orange.

(¢) A mooring buoy shall be installed at the permit holder’s sole expense within 30 days of the
issuance of the mooring permit, if the permit is granted between April 1 and September 30, or, if the permit
is granted between October 1 and March 3 1, on or before May 1.

(d) If the permit holder fails to install the mooring buoy within the designated time period, then:

(1) After notice and an opportunity for a hearing in accordance with Pda 507.03, the division
shall revoke the mooring permit;

(2) The permit holder’s authorization to use the mooring shall lapse; and

(3) The mooring shall be reassigned to the next person in order of priority on the wait list for
the applicable mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area.

Pda 510.02 Display of Mooring Permit Name and Number. The mooring permit holder shall write
in permanent ink his or her last name, if an individual, or the name of the business organization, trust or
not-for-profit entity, as applicable, and the mooring permit number on the mooring buoy in letters and
numbers at least 2 inches in size above the water line, to ensure visibility.

Pda 510.03 Location of Moorines: Impeding Navigation and Endangering Other Vessels Prohibited.

(a) All moorings shall be so located or relocated so that the vessels secured by them shall not impede
navigation within the tidal waters or endanger other vessels.

(b) If the chief harbor master or designee determines that any vessel is moored so as to impede
navigation or to endanger other vessels, the chief harbor master or designee shall order the owner of the
mooring to take steps to prevent the impeding of navigation or endangering of other vessels, including, but
not limited to:

(1) Shortening the scope of the mooring lines;
(2) Using an additional mooring and mooring lines; or
(3) Removing and reestablishing the mooring.

(¢) Any person ordered to remove and reestablish his or her mooring by the chief harbor master or
designee in accordance with (b) above shall remove the mooring within 48 hours after the receipt of such
order. However, if the chief harbor master or designee determines that an emergency exists requiring
immediate action in order to prevent personal injury or damage to property, the chief harbor master or
designee shall cause the mooring to be removed and relocated, or any vessel attached to the mooring to be
removed and moored elsewhere.

(d) Any sunken or partly sunken vessel shall be repaired or removed within 48 hours. If the chief
harbor master or designee determines that the vessel poses a threat or hazard to navigation or safety, the
vessel shall be repaired or removed immediately.

(e) If the vessel is not repaired or removed in accordance with (d) above, it shall be removed at the
direction of the chief harbor master or designee at the owner’s expense.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 42

Readopt with amendment Pda 510.04 and Pda 510.05, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read
as follows:

Pda 510.04 Moving or Interfering With Moorings. Except by direction of the chief harbor master
or designee as provided in Pda 510.03, no person:

(2) Shall move or interfere with any mooring in the state tidal waters; and

(b) Other than the owner of a vessel or the owner’s designee, shall move or interfere with any
moored vessel in the state tidal waters.

Pda 510.05 Safety and Placement of Moorings.

(a) The division shall issue a mooring permit for a particular mooring location. It shall be the
responsibility of the mooring permit holder to install and maintain mooring equipment that will ensure that
the assigned vessel and mooring equipment remain on station at the permitted location. In determining the
appropriate equipment and maintenance, the mooring permit holder shall take into account the prevailing
conditions existing at the permitted location including the nature of the seabed, storms, wind, waves, tides,
currents, wash, and the construction and size of the vessel.

(b) All mooring equipment and related gear shall be maintained in a safe condition. Badly worn or
corroded shackles, eyebolts, blocks, chains, pennants, or related equipment shall be replaced.

(¢) Each mooring shall utilize buoys that are visible at all times.

(d) Pennants shall not be over 12’. The length of a pennant shall be measured from the point of
attachment on the mooring ball to the first point of contact on the vessel.

(e) Subject to the Army Corps of Engineers Programmatic General Permit for New Hampshire which
authorizes the division to permit moorings within the costal and tidal waters of the state, if the requested
location for a mooring permit is in a special aquatic site as defined in 40 CFR § 230.3 (m), then no mooring
permit shall be issued unless the equipment used is designed to provide the least possible impact upon the
sensitive nature of the location.

Readopt Pda 510.06 and Pda 510.07, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 510.06 Removal of Mooring Block and Tackle or Other Mooring Equipment. If a mooring
permit is revoked, the division shall notify the mooring permit holder in writing to remove the mooring
block and tackle or other mooring equipment as provided in Pda 507.06 within 10 business days of the
receipt of notice from the division. S

Pda 510.07 Failure to Remove Mooring Block and Tackle or Other Mooring Equipment. If a
mooring permit holder fails to remove the mooring block and tackle or other mooring equipment in
accordance with Pda 510.06, the division shall cause the block and tackle or other mooring equipment to
be removed. Any fees incurred as a result of the division’s removal of the block and tackle or other mooring
equipment shall be the responsibility of the mooring permit holder.

Readopt with amendment Pda 511.01 — Pda 511.06, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), cited and to
read as follows:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 43

PART Pda 511 FORMS

Pda 511.01 General Use Mooring Permit Application Form.

(a) Each person seeking a general use mooring permit or temporary seasonal general use mooring
permit as provided in Pda 506.11(e)(1) shall complete a general use mooring application form provided by
the division and hand deliver or mail the completed application to:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “General Use
Mooring Permit Application Form™:

(1) The applicant’s full legal name;

(2) The applicant’s permanent address, including:
a. Street and number;
b. City or town;
¢. State; and

d. Zip code;

(3) The applicant’s mailing address, if different from the permanent address;

(4) Which address the applicant requests be used as the correspondence address by the division
if different from the permanent address;

&

(5) The applicant’s telephone number(s) including:

a. Permanent telephone number;

b. Emergency telephone number;

¢. Cell telephone number, if different from permanent telephone number;
(6) The applicant’s e-mail address, if the applicant has an e-mail address; and
(7) The following information pertaining to the vessel:

a. Vessel name;

b. New Hampshire state registration number, unless the vessel is not required to be
registered under New Hampshire law;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 44

c. Vessel LOA;

d. Vessel draft;

e. Vessel color; and

f. Type of vessel.
(c) The applicant shall attach:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the mooring
permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) Ifthe vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the
vessel; and

(3) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(d) By signing the form, the applicant shall certify the following:

(1) “I hereby certify that [ am an owner in full or in part of the vessel described in this
application;”

(2) If no New Hampshire state registration number is provided for the vessel: “I hereby certify
that the vessel described in this application is not required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;”

(3) “I hereby certify that I have read the mooring rules in Pda 500 applicable to the type of
mooring for which I am applying and that I will comply with such rules;”

(4) “I hereby certify that [ release and indemnify Pease Development Authority and hold Pease
Development Authority harmless from any and all claims or liability which may arise on
account of the use of the mooring;”

(5) If the application is for a temporary seasonal mooring permit: “I hereby certify that if [
enter into an agreement with the mooring permit holder to use the mooring equipment presently
located at the mooring site, | acknowledge that the mooring equipment is not owned or
maintained by the Pease Development Authority and that the Pease Development Authority
makes no representation as to the condition of the mooring equipment or its suitability for my
intended use;” and

(6) “I hereby certify that the statements and information in the enclosed documents are to the
best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. I am aware that my mooring
permit or placement on a mooring wait list may be withdrawn by the Pease Development
Authority for submitting false statements or information or omitting required statements or
information.”

(e) The applicant shall sign and date the application.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 45

Pda 511.02 Shorefront Property Owner Mooring Permit Apnblication Form.

(a) Each person seeking a shorefront property owner mooring permit shall complete an individual
or business shorefront property owner mooring application form provided by the division and hand deliver
or mail the completed application to:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “Shorefront
Property Owner Mooring Permit Application Form”:

(1) The applicant’s full legal name:

(2) The applicant’s permanent address, including;
a. Street and number;
b. City or town;
c. State; and

d. Zip code;

(3) The applicant’s mailing address, if different from the permanent address;

(4) Which address the applicant requests be used as the correspondence address by the division,
if different from the permanent address;

(5) The applicant’s telephone number(s) including:
a. Permanent telephone number;
b. Business telephone number, if applicable;
¢. Business fax number, if the applicant has a business fax number;
d. Emergency telephone number; and
e. Cell telephone number, if different from permanent telephone number;
(6) The applicant’s contact person, if applicable, and the best way to contact that person;
(7) The applicant’s e-mail address, if the applicant has an e-mail address; and
(8) The following information pertaining to the vessel:

a. Vessel name;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 46

b. New Hampshire state registration number, unless the vessel is not required to be
registered under New Hampshire law;

¢. Vessel LOA;
d. Vessel draft;
e. Vessel color; and
f. Type of vessel.
(c) For an initial application for a shorefront property mooring, the applicant shall attach:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the mooring
permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) Ifthe vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the
vessel;

(3) A copy from the appropriate county registry of deeds of the deed for the shorefront property
containing the book and page number for the recorded deed;

(4) A copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property;

(5) A copy of the portion of the tax map of the municipality in which the shorefront property
is located, including the property tax map number and lot number;

(6) For every trust, business organization, or not-for-profit entity except a sole proprietorship:

a. A statement describing whether the organization, entity or trust is organized on a profit
or nonprofit basis and whether it is:

1. A partnership, including type of partnership;

2. A corporation;

3. A limited liability company;

4. A trust, including type of trust;

5. An association; and

6. Another entity, including a description of such entity’s organizational structure;

b. A list of its directors, officers, partners, managers, trustees or members, as applicable;
and

c. A description of its purpose;

(7) For every business organization, or incorporated not-for-profit entity, except a sole



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 47

proprietorship or general partnership, proof of authorization from the secretary of state to do
business in New Hampshire;

(8) For every trust, unincorporated not-for-profit entity, and unincorporated business
organization including, but not limited to, partnerships and unincorporated associations, a copy
of its governing instrument(s); and

(9) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(d) An applicant who is reapplying for an existing shorefront property mooring under Pda 506.04
shall attach to the application:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the mooring
permit application, unless the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) If the vessel is not required to be registered under New Hampshire law, a photograph of the
vessel;

(3) A copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property;

(4) Documentation relating to the organizational structure of the applicant, if the applicant is
not an individual, as required under Pda 511 .02(c)(6), (7), and (8), as applicable; and

(5) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(e) By signing the form, the applicant shall certify the following:
(1) If the vessel owner is an individual: “I hereby certify that [ am an owner in full or in part
of the vessel described in this application;”

(2) If the vessel owner is other than an individual: “I hereby certify that the business
organization, not-for-profit entity, or trust named as the applicant in this mooring permit
application is the owner in full or in part of the vessel described in this application. [ also certify
that [ am duly authorized on behalf of the applicant to make the foregoing certifications;”

(3) If no New Hampshire state registration number is provided for the vessel: “I hereby certify
that the vessel described in this application is not required to be registered under New
Hampshire law;”

(4) “I hereby certify that I, or the business organization, not-for-profit entity, or trust that I
represent, release and indemnify Pease Development Authority and hold Pease Development
Authority harmless from any and all claims or liability which may arise on account of the use
of the mooring;” and

(5) “T hereby certify that the statements and information in the enclosed documents are to the
best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. [ am aware that my mooring
permit or placement on a mooring wait list may be withdrawn by the Pease Development
Authority for submitting false statements or information or omitting required statements or



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 48

information.”

(f) The form shall require if the application is a reapplication for an existing shorefront property
owner mooring, the applicant shall certify, by signing the form, in addition to the certifications required
under (e) above, that:

(1) He or she remains an owner of the shorefront property described in the attached tax bill;
and

(2) The mooring described in the application is located in the shorefront property mooring area
of the shorefront property described in the attached tax bill.

(g) The applicant shall sign and date the application.

Pda 511.03 Commercial Use Mooring Permit Application Form.

(a) Each person seeking a commercial use mooring permit or temporary seasonal commercial use
mooring permit as provided in Pda 506.11(e)(2) shall complete a commercial use mooring permit
application form provided by the division and hand deliver or mail the completed application to:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “Commercial
Mooring Permit Application Form”:

(1) The applicant’s full legal name:

(2) The name and address of the applicant’s business;

(3) The name of a business contact person and the best way to contact that person;
(4) The applicant’s mailing address, if different from the permanent address;

(5) Whether the business is a fishing, charter, or water-dependent business;

(6) Which address the applicant requests be used as the correspondence address by the division,
if different from the permanent address;

(7) The applicant’s type of business organization;
(8) The applicant’s telephone number(s) including:
a. Business telephone number;
b. Home telephone number;

¢. Business fax number, if the applicant has a business fax number;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 49

d. Emergency telephone number; and

e. Cell telephone number, if different from permanent telephone number;
(9) The applicant’s e-mail address, if the applicant has an e-mail address; and
(10) The following information pertaining to the vessel:

a. Vessel name;

b. New Hampshire state registration number;

(¢4

. Vessel LOA;

o

. Vessel draft;

o

. Vessel color; and

()

Type of vessel, including whether the vessel is a fishing or charter vessel.
(c) The applicant shall attach:

(1) A photocopy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the commercial vessel
listed on the mooring permit application;

(2) For every business organization, except a sole proprietorship:
a. A statement describing whether the organization is:

1. A partnership, including type of partnership;

[\S)

. A corporation;

3. A limited liability company;

4. A trust, including type of trust;

5. An association; or,

6. Another entity, including a description of such entity’s organizational structure;

b. A list of its directors, officers, partners, managers, trustees, or members, as applicable;
and

¢. A description of its purpose;

(3) For every business organization, except a sole proprietorship or general partnership, proof
of authorization from the secretary of state to do business in New Hampshire;

(4) For every trust and unincorporated business organization including, but not limited to,
partnerships and unincorporated associations, a copy of its governing instrument(s);



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 50

(5) If the business organization is a sole proprietor doing business in this state under any other
name than his own, a partnership, association, or any other entity required to register a trade
name with the New Hampshire secretary of state pursuant to RSA 349:1, a copy of the
certificate of trade name issued by the secretary of state;
(6) Ifthe applicant is engaged in commercial fishing:
a. A photocopy of the New Hampshire fish and game saltwater fishing license or New
Hampshire fish and game commercial lobster license of the applicant or, if the applicant
is a business entity, of at least one officer or one member of the business entity; and

b. Documentary evidence of the commercial sales of marine species for the prior calendar
year, unless the business is starting up in the year of application;

(7) Ifthe applicant operates a charter boat:
a. A photocopy of the US Coast Guard Captain’s license of the applicant, or, if the
applicant is a business entity, of at least one officer, member, or employee of the business
entity, for the type and size of vessel of the applicant; and
b. A minimum of 2 items of business identification from the following list:

1. A business brochure;

2. A photocopy of the passenger manifest or log book for the most recent month
prior to the application;

3. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within
the most recent 12 months prior to this application; and

4. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association,
including, but not limited to:

(i) A current membership card; or

(i) A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current
membership of the applicant in the association;

(8) If the applicant is a water-dependent business, a minimum of 2 items of business
identification from the following list:

a. A business brochure;

b. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within the most
recent 12 months prior to this application; and

c. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association, including,
but not limited to:

1. A current membership card; or



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 51

2. A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current membership of
the applicant in the association;

(9) An explanation of how the commercial vessel is used to further the purposes of the water-
dependent business as defined in Pda 502.31 (a) or (b) as applicable; and

(10) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(d) By signing the form, the applicant shall certify the following:

(1) If the vessel owner is other than an individual: “I hereby certify that the applicant uses the
vessel described in this application primarily for commercial purposes and that such vessel is
not used for noncommercial use for more than 14 days cumulatively during the period from
April 1 to March 31. I also certify that I am duly authorized on behalf of the applicant to make
the foregoing certification;” ‘

(2) If the vessel owner is an individual: “I hereby certify that [ use the vessel described in this
application primarily for commercial purposes and that such vessel is not used for
noncommercial use for more than 14 days cumulatively during the period from April 1 to March
3 l n;

(3) “T hereby certify that I, or the business organization that I represent, release and indemnify
Pease Development Authority and hold Pease Development Authority harmless from any and
all claims or liability which may arise on account of the use of the mooring;”

(4) If the application is for a temporary seasonal mooring permit: “I hereby certify that if I, or
the business organization that I represent, enters into an agreement with the mooring permit
holder to use the mooring equipment presently located at the mooring site, | acknowledge that
the mooring equipment is not owned or maintained by the Pease Development Authority and
that the Pease Development Authority makes no representation as to the condition of the
mooring equipment or its suitability for my intended use;” and

(5) “I hereby certify that the statements and information in the enclosed documents are to the
best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. I am aware that my mooring
permit or placement on a mooring wait list may be withdrawn by the Pease Development
Authority for submitting false statements or information or omitting required statements or
information.”

(e) The applicant shall sign and date the application.

Pda 511.04 Commercial Mooring For Hire Mooring Permit Application Form.

(a) Each person seeking a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit shall complete an
application form provided by the division and hand deliver or mail the completed application to:

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “Commercial
Mooring For Hire Permit Application form™:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 52

Pease Development Authority

Division of Ports and Harbors

555 Market Street

Portsmouth, NH 03801

(1) The applicant’s full legal name:

(2) The name and address of the applicant’s business;

(3) The name of a business contact person and the best way to contact that person;
(4) The applicant’s mailing address, if different from the permanent address;

(5) The organizational structure of the applicant;

(6) A description of the nature of the business;

(7) Which address the applicant requests be used as the correspondence address by the division,
if different from the permanent address;

(8) The applicant’s telephone number(s) including:

a. Business telephone number;

b. Home telephone number;

c. Business fax number, if the applicant has a business fax number;

d. Emergency telephone number; and

e. Cell telephone number, if different from permanent telephone number;
(9) The applicant’s e-mail address, if the applicant has an e-mail address; and

(10) If the applicant is a shorefront property owner making an initial application for a
commercial mooring for hire mooring permit:

a. A copy from the appropriate county registry of deeds of the deed for the shorefront
property containing the book and page number for the recorded deed,;

b. A copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront property; and

c. A copy of the portion of the tax map of the municipality in which the shorefront
property is located, including the property tax map number and lot number;

(11) If the applicant is a shorefront property owner making a reapplication for a commercial
mooring for hire mooring permit, a copy of the most recent property tax bill for the shorefront

property;

(12) If the applicant is a marina:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 53

a. A description of the access to the water and parking facilities; and

b. An explanation of the terms and conditions under which the marina is open to the
general public;

(13) For a collective mooring area:

a. A collective mooring area plan, showing the proposed or existing location of each
individual mooring in the area and the distance between each mooring location; and

b. The maximum LOA to be allowed for each individual mooring location; and

(14) For each mooring proposed to be set or existing outside a collective mooring area:

a. The proposed or existing location of the mooring; and

b. The maximum LOA to be allowed for the mooring.

(c) The applicant shall attach:

(1) If a marina, documentation that demonstrates that the applicant meets the definition of a
marina, such as, but not limited to, the following:

a. A business brochure or a photograph of signage relating to the marina;

b. A photocopy of receipt(s) for business advertisement(s) commissioned within the most
recent 12 months prior to this application; or

¢. Evidence of membership in a business or marine-related trade association, including,
but not limited to:

1.

2.

A current membership card; or

A letter from an officer of the association attesting to the current membership of

the applicant in the association;

(2) For every business organization, except a sole proprietorship:

a. A statement describing whether the organization is:

L.

2.

A partnership, including type of partnership;

A corporation;

. A limited liability company;

A trust, including type of trust;

. An association; or

- Another entity, including a description of such entity’s organizational structure.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 54

b. A list of its directors, officers, partners, managers, trustees or members, as applicable;
and

¢. A description of its purpose;

(3) For every business organization, except a sole proprietorship or general partnership, proof
of authorization from the secretary of state to do business in New Hampshire;

(4) For every trust and unincorporated business organization including, but not limited to,
partnerships and unincorporated associations, a copy of its governing instrument(s);

(5) Ifthe business organization is a sole proprietor doing business in this state under any other
name than his own, a partnership, association, or any other entity required to register a trade
name with the New Hampshire secretary of state pursuant to RSA 349:1, a copy of the
certificate of trade name issued by the secretary of state;

(6) If the applicant is a condominium unit owners’ association, a photocopy of the
condominium’s declaration and bylaws as recorded in the registry of deeds;

(7) An explanation of how the commercial mooring(s) for hire is or will be used to further the
purposes of the business; and

(8) The mooring permit fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(d) By signing the form, the applicant shall certify the following:
(1) “I hereby certify that I, or the business organization that I represent, release and indemnify
Pease Development Authority and hold Pease Development Authority harmless from any and
all claims or liability which may arise on account of the use of the mooring(s);” and
(2) “I hereby certify that the statements and information in the enclosed documents are to the
best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. I am aware that my mooring
permit or placement on a mooring wait list may be withdrawn by the Pease Development

Authority for submitting false statements or information or omitting required statements or
information.”

(e) A shorefront property owner making a reapplication for a commercial mooring for hire mooring
permit shall certify, in addition to the certification required under (d) above, that:

(1) He or she is an owner of the shorefront property described in the attached tax bill; and

(2) The mooring described in the application is located in the shorefront property mooring area
of the shorefront property described in the attached tax bill.

(f) The applicant shall sign and date the application.

Pda 511.05 Non-Revenue Mooring Permit Application Form.




Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 55

(a) Each applicant seeking a non-revenue mooring permit shall complete a non-revenue mooring
application form provided by the division and hand deliver or mail the completed application to:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “Non-Revenue
Mooring Permit Application Form”:

(1) The applicant’s full legal name;
(2) The applicant’s permanent address, including:
a. Street and number;
b. City or town;
¢. State; and
d. Zip code;
(3) The applicant’s mailing address, if different from the permanent address;

(4) Which address the applicant requests be used as the correspondence address by the division
if different from the permanent address;

2

(5) The applicant’s telephone number(s) for its contact person, including:

a. Permanent telephone number;

b. Emergency telephone number; and

¢. Cell telephone number, if different from permanent telephone number;
(6) The mooring field, mooring subfield, or nearshore area for which application is made;
(7) The applicant’s e-mail address, if the applicant has an e-mail address; and
(8) The following information pertaining to each vessel(s):

a. Vessel name;

b. New Hampshire state registration number;

c. Vessel LOA;

d. Vessel draft;

e. Vessel color; and



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 56

f. Type of vessel.
(c) The applicant shall attach:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration(s) for the vessel(s) listed on the
mooring permit application; and

(2) The request for a non-revenue mooring as described in Pda 506.10(h).
(d) By signing the form, the applicant shall certify the following:

(1) “I hereby certify that the applicant is an owner in full or in part of the vessel described in
this application;” and

(2) “I hereby certify that the statements and information in the enclosed documents are to the
best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. [ am aware that my mooring
permit or placement on a mooring wait list may be withdrawn by the Pease Development
Authority for submitting false statements or information or omitting required statements or
information.”

(e) The applicant’s duly authorized representative shall sign and date the application.

Pda 511.06 Mooring Wait List Application Form.

(a) Each person seeking to be placed on the division’s mooring wait list or lists shall complete an
application form provided by the division and hand deliver or mail the completed application to:

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

(b) The applicant shall provide the division the following information utilizing the “Wait List
Application Form™:

(1) The applicant’s full legal name;
(2) The applicant’s permanent or home address;
(3) The applicant’s permanent, home and/or cellular telephone number;

(4) The type of vessel for which the mooring is sought, indicating sail, power, commercial, or
pleasure, if known;

(5) Whether the vessel will be used commercially or recreationally;
(6) The LOA and draft of the vessel, if known; and

(7) The mooring field(s), mooring subfield(s), or nearshore area(s) wait list on which the
applicant seeks to have his or her name placed.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 57

(¢) The applicant shall attach:

(1) A copy of the current New Hampshire state registration for the vessel listed on the “Mooring
Wait List Application Form™, if the applicant currently has such a vessel, unless the vessel is
not required to be registered under New Hampshire law;

(2) A photograph of the vessel, if the applicant current has a vessel and the vessel is not required
to be registered under New Hampshire law; and

(3) The mooring wait list fee, provided that fees paid in the form of a check or a money order
shall be made payable to “Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors” or
“PDA-DPH.”

(d) The applicant shall sign and date the application.
Readopt Pda 513 - Pda 514.01 effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:
PART Pda 513 EMERGENCY MOORINGS FOR SECURITY OR LAW ENFORCEMENT PURPOSES

Pda 513.01 Emergency Moorings. Notwithstanding Pda 503 to Pda 512, the division director shall,
upon request from an individual authorized by a state or federal law enforcement agency, set a temporary
or permanent mooring to be held by the authority or the authority’s designee for the use of a state or federal
law enforcement agency for the purposes of state or national security or for protection of public health and
safety, provided that the division director determines that the mooring can be safely set and would not pose
a danger to navigation.

PART Pda 514 RECONSIDERATION AND APPEAL
Pda 514.01 Definitions.

(a) “Application period” means the period of time between January 15 and 10 business days after
March 1 of the year for which the mooring permit application was submitted.

(b) “Incapacitated” means a physical or mental condition that results in:
(1) The inability of an individual to:
a. Walk unassisted; or
b. Drive unassisted; or

(2) The confinement of an individual to a location(s) for the purpose of receiving medical or
rehabilitative treatment or care.

Readopt with amendments Pda 514.02, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.02 Reconsideration: Who May Petition.

(a) Any holder of a mooring permit whose mooring permit was revoked after notice and an
opportunity for a hearing by the division director pursuant to Pda 507.03, and any applicant for a mooring



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 58

permit whose application was denied by the division director pursuant to Pda 506.06(f), Pda 506.07(h), Pda
506.08(h), Pda 506.10(f), or Pda 506.11(g), may petition the division director for reconsideration pursuant
to Pda 514.

(b) The persons specified below may petition the authority for reconsideration pursuant to Pda 514
if the authority has denied:

(1) The issuance of a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit, and the person is the applicant
for the commercial mooring for hire mooring permit pursuant to Pda 506.09 or its duly authorized

officer or member;

(2) A request to transfer a commercial use mooring permit pursuant to Pda 508.01(a) or (b),
and the person is either the proposed transferor or transferee; or

(3) A request to transfer a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit pursuant to Pda 508.02,
and the person is either the proposed transferor or transferee.

Readopt with amendment Pda 514.03 effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.03 Requirements for Petition for Reconsideration. A petition for reconsideration shall:

(a) Specity the date of the challenged decision;

(b) Specify every reason that the action taken by the division director or authority was unlawful or
unreasonable, including any error of law or error of fact;

(c) Include as an attachment a copy of the application or request that was denied or failed to receive
approval;

(d) Include any new or additional information relevant to the matter proposed for reconsideration
that was not available at the time the application was filed or the revocation was made;

(e) In the case of denial of a permit because of a late filing under Pda 506.04(d), state the reason for
the late filing; and

(f) Shall bear the petitioners signature including the following certification:
“I certify under penalty of law that [ have personally examined, and am familiar with, the
information submitted in this petition for reconsideration and all of its attachments. I certify
that the statements and information submitted therewith are to the best of my knowledge and
belief true, accurate and complete.”

Readopt with amendments Pda 514.04, effective 8§-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.04 Reconsideration by Division Director: Granting of Permit under Certain Circumstances.

(a) A petition for reconsideration by the division director:

(1) For revocation of a permit pursuant to Pda 507.03, shall be filed with the division director
within 10 business days from receipt of notice of the revocation; and



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 59

(2) For a permit denial pursuant to Pda 506.06(f), Pda 506.07(h), Pda 506.08(h), Pda 506.10(f),
or Pda 506.11(g), shall be filed with the division director within 10 business days from receipt
of notice of the permit denial.

(b) The division director shall:

(1) Reconsider a permit revocation or denial within 10 business days of receipt of the petition
for reconsideration; and

(2) Notify the petitioner of his or her decision under (¢) below within 10 business days of
reconsideration.

(c) When reconsidering the decision to deny or revoke the permit, the division director shall consider
all information on file with division relating to the denied or revoked permit and any new or additional
information relevant to the matter under reconsideration that was not available regarding a permit:

(1) Denial, when the application in question was submitted; or

(2) Revocation, when the decision to revoke a permit was rendered.

(d) The division director shall issue the permit sought after in the petition for reconsideration if,
after reconsideration, the division director finds:

(1) One or more of the following:

a. It is more likely than not that the decision to deny or revoke a permit was based on an
error of law or fact;

b. That there was a lack of facts that could reasonably sustain the decision to deny or
revoke the permit; or

¢. Inthe case of denial of a permit because of a late filing under Pda 506.04(d), that:
1. The petitioner was temporarily incapacitated for:
(1) Fifty percent or more of the application period; or
(if) One day or more during the final 10 days of the application period;

2. The petitioner was on active military service at any time during the application
period;

3. The late filing was caused by the failure of any state or governmental agency to
timely provide the petitioner with documentation required for an application under
Pda 500; or

4. A death in the immediate family occurred during the final 10 days of the
application period. For the purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” means
grandparents, parents, siblings, spouse, children, or grandchildren; and

(2) All of the following:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 60

a. The petition for reconsideration was timely filed in accordance with (a) above;

b. The petition for reconsideration filed by the petitioner meets all of the requirements of
Pda 514.03; and

c¢. The petitioner:
|. Meets all of the requirements under Pda 500 for the permit;

2. Has provided written documentation for any reason claimed under (1)c. above,
including, but not limited to:

(i) In the case of temporary incapacitation:

i. A signed letter from a doctor, nurse, or other medical provider or
caregiver attesting to the petitioner’s incapacitation,;

ii. A copy of a bill or invoice from an institution where the petitioner
received medical or rehabilitative treatment or care; or

iii. A copy of a statement from an insurance company showing that costs
for medical or rehabilitative treatment or care were submitted to the
company for services for the petitioner;

(i) In the case of military service, a signed letter from the petitioner’s
commanding officer or supervisor attesting to the petitioner’s military service;

(ili) In the case of the failure of any state or federal agency to provide the
petitioner with documentation needed for an application under Pda 500, a copy
of correspondence between the petitioner and a state or governmental agency,
showing that the petitioner timely sought documentation needed for an
application under Pda 500, but was not provided with the documentation in a
timely manner; or

(iv) In the case of a death in the immediate family, to identify the name of the
deceased, the relationship to the petitioner, and the date of death; and

3. Has paid the mooring permit reapplication late fee, in the case of petition granted
under (1)c. above.

(¢) The division director shall deny the request to issue or reinstate the permit if, after
reconsideration, the division director finds that:

(1) It is more likely than not that the decision was not based on any error of law;
(2) There were facts reasonably sustaining the decision;

(3) Inthe case of a late filing under Pda 506.04(d), the petitioner failed to meet the requirements
under (d)(1)c. above;



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 61

(4) The petition for reconsideration was not timely filed in accordance with (a) above;

(5) The petition for reconsideration filed by the petitioner does not meet all of the requirements
of Pda 514.03; or

(6) The petitioner:
a. Does not meet all of the requirements under Pda 500 for the permit;

b. Has not provided written documentation for any reason claimed under (d)(1)c. above;
or

c. Has not paid the mooring permit reapplication late fee, in the case of petition filed
under (d)(1)c. above.

() If, after reconsideration, the division director grants the request to issue or reinstate the permit
sought after in the petition for reconsideration, the petitioner shall return to the division a completed
application for the permit sought within 10 business days of receipt of the division director’s decision.

Readopt Pda 514.05- Pda 514.10, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.05 Reconsideration by Authority for Commercial Moorines for Hire and Commercial Moorings.

(a) A petition for reconsideration by the authority shall be filed by the petitioner with the authority
within 10 business days from receipt of notice that the authority has denied:

(1) The issuance of a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit pursuant to Pda 506.09(h);
(2) A request to transfer a commercial use mooring permit pursuant to Pda 508.01(a) or (b); or
(3) A request to transfer a commercial mooring for hire mooring permit pursuant to Pda 508.02.

(b) The authority shall review and make a decision on whether or not to grant a petition for
reconsideration at its next regularly scheduled meeting, if the petition was received at least 10 business days
before such meeting,. If the petition was not received at least 10 business days before the authority’s next
regularly scheduled meeting, the authority shall review and make a decision on whether or not to grant the
petition for reconsideration at the authority’s following regularly scheduled meeting. The authority shall
notify the petitioner of the authority’s decision on whether to grant or deny the petition within 5 business
days of the decision.

(¢) When making a decision on a petition for reconsideration, the authority shall consider all
information on file with the division concerning the authority’s denial under Pda 5 14.02(b) and any new or
additional information relevant to the matter under reconsideration that was not available regarding:

(1) A permit denial, when the application in question was submitted; or

(2) The transfer of a commercial mooring permit, when the decision to refuse the permit
transfer was rendered.

(d) The authority shall remand the matter to the division director for issuance of the permit or for
granting a request for a transfer sought after in the petition for reconsideration, if, after reconsideration, the



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 62

authority finds:
(1) One or more of the following:

a. It more likely than not that the authority’s decision concerning the issuance or transfer
of the mooring was based on an error of law or fact;

b. That there was a lack of facts that could reasonably sustain the decision to deny or
revoke the permit; or

c. In the case of denial of a permit because of a late filing under Pda 506.04(d), that:
1. The petitioner was temporarily incapacitated for:
(i) Fifty percent or more of the application period; or
(ii) One day or more during the final 10 days of the application period;

2. The petitioner was on active military service at any time during the application
period;

3. The late filing was caused by the failure of any state or governmental agency to
timely provide the petitioner with documentation required for an application by Pda
500; or

4. A death in the immediate family occurred during the final 10 days of the
application period. For the purposes of this paragraph, “immediate family” means
grandparents, parents, siblings, spouse, children or grandchildren; and

(2) All of the following:

a. The petition for reconsideration was timely filed in accordance with (a) above;

b. The petition for reconsideration filed by the petitioner meets all of the requirements of
Pda 514.03; and

c. The petitioner:
1. Meets all of the requirements under Pda 500 for the permit or transfer;

2. Has provided written documentation for any reason claimed under (1)c. above,
including, but not limited to:

(i) In the case of temporary incapacitation:

i. A signed letter from a doctor, nurse, or other medical provider or
caregiver attesting to the petitioner’s incapacitation;

ii. A copy of a bill or invoice from an institution where the petitioner
received medical or rehabilitative treatment or care; or



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 63

iii. A copy of a statement from an insurance company showing that costs
for medical or rehabilitative treatment or care were submitted to the
company for services for the petitioner;

(ii) In the case of military service, a signed letter from the petitioner’s
commanding officer or supervisor attesting to the petitioner’s military service;

(iii) In the case of the failure of any state or federal agency to provide the
petitioner with documentation needed for an application under Pda 500, a copy
of correspondence between the petitioner and a state or governmental agency,
showing that the petitioner timely sought documentation needed for an
application under Pda 500, but was not provided with the documentation in a
timely manner; or

(iv) In the case of a death in the immediate family, to identify the name of the
deceased, the relationship to the petitioner, and the date of death; and

3. Has paid the mooring permit reapplication late fee, in the case of petition granted
under (1)c. above.

(¢) The authority shall deny the request to issue or transfer the permit specified in Pda 514.02(b) if,
after reconsideration, the authority finds that:

(1) It is more likely than not that the decision was not based on any error of law:
(2) There were facts reasonably sustaining the decision;

(3) In the case of a late filing under Pda 506.04(d), the petitioner failed to meet the requirements
under (d)(1)c. above;

(4) The petition for reconsideration was not timely filed in accordance with (a) above;

(5) The petition for reconsideration filed by the petitioner does not meet all of the requirements
of Pda 514.03; or

(6). The petitioner:
a. Does not meet all of the requirements under Pda 500 for the permit or transfer;

b. Has not provided written documentation for any reason claimed under (d)(1)c. above;
or

¢. Has not paid the mooring permit reapplication late fee, in the case of petition filed
under (d)(1)c. above.

(D If, after reconsideration, the authority grants the request to issue or transfer the permit sought

after in the petition for reconsideration, the petitioner shall return to the division a completed application
for the permit sought within 10 business days of receipt of the authority’s decision.

Pda 514.06 Appeal to Authority: Standard of Review.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 64

(a) If the division director has denied a request to issue the permit sought after in a petition for
reconsideration under Pda 514.04, the petitioner may appeal to the authority within 10 business days after
receipt of written notice of denial by the division director.

(b) The appellant shall bear the burden of proving that the decision of the division director to deny
appellant’s request to issue the permit sought after in a petition for reconsideration under Pda 514.04 was
based on an error of law or fact or there was a lack of facts that could reasonably sustain the division
director’s decision.

(c) The authority shall accept all determinations of the division director made under Pda 514.04
upon questions of fact as lawful and reasonable unless the appellant specifically rebuts such determination

of fact as unlawful or unreasonable.

Pda 514.07 Requirements for Appeal. A request for appeal shall:

(a) Specify the date notice of the division director’s denial of the request to issue the permit sought
after in a petition for reconsideration was received by the appellant;

(b) Specify every reason that the action taken by the division director or authority was contrary to
Pda 500 or otherwise unlawful or unreasonable, including any error of law or error of fact;

(c) Include as an attachment a copy of the application or request that was denied or failed to receive
approval;

(d) Include any new or additional information relevant to the matter on appeal that was not available
at the time the request for reconsideration was made to the director under Pda 514.01;

(e) Specify the reason for the late filing and include as an attachment written documentation
supporting the reason specified for late filing; and

() Include the following certification;

“I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined, and am familiar with, the
information submitted in this appeal and all of its attachments. [ certify that the statements and
information submitted therewith are to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and
complete.”

Pda 514.08 Referral of Matter to Board Member for Recommendation: Procedure for Board
Member.

(a) The chair of the board shall designate a board member to review appeals to the authority under
Pda 514.06.

(b) The board designate shall:
(1) Notify the appellant in writing that the board designate will be reviewing the matter on
appeal on behalf of the board and preparing a recommended decision regarding the appeal for

consideration and action by the board;

(2) Provide the appellant an opportunity, including date, time, and location, to meet with the
board designate and present his or her information and argument regarding the appeal, provided



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 65

that the meeting shall occur within 15 business days of the filing of the appeal with the
authority;

(3) Notify the appellant that he or she may bring counsel or a personal representative to the
meeting;

(4) Notify the appellant that any written information, testimony or argument not previously
submitted during reconsideration by the division director shall be submitted to the board
designate not later than 5 business days before the date of the meeting with the board designate;
and

(5) Notify the appellant that the meeting with the board designate will be recorded.

(¢) The division director shall provide the board designate a copy of all information concerning the
matter in the possession of the division director.

(d) The following shall apply at the meeting with the board designate:

(1) The board designate shall exclude any additional written information, testimony or
argument that was not submitted in accordance with (b)(4) above unless the board designate
finds good cause for appellant’s failure to comply with (b)(4) above and that late submission
was not intended to delay the appeal or the meeting with the board designate. For purposes of
this paragraph, “good cause” means that the appellant did not discover, learn of, or formulate
the information, testimony, or argument in time to submit such information, testimony, or
argument in accordance with (b)(4) above and could not have discovered, learned of, or
formulated such information, testimony, or argument with reasonable diligence to comply with
(b)(4) above;

(2) The appellant or his or her counsel or representative may direct questions to the board
designate, including questions for a division representative(s) present at the meeting;

(3) The division staff may direct questions to the board designate, including questions for
appellant or his or her counsel or representative present at the meeting;

(4) The appellant’s questions for the division representative(s) and the division’s questions to
the appellant or appellant’s representative shall be asked only by the board designate; and

(5) The board designate may exclude irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious information,
testimony or argument.

(e) Within 10 business days after the meeting with the board designate under (d) above, the board
designate, after reviewing the information provided by the division director and the appellant, and after
meeting with division staff and the appellant, if the appellant requested such a meeting, shall make a written
recommendation to the authority regarding the appeal. The board designate shall at the same time send to
the appellant, by first class mail, a copy of the recommendation made to the authority.

Pda 514.09 Authority Action on Appeal.

(a) Within 10 business days of receipt of a recommendation from a board designate, the authority
shall notify the appellant in writing:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 66

(1) That the authority will be reviewing the board designate’s recommendation regarding the
appeal;

(2) Ofthe date, time, and location of the regularly scheduled board meeting at which the review
is scheduled, provided that the meeting shall not be sooner than 20 calendar days from the
receipt of the board designate’s recommendation under Pda 514.08(e);

(3) That he or she may bring counsel or a personal representative to the meeting; and
(4) That the meeting with the board will be recorded.

(b) At the board meeting when the appeal is scheduled, the authority shall consider:
(1) All information on file with the division concerning the matter;

(2)All information submitted to the authority or board designate under Pda 514.07 and Pda
514.08;

(3) Any additional written information not previously submitted under Pda 514.07 or Pda
514.08, provided the chair of the authority finds good cause for appellant’s failure to comply
with Pda 514.07 or Pda 514.08 and that late submission was not intended to delay the appeal
or the meeting with the authority. For purposes of this paragraph, “good cause” means that the
appellant did not discover or learn of the information in time to submit such information in
accordance with Pda 514.07 or Pda 514.08 above and could not have discovered or learned of
such information with reasonable diligence to comply with Pda 514.07 or Pda 514.08;

(4) Any oral statement or argument made by the appellant or his representative or division
staff; and

(5) The recommendation of the board designate.
(c) The following shall apply at the board meeting:
(1) The appellant may bring counsel or a personal representative;

(2) The authority shall exclude any additional written information, testimony or argument that
was not submitted in accordance with Pda 514.07 and Pda 514.08 unless the chair of the
authority finds good cause for appellant’s failure to comply with Pda 514.07 and Pda 514.08
and that late submission was not intended to delay the appeal. For purposes of this paragraph,
“good cause” means that the appellant did not discover, learn of, or formulate the information,
testimony, or argument in time to submit such information, testimony, or arguiment in
accordance with Pda 514.07 or Pda 514.08 above and could not have discovered, learned of, or
formulated such information, testimony, or argument with reasonable diligence to comply with
Pda 514.07 or Pda 514.08; and

(3) Any oral information, testimony or argument may be received, but the chair or other
presiding officer in the chair’s absence shall exclude irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly
repetitious information, testimony or argument, including without limitation, information,
testimony or argument included in or with the division’s file regarding the appellant or the
written recommendation of the board designate.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 67

Pda 514.10 Decision by Authority on Appeal. The authority shall render a decision regarding the
appeal no later than the next regularly scheduled board meeting following any board meeting held under
Pda 514.09.

Readopt with amendment Pda 514.11, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.11 When Matter Remanded to Division Director: Notification of Decision of Authoritv.

(a) If the authority determines that the permit should be granted because the appellant has met its
burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence that the decision of the division director to deny the
appellant’s request to issue the permit sought after in the petition for reconsideration was based on an error
of law or fact or there was a lack of facts that could reasonably sustain the division director’s decision, the
authority shall remand the matter to the division director for action in accordance with its decision.

(b) The authority shall notify the appellant of its decision and provide a written copy thereof within
10 business days of issuing a decision pursuant to Pda 514.10.

(c) If the authority determines, under (a) above, that the permit should be granted, the appellant
shall return a completed application for the permit sought within 10 business days of receipt of notice from
the authority under (b) above.

Readopt Pda 514.12, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:

Pda 514.12 Removal of Representatives.

(a) Upon making a finding of misconduct on the part of any representative appearing before
the director, authority or board designate, as a licable, the director, authority or board designate shall
3 . - g pp .
prohibit that individual from acting as a representative for the pending matter.
(b) For purposes of this section, misconduct means:
(1) Behavior that is disruptive to the orderly conduct of the reconsideration or appeal; or
(2) A consistent or recurring failure to:
a. Meet deadlines; or

b. Comply with the provisions of Pda 514.

(¢) Prior to making a finding of misconduct so as to warrant the imposition of such prohibition, the
director, authority or board designate, as applicable, shall:

(1) Inform the representative and the party represented by the representative to the proceeding
of the proposed prohibition; and

(2) Provide an opportunity for the representative and the party represented by the representative
to address the director, authority or board designate, as applicable, regarding why the
prohibition should or should not be imposed.

Readopt with amendment Pda 514.13 and Pda 514.14, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read
as follows:



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 68

Pda 514.13 Reguests to Extend Time.

(a) Any person seeking reconsideration or appellant may ask the director, authority, or board
designate, as applicable, to extend any time limit established by Pda 514.

(b) A request for an extension of time shall be made in writing to the director, authority, or board
designate, as applicable, before the expiration of the prescribed period.

(¢) Division staff shall be given an opportunity to object within 5 business days of receiving a request
to extend time.

(d) The director, authority or board designate, as applicable, shall grant the requested extension if it
determines that:

(1) The time period is not mandated by statute;

(2) One of the following applies:
a. An extension is necessary to conduct a more effective reconsideration or appeal; or
b. The person seeking reconsideration, the appellant, or their representative(s) is
incapacitated, has suffered a death in the family, or has otherwise been delayed or prevented

from meeting the applicable deadline by unforeseeable circumstances beyond the party’s
control; and

(3) No person objects to the extension or, if a person does object, the reason(s) for granting the
extension outweigh the reason(s) for denying the extension.

Pda 514.14 Continuance.

(a) Any appellant or person seeking reconsideration may request that a meeting conducted pursuant
to Pda 514 be continued for reasonable cause and reconvened or rescheduled.

(b) Prior to filing a request for a continuance of any scheduled meeting regarding a pending
reconsideration or appeal made in advance of the meeting, the appellant or person seeking reconsideration

seeking the continuance shall seek concurrence with the request from division staff.

(c) A request for a continuance of a meeting with the director, authority or board designate, as
applicable, made in advance of such meeting shall:

(1) Bein writing;
(2) State the reason(s) for the request;

(3) Be delivered or received filed at least 5 calendar days before the scheduled meeting date;
and

(4) State whether the division staff agree or disagree with the request or did not respond to the
request for concurrence.



Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 69

(d) A request for a continuance made at a scheduled meeting may be made orally provided notice
of such request is recorded by the division director, authority or board designate, as applicable.

(e) The division director, authority or board designate shall grant the request if he or she determines
that reasonable cause exists and that no person will be materially prejudiced by the delay.

(f) For purposes of this section, reasonable cause shall include:

(1) Unavailability of an individual appellant or person seeking reconsideration, or
representative, or witness;

(2) The participants believe that an informal resolution is possible and need more time to
resolve the matter; or

(3) The appellant or person seeking reconsideration or the division are awaiting information,
reports, data, or a related court decision which is material to the reconsideration or appeal.

(g) Any grant of a continuance shall specify the time and place at which the meeting shall be
rescheduled. The division director, authority or board designate, as applicable, shall provide notice of a
rescheduled meeting regarding the reconsideration or appeal in such a manner as is appropriate to ensure
that reasonable notice of at least 10 calendar days shall be given of the time and place of the continued
meeting.

Readopt Pda 515, effective 8-20-11 (Document # 9975), to read as follows:
PART Pda 515 ANCHORAGE

Pda 515.01 Change in Position May Be Ordered. The chief harbor master or designee shall at any
time order any vessel at anchor to change position when, in the chief harbor master or designee’s opinion,
such vessel is so anchored as to impede navigation or to endanger other vessels.







Adopted Rule, 2019-69 Fixed Text 12-19-19 70

APPENDIX 1
Rule Number State Statute Implemented
Pda 50[-Pda 502 RSA 12-G:42, 111, VI; 12-G:50, I(b), (c), (O
Pda 503.01 RSA 12-G:42, 111, VI, 12-G:50, I(b)
Pda 503.02 RSA 12-G:42, IlI, VI; 12-G:50, I(b), (f)
Pda 504 RSA 12-G:42, 111, VI; 12-G:50, I(b)

Pda 505-Pda 508.02

RSA 12-G:42, VI

Pda 508.03- Pda 509.07

RSA 12-G:42, VI, VII

Pda 509.08

RSA 12-G:42, VI

Pda 510.01 — 510.02

RSA 12-G:42, VI; 12-G:50, I(b)

Pda 510.03

RSA 12-G:42, VI, 12-G:50, I(b), (f)

Pda 510.04 - 510.07

RSA 12-G:42, VI; 12-G:50, I(b)

Pda 511

RSA 12-G:42, VI

Pda 513 RSA 12-G:42, VI
Pda 514 RSA 12-G:42, VI, VII
Pda 515.01 RSA 12-G:42, 1I1; 12-G:50, I(c), ()







PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 55 inigrnalional Drive Parismouth, MM 03301
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MOTION

Director Allard:

Reported to the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors at
its meeting on May 16, 2019 was a Right-of-Entry requested by Riverside
& Pickering Marine Contractors for use of ¥ (one-half) acre of laydown area
and non-exclusive use of the Barge Dock at the Market Street Terminal for
the “Buoy Project”; which Right-of-Entry was extended by the Board on
September 19, 2019 through December 31, 201 9; based on project review
and unforeseen circumstances Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors
are requesting another extension of the Right-of-Entry through June 30,
2020.

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and consents to the second extension of the Riverside &
Pickering Marine Contractors Right-of-Entry to allow more time for
completion of their project; all in accordance with the memorandum of
Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated December 10, 2019, attached
hereto.

N:ARESOLVES\2019\DPH-Riverside & Pickering ROE Extension - Buoy Project 12-19~19.docx

OO TAKING YOU THERE

R N N

www.peasedev org






)

W -
PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 Market Street, Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 03801

PORTS AND HARBORS

To: Pease Development Authority (“PDA™) Board of Directors

From: Geno Marconi, Director
Date: December 10, 2019

Subject: Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors, Extension of Right of Entry,
Market St. Terminal

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) received a request from Riverside Marine
Construction, Inc. dba Riverside. and Pickering Marine Contractors (“Riverside”) to extend its
Right of Entry (“ROE”) in order to continue to use the facilities at the Market St. Terminal
(the “Premises”) in association with its Healy Wave Energy Buoy project through June 30,
2020. Riverside was granted an ROE through September 30, 2019, and an extension was
approved by the PDA Board through December 31, 2019. Based on a recent project review,
and due to unforeseen circumstances, Riverside determined that it would require much more
time to complete the project.

The Division reviewed the request and recommends approval of the extension subject to the
same core terms and conditions as the original ROE dated April 1, 2019, which are as

follows:

PREMISES: Market St. Terminal, 555 Market St., Portsmouth, NH

PURPOSE: Use of %2 (one-half) acre of laydown area and non-exclusive
use of the Barge Dock for the “Buoy Project”

TERM: January 1, 2020 on a month to month basis, through June 30,
2020

FEE: $2,625.00 per month and any applicable terminal fees per
Exhibit C

INSURANCE: Minimum insurance coverage as outlined in Exhibit A

(attached), as the same may be required or appropriate in
connection with the individual operations of each entity doing
business on state property. Coverage amounts and types may
change from time to time contingent upon the nature and scope
of operations.

OO0OOO TAKING YOU THERE
ph: 603-436-8500 fax: 603-436-2780 www.peasedev.org



From: Shane Moores <shane@riversideandpickering.com>

Date: December 6, 2019 at 13:08:34 EST

To: Whitney Anderson <W.Anderson@peasedev.org>, Geno Marconi <G.Marconi@peasedev.org>
Subject: Tentative Schedule For Land Lease & Barge Wharf AT NHPA - Healy Wave Energy Converter

Whit / Geno,

This is the latest version of the Healy Wave Energy Converter schedule at NHPA from now through ocean
deployment in May or June 2020.

12/10/19 - Astro Crane — Turn FB And Set Into Cradle / Move IT Sections Over

12/11/19 — 12/12/19 — Assemble NBT Into IT / Assemble IT / Install IT (RT Onto FB

12/12/19 — Move RPMC 5080 Barge Out / Move WEC Barge Back For WEC Deployment

12/13/19 — Astro Crane (2 Cranes) & 4000W ~ Lift Fully Assembled WEC Of Deck Of Barge Wharf And Set

Into Barge / Water
12/14/19 — Install 24" Pipe Pile Fender Piles At Ship Pier (As Soon As Ship Leaves) / Move 30" X 110

Spacer Barge To Ship Pier

12/15/19 ~ Move RPMC 5080 (50’ X 80") 4000W Barge & WEC Barge To Ship Pier For Testing

12/16/19 — 12/19/19 — WEC In River Testing (RPMC 5080 Barge / 4000W / Push Boat “Lynx")
12/20/19 - Move RPMC 5080 Barge To RPMC Pier & Mooring Area / Move WEC barge (WEC Stowed) To
RPMC Pier & Mooring Area / Move 30’ X 110" Barge To Barge Wharf

12/23/19 — Move 30’ X 110" Barge From NHPA Barge Wharf Back To RPMC Pier

12/23/19 - 01/06/20 — Holiday Shut Down

01/06/20 - Move WEC Barge and RPMC 5080 Barge From Our Pier Back To NHPA Barge Wharf
01/07/20 — Astro Crane (2 Cranes) & 4000W Crane - Lift Fully Assembled WEC Out Of The Water/Barge
And Set Onto The Barge Wharf

01/08/20 — Astro Crane (2 Cranes) — Remove IT From FB. Lift FB, Turn FB To Vettical And Set FB Back
Onto Stand. Move FB On Stand To Boat Ramp End Of Barge Wharf. Move IT To Boat Ramp End Of Barge

Wharf
01/09/20 — Install Frame For Teepee on FB. Install Shrink Wrap For Teepee On FB. Connect FB To Shore

Power

01/10/20 — Complete Work For WEC Winter Storage

01/11/20 - 4/30/20 — Winter Storage For WEC On Barge Wharf

04/01/20 — 4/30/20 — Build Out Barge For Ocean Deployment (Barge Wharf).

05/01/20 — 06/30/20 — Reassemble WEC, Load & Deploy WEC anchors, Install WEC Into River And

Deploy WEC 1In Ocean.

This may change due to issues and or weather. Let me know if you have any issues or concerns.

Sincerely,

Shane Moores

Project Manager

Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors
34 Patterson Ln

Newington NH 03801

(603) 427-2824 Office

(603) 205-5243 Cell

(866) 571-7132 Fax



EXHIBIT A

L\:__ .
Nt

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL
ST R o L

G54 Market Straet Suile | Portamouth, MH 0180 1

R Rt N

PORTS AND HARBORS

T0:
RE:

ALL CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND/OR AGENTS

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF CERTIE ICATES OF INSURANCE IFOR
CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS WORKIN G ON PROPERTY OF PEASE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY-DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS

All contractors, subcontractors and/or any ageuts thereof are required to provide proof of insurance to the Pease
Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors (PDA-DPH) before the commencement of any work on

PDA-DPI property. The following are the minimum requirements for insurance coverage:

K

9

Commercial Genéral Liability: Two (2) million dollars commeicial general liability coverage per
oceurrence; and Two (2) million dollars per project aggregate,

Automobile Liability: One (1) million dollars automobile liability coverage.

Worlers Compensation: Coverage equal to minimum statutory levels as required by New Hampshire
State law,

Longshore and Harbor Workers Compensation Act Insurance: 7o the extent applicable and to
limits as required by Federal and State law.

Environmental/Pollution Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for such
coverage and in such amounts as determined by PDA-DPH from time to time.

Additional Insureds: Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors and the Statc of

New Hampshire must be named as additional insureds under all liability coverages.
Professional Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for such coverage
and in a minimum amount of One (1) million dollars.

Notice of Cancellation: A 30 day notice of cancellation (with the exception of a 10 day notice for non-

payment of premium) must be provided,

Waiver of Subrogation: With the exception of workers compensation coverage, a statement that ]
waiver of subrogation is included with respect to applicable coverage.

Primary Insurance: A provision that any liability coverage required to be carried shall be primary
and noncontributing with respect to any insurance carried by the PDA.

Certificate Holder:  Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports of Harbors
35 International Drive
Portsmouth, NI 03801

If you have any questions, please call the Pease Development Authority Legal Department at (603) 433-6343,

PAMMNSURANCE FORMS\nsMemCantractPort,doc

QOO TAKING YOU THERE

pho sl 4365500 fan GYs-436.2780 whew nassadey org






55 Internalioral Orive Portsmouth, MNH 03801

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Board of Directors (“PDA”) authorize the
Executive Director to enter into a contract with Ransom Engineering,
Division of Ports and Harbors (“Division”) Environmental Engineering
contractors, for the purpose of sediment sampling in the Rye Harbor state
anchorage site in preparation for the 2020-2021 Rye Harbor dredging
project , in an amount not to exceed $131,075.00 from the Harbor
Dredging and Pier Maintenance (“HDPM”) account, subject to approval of
the Capitol Budget Overview Committee (“CBOC”): all in accordance with a
memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated December 11,
2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\DPH - Rye Harbor Dredging Sample.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

R

www.peasedav org






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 5OT WaTes Strael, Swiie 1 Podamouwtl, W G030

PORTS AND HARBORS

To: Pease Development Authority (“PDA™), Board of Directors
From: Geno J. Marconi, Director

Re: Rye Harbor Sampling |

Date: December 11, 2019

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the “Division”) is seeking approval from the PDA
Board to expend not more than $131,075.00 from the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance
(“HDPM”) account, subject to approval of the Capital Budget Overview Committee
(*CBOC”), for the purpose of sediment sampling in the Rye Harbor state anchorage site in
preparation for the 2020-2021 Rye Harbor dredging project (“Rye’).

The Army Corps of Engineers (“ACOE”) notified the Division that sediment
sampling for Rye is required prior to dredging. The Division received a proposal (attached)
from Ransom Engineering, our Environmental Engineering contractors, to take the samples
and perform the analysis. The proposal is broken down into 3 “tasks.” It is unknown at this
time if just one, or all 3 of the tasks will be required as the Division has not received the final
scope of the sampling requirements from ACOE. This allows 3 options pending a final
determination of the sampling requirements, which are as follows:

* Task 1-ACOE has advised they believe that doing grain size analysis will be
enough, as the material should be essentially the same as the samples that
were taken by ACOE in the Federal portion of the dredge project. ACOE is
hopeful that the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) will agree that the
Rye samples are the same and will not require further testing. The cost to do
the initial grain size sampling is $10,603.00.

* Task 2-Should the federal agencies require further biological testing it would
need to be done within 10 days of taking the original samples and if that
occurs the cost for the additional sampling would be $8,100.00.

* Task 3-In the event that another deployment and sampling becomes necessary
that cost would be $112,372.00.

As you can see, the minimum expenditure is $10,603.00 and the maximum is
$131,075.00. In an effort to be prepared for all scenarios, I recommend that the PDA Board
approve the total potential expense as indicated above, subject to approval by CBOC. This
will allow the Division to proceed immediately with Tasks 2 and 3 should they be required.
The Division will report back to the PDA Board when the final scope of work is determined.

The cash balance of the HDPM account as of December 10, 2019 is $188,523.87. As
a reminder, the Division will begin receiving revenue in January from 2020 Pier Use Permit
fees which will help replenish the HDPM funds.

YU TAKING YOU THERE

N . T TR S U SR Y . 9 Nori s ap n b
P T T 1 TE LRGN s O340 07 3206 WAL eSS tigy. 800
PO BN | N SRR g &



Division of Ports & Harbors

Memorandum
To: Capt. Geno J. Marconi, Director
From: Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M K5
Re: Rye Harbor Sampling

Date: December 6, 2019

The Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE) is requiring sediment sampling in the
State Anchorage portion of the Rye Harbor dredging project. ACOE has advised that
they believe that doing only grain size analysis will be enough, as the material should be
essentially the same as the samples that were taken by ACOE in the Federal portion.
ACOE is hopeful that the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) will agree that the
samples are the same and will not require further testing. Ransom Engineering, our
Environmental Engineering contractors, gave us a proposal to take the samples and
perform the analysis. The cost to do the limited sampling is $10,603. It is possible that
the federal agencies may require limited biological testing within 10 days of taking the
samples. Ifthat occurs the cost would be an additional $§8100.

In the event that another deployment and sampling becomes necessary that cost
would be prohibitive at $112,372. In the hopes of avoiding the greater expense I
recommend that we seek authorization to expend not more than $18,703 from the Pier
Maintenance and Harbor Dredge Fund. This would allow us to do the additional limited
biological testing if required within the 10 day window of opportunity.

The proposal from Ransom Engineering is attached.



November 13,2019 Project 161.05023.019

Captain Geno J. Marconi, Director
Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports and Harbors

555 Market Street

Poitsmouth, New Hampshire

Re: Proposed Scope of Work — Sampling and Analyses for Dredging of Rye Harbor
Pease Development Authority — Division of Ports and Harbors
Rye Harbor State Anchorage
Rye Harbor
Rye, New Hampshire

Dear Geno:

Ransom Consulting, Inc. (Ransom) is pleased to present the following Proposed Scope of Work for your
approval for the above-referenced property (the Site). This proposal is being presented as requested by
you and Tracy Shaituck, Chief Harbormaster and Facility Security Officer, New Hampshire Port
Authority, in our meeting on October 22, 2019.

The proposed work is in conformance with the work detailed in the October 9, 2019 Sample and Analyses
Plan (SAP) Memorandum dated October 9, 2019 prepared by New England District (CENAE) of the
United States Army Corps of Engineers {Corps) Project Manager Richard C. Kristoff for the Marine
Analyses Section (MAS).

As we have discussed Ransom will subcontract Normandeau Associates, Inc. (Normandeau) as a regional
expert in dredge project sampling, analyses and reporting, and we will work with Normandeau to provide
oversight to document compliance with the SAP, particularly at key information collection evernts, such as
dredge sediments sampling, sample characterization determinations, initial compositing needs assessment,
and to facilitate appropriate communications at the critical pathway junctures with the MAS Project
Manager, particularly in coordination with:

I. Initial compositing determinations for grain size analyses (if warranted, based on field
observations of layering and visual sediment classification);

2. Grain size, percent moisture and total organic carbon results (to determine if a second
mobilization for further sampling and analyses is needed);

3. If necessary, as determined by the MAS based on grain size analyses, 10-day bioassay
tests (mortality results to be reviewed by MAS and possibie MAS direction for further

compositing for subsequent testing); and



Captain Geno Marconi, Director
Pease Development Authority

4. Upon second mobilization (if necessary as determined by the MAS based on grain size
analyses to conduct harbor sampling and offshore disposal site sampling) and
compositing (as directed), chemical analyses run (and other tests started) and chemical
analyses results reported (MAS provides input on contaminants of concern for 28-day
bicaccumulation test).

For this proposal we considered priority analyses of grain size and whether results could be provided
within 36 hours of sampling to the MAS project manager to aitempt to meet hold times for possible
further analyses as may be required. In that there was considerable uncertainty as to: (1) meeting the

36 hour turnaround (unlikely), (2) whether hold times could be met, (3} that the requisite volume of
sediment required for a/l analyses would require an additional day of sampling, and (4) that the offshore
disposal site sampling would also need to be implemented at the same time; there is considerable cost ina
one-mobilization approach and considerable downside risk that resampling might have to be conducted
due to lapsed hold times. Therefore, the proposal includes a separate second mobilization if required by
the MAS to accommiodate additional analyses as specified in the SAP and herein.

Note that the Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors (PDA-DPH) will need to
provide direction as to which disposal Site (Isle of shoals North Disposal Site or Cape Arundel Disposal
Site) to Ransom prior to initiation of Task 03 (if Task 03 is required).

SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work is as follows:

Task 00: Scope of Work Development

Meet with PDA-DPH to review SAP and understand project needs. Work with Normandeau to assess
implementation options and develop scope sequencing.

Task 01: First Mobilization Sampling and Analvses

Ransom will coordinate field services (including esiablishment of an on-site designated sample
processing area) with PDA-DPH, provide field services documentation, communicate initial mobilization
results and facilitate communication at key Task junctures {(as noted above) with PDA-DPH and MAS
Project Manager. Work will be as outlined in the SAP and further broken down by mobilization effort in
the attached Normandeau work plan and proposal and be focused on sediment core descriptions and
sample location documeniation (RHSA-1 through RHSA-3 per Figure 3 of the SAP), and grain size
analyses, percent moisture, and total organic carbon analyses. Sufficient sediment sample volume wili be
collected during the first mobilization for possible 10-day bioassay analyses as indicated in Tasl 02.

After Ransom and PDA-DPH review and approval of the sampling and testing results, Normandeau will
coordinate with the laboratory to provide data in the format required by the MAS Project Manager.

Ransom Project 101.05023.019 Page 2
AN2010\01.05023\019 Port Dredge Sampling\019 PSOW docx November 13, 2019



Captain Geno Marconi, Director
Pease Development Authority

Task 02: 10-Day Bioassav Analvses (if required)

Only if required by the MAS Project Manager and authorized by the PDA-DPH (after reporting of the
Task 01 resuits), initiate subcontractor 10-day bicassay on samples as directed by MAS Project Manager.

After Ransom and PDA-DPH review and approval of the sampling and testing results, Normandeay will
coordinate with the laboratory to provide data in the format required by the MAS Project Manager.

Commiunicate the results of the bioassay to the MAS Project Manager. Based on the 10-day bicassay
results, and MAS Project Manager assessment of those results, additional com positing of samples may be

Justified during the second mobilization sampling effort.

Task 03: Second Mobilization Sampling and Analyses (if required)

Only if required by the MAS Project Manager and authorized by the PDA-DPH (after reporting of the
Task 01 results), Ransom will coordinate field services with PDA-DPH, provide field services
documentation, communicate second mobilization results and facilitate communication at key Task
junctures (as noted above) with PDA-DPH and MAS Project Manager. Sampling and analyses will be as
outlined in the SAP in the attached Normandeau work plan and proposal and be focused on collection and
analyses of additional volume of sediment from the Rye Harbor sampling locations and the offshore
disposal site (one of two locations to be specified by PDA-DPH), and water from the Harbor site and
disposal site. Compositing of sediment samples will be as directed by the MAS based on Task 01 and

Task 02 results.

Key communications under this task are conveyance of the bulk chemical analyses results to the MAS
Project Manager to determine which contaminants of concern will be required for the 28-day
bioaccumulation test tissues analyses.

Review Normandeau and laboratory data submittal and provide PDA-DPH with a summary of findings
and attached laboratory report. After Ransom and PDA-DPH review and approval of the sampling and
testing results, Normandeau will coordinate with the laboratory to provide data in the format required by
the MAS Project Manager.

Task 04: Dredge Project Additional Consultine Support

Assist PDA-DPH as may be requested, in addition to the above services in support of information or
permit filings. These services will be provided under a specific budget(s) to be provided by Ransom and

approved by the PDA-DPH, in writing.

PROJECT COST

The estimated costs to provide the services described above, Task 0 through Task3, are outlined below.
Please note that the actual analyses may vary depending on whether additional samples are required for
analyses (i.e., if results dictate an alternate compositing scenario than what was assumed) by the MAS
Project Manager or the specific suite of chemical analyses required for Task 03 tissue analyses based on
the Task 03 bulk chemical analyses (again, as directed by the MAS Project Manager).

—_—

Ransom Project 101.05023.019 Page 3
AN2010\01.05023\019 Port Dredge Sampling\019 PSOW.docx November 13,2019



Captain Geno Marconi, Director
Pease Dievelopment Authority

Task  Description Ransom Fees Subecntractor Fees
Task 0 Scope of Work Development $1,500 $0
Task [ First Mobilization Sampling and Analyses $1,350 §7,753
Task 2 10-Day Bioassay Analyses (if required) £950 $7,150
Task 3 Second Mobilization Sampling and Analyses (if required) $4,100 $108,272

Subtotals $7,900 $123,175*%

TASK 6 - TASK 1 TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: $10,603
TASK 8 - TASK 3 TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: $131,675

*Note: Normandeau confirmed that their work will only include the services and subcontracting actually
incurred and remains tlexible to accommodate MAS and project requirements.

The costs will be incurred on a time and materials basis, and in accordance with Ransom’s Agreement for
Civil/Environmental Consulting Services with the PDA as authorized in Amendment No. T executed
July 25, 2017 (Agreement).

SCHEDULE

Ransom will complete the proposed scope of work within 5 weeks of receiving contractual authorization
to proceed. Ransom remains available to coordinate a schedule to meet time constraints which may arise.

ORGANIZATION

Jay Johonnett will be serving as project manager for this project and will be your primary contact at
Ransom. Should Jay be unavailable, please feel free to contact Steven Rickerich if you have questions.

BILLING AND PAYMENT OPTIONS

Ransom will invoice before the 20" of the month for the prior month’s services.

AUTHORIZATION

Prior to initiation of project work, we will need to receive an executed copy of this proposal, which will
serve as our authorization to proceed. The worlk will be conducted in accordance with our Agreement
with the PDA as authorized in Amendment No. I executed July 25, 2017.

Ransom Project 101.05023.019 Page 4
AN2010M01.05023\019 Port Dredge Sampling\019 PSOW .docx November 13, 2019



Captain Geno Marconi, Director
Pease Development Authority

Ransom is pleased to have the opportunity to present this proposal to you. If you have any questions
regarding the scope of work, please feel free to call us.

Sincerely,

RANSOM CONSULTING, INC.

Jay P. Johonnett
Project Engineer
Digitally signed by Steven F.

-y 2R Rickerich
< ) ' ickeric|
"D e 0190113 15:27:12-05'00"

Steven F. Rickerich, P.G.
Vice President

JPJ/SFR jar
Attachments

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:

Signature: _ ) o

Name (print or type):

Title: Date: —

— e TTE S

Page 5

Ransom Project 101.05023.019
November 13,2019

AN2010\101.05023\019 Port Dredge Sampling\019 PSOW docx



ATTACHMENT
Normandeau Proposal

Proposed Scope of Work — Sampling and Analyses for Dredging of Rye Harbor
Pease Drevelopment Authority — Division of Ports and Harbors
Rye Harbor State Anchorage
Rye Harbor

Ransom Consuiting, Inc.
Project 101.05023.019



November 13, 2019

Steven F. Rickerich
Ransom Consulting, Inc.
112 Corporate Drive
Porismouth, NH 03801

SUBJECT: Normandeau Cost Proposal for Sediment Sam ;

- Ve [ [ RPN -
Propos:' Maintenance Dredlging, Rye Harbor,

ing and Analytical Testing Services for the

IJ-.—.

;e/ \‘ I/ MEVL L
NOovi GA a2u (_) C,[L” ]L / i\l } /_C"J@'qu
1

Dear Mr. Rickerich

Normandeau Associates, inc. {Mormandeau’ is cleasad to provide ih
t i }
Consuﬁ‘il 5 {C g f tion and laborato

with the Subcon
in is to be cons:dorfc

SCOPE OF W

1 oT

& Warkto be perfon
The ser,‘,.c! ng &
collect and an

location as direct

Ouetoth mplexity of thq npiing | rogram and analytical testing as presented in the SAP, Normandeau
has ass would be needed, to collect the sample volume requirad. This

certainty of meeting the expedited turn-around fimes as well as accommodating a review

n duration and co above with required off-shore disposal site sampling

and the analytical hold times for the biologicals under a tiered approach to characterization.

Field work will be scheduled within two to three weeks of written notice to proceed.




. Deliverabies:

Data submittal for each milestone (listed below) will be within ten days of receipt of analytical results in
accordance with the SAP. Turnaround time for the analytical results will be in accordance with the Regional
Implementation Manual for the Evaluation of Dredged Material Proposed for Disposal in New England Waters
(RIM) dated May 6, 2004. Data submittal, in accordance with the SAP, will include sub-meter coordinates for
the coring locations, photograghs, boring logs and field data sheets. and analytical results for chemistry

samples

H
i

TASK L - Phiysical Analysis

First Deployment Mobilization/Demebilization $3,900
Dredge Area Sampling 3-core samples Expect 1 day sampling 52,990
= 0 . . . . ) o]
Analytical Laboratory Testing 4 Samples: 3-Dredge Grain Size, TOC {in 5863
{Attachment 4} Area, 1-Sample duplicate),
Duplicate % Moisture,
$7,753
TASK 2 - Sofid Phase Sediment
Assay {If required}
10-Day Toxicity Assays 2 test species Based on 1 composite 57,150
sample
Reference Location Sampling 1-sediment sample Cape Arundel Disposal 5ite 51982
(CADS)
Trace metais: As, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg,  Composite of 3 dredge Basad on 1 composits 54,950
Ni, Zn/PAHs/PCB site sediment samples sample plus QC tests
Congeners/Pesticides and 1 site water
NE District formatted Electronic 1 5110
Data Deliverable (EDD) package
TASK 4 — Eiutriate and Biclogical
Testing {if reguired)
Sa i Deplo ilzatian/Demobilization 53,90C
Second Deployment Mohilization/Demobilization 23,
Dredge Area Sampling 3 Expect 2 days sampling 55,760
Analytical Laboratory Testing Pricing based on 3 Ses Attachment 4 584,200
sample locations to be
composited into 1, in
accordanca with SAP
{ 522G

NE District formatied Electronic
Data Deliverable (EDD} package

-
&



F7y

3]

"
- :
i
N .




Attachments:
1. Subcontract Agreement dated March 2, 2018
2. Scope Of Work
3. Sample Analysis Plan

S

Laboratory Analytical Costs



ACKMOWLEDGMENT

Normandeau Cost Proposal for Sediment Sampling and Anzalvtical Testing Services for the
Proposed Maintenance Dredgir

&

12, Rye Harbor, Rye, NH, Rev: 1
Nermandeau Opportunity No. 2020-04-030

7

Ransom Consulting, Inc. hereby agrees io the Scope of Work (& nent Z2) and all terms and compensation as
tated above. Normandeau is hereby directed o proceed. The signature below represents and possesses the

ull legal authority to execute this agreement on behalf of Ransomn Consulting, inc.







U,

T




Lty sl sezvicey and provide

nee wih i

W

!scs m(l},‘ [EAIRH e

aotime motthe ¢
:u'w o the wics. irre adserse

ol und rvthout the tauit o

Jl!l:l.}

Subien

cateitdar dayvs ol the

\v'\\\ i

GIHTAGIGT

.\illi\f\n] n

' g 5 hu {he MaNinum compensi

contretr e eeapested ! Ransoni h [ riped vy

and con e P .
g 0 P g 1
b 3 reribeed

dand h.iirmh:

eunt of sl nn e
Hiattor i caler

ceenrds, when reg .
\ B 2 i he f ¥ SEine mvoce withn

2an

MCER e Wit i po: 1w al i
(NI \ar".n"'

Lo madie

o v

Jusranls

ool e




e >
o D g 37
P Sy L/

ubeontrectors or any ather peragn n

of Wil e oF Jhons B amissings ;
e Subcaniractor

sseciion 3 3w Ty e itodyy i
ribed g
or {h) Famsomy's une oi

-
2
<
P
<

: hing |

2 be fible 2o the wxtent fat any liahily
cost and expense de

szl fad n

pese svhireh g uxp

vdenved o the §

D L
=y

L RS,

wher g

puier soff

weilt oot

HRRTSSR I
Lo any petitaon 5
CaNe may

for s

SURCOOTICTAr ¢




mve i ihey

X [ wafed oo

LRI
ciehioor fomedy @
G er (i e the oo [ SIS o sancellation o Lo
Of e 2
saltnf

e Serviee

SR

it aetoe ke

NOTH RS
3 higd el

i e the Subcontract

aeen afiis

HIG Ol ferein [y

il

FN AL

MV LOrLon ot

LU 10 0 DURTLY

at

YISO O




P50 Then

hive at Ju

and temedies of Ran

PLERN I

vised kerennder remdies Ka




Mormandeau has provided sediment sampling services in water bodies along the East Coast, to incfude Rye, NH,
and within the Greater Philadelphia and New York Metropolitan Areas for over 30 years. Normandeau’s fleet of
boats and vibracoring equipment allows flexibility for our staff to collect samples in sometimes hard-to-access
tocations so that Normandeau may provide our clienis with precise and definitive results for their projects. if
awarded this project, a two person crew from Mormandeau’s Hampton, NH office will be responsible for
collecting the Disposal Site reference sample and a two person crew comprised of one member from
Normandeau's Hampton, NH office, and one member and all coring eguipment from the Potistown, PA office
will be responsible for collecting the Rye Harbor sediment cores.

Normandeau anticipates using our coring barge with a submersible vibracore unit to conduct sediment core
collection activities. Normandeau's primary vibracoring unit, a Rossfelder P-3, facilitates sampling of soft or
Inosely compacted sediment/soil deposits using clear, semi-rigid cellulose acetate butyrate (CAB) tubes. This
material allows for faster coring deployments and immediate inspection of the coilected core through the clear
tube.

Where possibie and as directed in the SAP, Mormandeay will attempt to advance sample cores to the maximum
projact sediment depth of -8.0 feet mean lower low water pius 1-foot over dredge Due to inconsistencies in
sediment composition (thick clays, gravel/debris, high percentage of sands), complete sample cores from
sediment surface to project depth may not be possible. Therefore, coring wiil continue at each sample focation
until project depth is attained or until refusal occurs. An additional attempt may be made if it is determined by
the Normandeau Coring Supervisor that refusal was due to debris or core tlocka

Re-usable coring and sampling equipment wili be decontaminated per U.S. EPA protocol between sample

locations

P Tt L e Tad
AR S Y

Afrer core collection, &t the processing area and per the requirements of the SAP, each core will be wisually
characterized and have boring logs compieted which will include a visual description and photographs of the

sediment and core, Normandean assumes that Ransom will receive approval from the property owners for a
sample processing area near the boat launching facility. Normarideau will ship or courier samples to the

suhcontract laboratory in sealed containers for analysis as described below and in accordance with the SAP and
RIM

mpton, NH, an approved laboratory with the Mew England District of the U.5. Army

Enthalpy A Han
AF}, has been selected by Mormandeau to provide sadiment and site water testing and

Corps ot €
analysis. Phyfszcal anaf\/ses will be performed for each of the three sedamsm samples assuming no "significant”
distinct vertical siratification {at least 2 feet in length) is evident, If siratification is identified the CEMAE-RDC
Project Manager will be contacted for guidance on possible subsamnling needs




Physical analysis will includa:

*  grain size (percent sand, silt and clay)

« {otal organic carbon (TOC)

«  total solids
In accordance withi the SAP and the determination of a composite scheme, additional analytical testing may be
required. Any additional sediment and site water testing will be conducted in accordance with the SAP.
Analytical results wiit be reported by the testing laboratory in New England District Eiectronic Data Deliverables
{(EDD} format. The repori and ana tytical results will be reviewed by the Normandeau project manager and
submitted to Ransom in draft form.

Normandeau’s field team can usually be available within two to three weeks upcn receipt of Ransom’s written
éc ice 1o Procead and writien agreement with this proposed scope of work. Normandeau estimates that the
l

irst deployment for sediment coliection and processing will take one day to complcie Resuits will be reporied

to Ransom within one business day of receipt.

i -

Nermandeau's projeci manager will contact Ransom in order to establish dates for the on-site waork,
understanding that access to the Rye Harbor will be basad on local weather an water congitions.

For determining analytical costs Normandeau has assumed that the three sediment cores will be less than 30%
sand and will have no additional stratified I3 vers to sampie and wiil therefore he considered three separate core

samples. Should this not be the case, the cost for each additional san ple anaI/s's will increase according to
lea

Normandeau’s standard rate schedule and analytical fees listed in Attachment 4

preparation time, utility clearances, round trip mohilizati
ana crew io the site, and equipment preparation mri clea ime. l‘\ al' SO mcludes time for develoging a
Site-Specific Health & Safety Plan, QA/QC and submittal of 1 i e phetographs, boring fogs,

GPS sample location coordinates, and laboratory corresaoncéen and QA/’QC ofare ytical resulis and resulis

submittal.

Gr one fl I'crm'/x, lead
g equipment,

z ; ield Sampling: $2,990.00. This rate includes ope field s mpling day, labor fees

]
Q
O
{0
“
@
Gu

istant, meals and lodging, 'ma Gre sysiem, sample o

:}

g barge. Three sediment cores will be col

te includes two field sampling days, labor fees for one field crew

. Fleld Saropling: RAE
lead scigntist and one m/:)ﬂxnn«:ed aSSiS'tan'it, meals and lodging, vibracore sysiem, sample proce sing
equipment, a tow vehicle, and a fully-outfitted coring barge. Sediment from ,‘ ree sampie locations will e
collected. Additional sample vaiuime will be collected at each location f for d iclogical tesis including site
water. The three core locations will be combined to create one sediment composite.




®

3 ; . This rate includes one field sampling day, labor fees far
one field crew lead sc lenuscan%o e exp eriencﬂd assistant, sampling equisment, a tow vehicle, and a fully-
outfitted sampling vessel. Sufficient sediment and site water will be collected for biological and chemistry
analysis.

b 51,830,400, This rate includes one field sampling

day, labor and one experienced assistant, sampling eauipment, a tow
vehicie ar‘:d 'ru‘f\/-ou?i'rttﬂd sampling vessel. Sufﬁc;em sediment and site water will be collected for
bloiogrcal and chemistry analysis.

> Fou
One sediment composite for two 10 tests
¢ One composite sediment and cne site water sample for bulk chemical testing

s Generation of elutriate solution and analyses for ane sediment composite and one reference water

> One sediment composite for 28-day bicaccumulation tests and tissue analyses for two crganisims

¢ Required GCsamples and analysis

> Normandeau handiing fee of ten percent {10%)






S October 2019

IORAN rd C. Kristoff Project Manager, CENAE-RDC

B

: Sampling and Analysis Plan for Dredging of Rye Harbor State
Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rve, NH, File Number NAE-2019-02222

of 22 August 20169, 'irf' iarine

e
by

n of the L\Ie . :ﬂﬁlapd chum Regulatory Division (MAS) has
developed this sampling and analysis plan (SAP) to gather info ”nLLon to
support a suitability determination for the proposed open ocean disposal of

matier al dredg °d from the Rve Harbor L)LC; ‘e Anchorage. All sampling and

B

anah 1s activities described in this plan shall follow the requirements set forth
in the Regional Tnzplomerw«uon Mcmual ,\/‘ Zhe Evciuation of Dredged Matenal
on sed for Disposal in New England Waters (RiMi} dated May &, 2004. A copy
of the KH\f as well as requirements for OIU‘ nic submission of data, may be

downloaded from the website,

osn: The Town of Rye is proposing to maintenance dredge

proximately 85, 1'37 square feet within the state anchorage to an approximate

a.iJi o
depth of -8 feet mean lower low water plus a 1-foot overdredge adjacent to the
Rye Harbor Federal Navigation Channel (FNP)} {Figure 1}. J&ppm.umate’lv 3 154-

T _

cally dredged from the project Jootj nt

cubic yards is proposed to be mechan \
of Sheals North Disposal Site or the Cajg

with disposal proposed at the Isle
Arundel Disposal Site {CADS).

.

AS revie'vi.f-ed nformation provided by the

appi cemt ontractor as well as information available online and at NAE

including hlSLOl ic testing data, previous environmenteal assessments, water

quality data, adjacent land-use i.n‘:o*manaﬂ spill and outfal ]. data, and

irtu‘m ews with local officials. This information was used to develop a
~onceptual site model { ) (Figure Z) 1‘01‘ r]“- € propos sed pre >J ct thcu

ci aracterized po vnilal SOUICES .‘f > '

concern, exposure pathways, ar

U]

Iv five rmiles sout h of Portsmouth, M
/41‘11maw River. The harbor is

s the FNP includes an entrance
outh of the ¢ hr el (Figure 1).

Land use around Rye Harbor is predominatel
residential with the Awcomin Salt Marsh and the




CENAE-RDP
SUBJECT: Sampling and Analvsis Plan for Dredging of Ryve Harbor State Anchorage, Rve Harbor, Rye, NH,

Fiie Number NAE-2019-02222




CENAE-RDP

SUBJECT: Sampling and £na lysﬁf Plan for Dredging of Rye Harbor State
Hye H, Ny

nher NAE-2018-02222

'\O

Harbor, Rve, N L1t

PN S
ANCHROTAge, &

horth and west and sever al private dwellings situated along the nerthern and

iU \z bo .
southern shores of the harbor. The State of = malntains a boat
te Minus Or LP‘e ?[\ channel with a gravel pa.rking lot and
. 2 : 3 1

s

vay Potential Receptors

< 2z - ‘e
Systern Inputs

e aiut L




CENAE-RDP
SUBJECT: Sampling and Analysis Plan for Dredging of Rye Harbor State

Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rve, NH, File Number NAE-2019-02227

Table 1. Spilis Reported to NRC and NHDES in Rye Harbor from
2010-Present,

&
I
&
s
v
&
3
Ca
o
&
el
o
o
i

ﬂ
l

T
|

=
=
B
)]
b
-
-
[ €21
;
[$]
@]
P4
!

Fot | jama

Pt
=

Mystery Sheen

)Y '’
)
5]
o
(]
1]
"
sl
s i
o
o]
5

1
| 1/20/110 Sheen Sunken Vessel
6/21/11" Sheen U
717711 v '
8/15/117 ; Un
2012# %4 Unkno |
7/31/12" _Shee Unknowr -
7/22/13» Sheen - __Unknowh ]
_____ ) 159 Mystery Sheen - Unknown —

(140 Sheen Unknown
— . | Mystery Sheen
2 _ | Gasoline Spill

)
~LS

FIND e

O o ~3 OV~ L

T

|

S 178 ~_Sheen
/177 | Sheen

data, the Rye Harbor Siate

= - . S s e s o e e e st s e v e

| Rank .| Guidelines ]
? Few or no sources of contamination. Data available to verify |
no significant potential for adverse biological effects.

' Few or no sources of contamination but existing data is
_insufficient to confirm ranking,

Contamination sources exist within the vicinity of the
Moderate project with the potential to produce chemica

S conicentrations that may cause adverse biological effccts. !
i Known sources of contamination within the project area and |
' High _historical data exists that has previously failed biological

P e 5
‘ ST L
H S L.L:xl.;:t

v

Low-Moderate




CENAE-RDP
SUBJECT: Sampling and Analysis Plan for Dredging of Ry Harbor State

Har
Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rye, NH, File Number NAE-2019-02222

The New England District last dredged Rye Harbor in 1990 when

approximately 55,000 cubic yar as o.ffnc sand and silt were mechanically
1

removed from the channel and anchorage areas. This material was placed a
CADS, located approximately 22 nautical miles northeast of the project area.
3. Dredge area sediment cores shall be collected at the

three locations (R

were selectea bas d on information from the CSM describe

the distribution of point sources in the vicinity of the project footprint. Core
1 oll(-“u ed to the or oposed dredge depth plus the overdredge

ided with photographs and narratives

RHSA-1 through RHSA-3) shown in Figure 3. These locations
d above and from

amourit. Core ioge shall be prov

,....‘ ,

describing relative grain sizes, color, odor, strata, core Ip'ﬂgth. depth of
penetration, and percent recovery along with other pertinen d ment
sampling observations. The core photographs shall clearly
identification and depth. The cores shall be mspecud he field for
stratification. [f the cores show i

significant stratification or obvious signs of
contamination, in the opinion -of the sampling crew, suosamples '

13
of each layer.

cach scuﬂple loca
coordinates

h core or core segment from the dre

A

individually analyzed for gz ainn size and the results reported t
{

£

manager before any compositing 1S per
be dcter‘n‘lmcd by the Corps based on 'p]fOZ:.ilfﬂiU V1
flicient maierial shall be collected from each s:

rmed. The Ima}_ c
sediment ty

characteristics. S
location for grain size and for the analvses described in the

The reference site 3:":di"_rr1c.ni should be collected ’f am the CAD
e 43" 17.9" M and longitude 707 /

Site located at latiiu



el

CENAE-RDP
k)‘ ,‘_) h

e . L | e | 5 i e Gl &
JECT: Sampling and Ane Plan for Dred State
Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rye, ile Numbe

Figure 3. Rye Harbor State &

E 3\
J Y O
Po% i A

2 tl 1IMP AMerncaimysis
1» -y :
bahia

U



CENAE-RDP

SUBJECT: Sampling and Analysis Plan for Dredging of Rye Harbor State
Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rye, NH, File Number NAE-2019 02222

holding times. In addition, we m

for the bulk sediment chemistry ”mal;\,x es, the sUs porc cd pam 11,ulr1 e b,’oassa‘j

ate "TTL}T}@FI

dopsts b
Mytilus

7
{




Q

>

I

Ky¢
J

f

Harbor,

d

A

ecomimende

rer

=

&

lac

T

-
id

an oo re

-

y N
o
et
S
==

()
R
RIS

mu a m
£
=

et

O

S

D¢

red La

‘ories uised

rat
r
)

i
Bro

7
R

a1

without an

oy o
< 0
] e}
R
e
e
5 S
g
D, v
Qw
o
t «.H“
o0
» ] -
N
s o»w

it format

Za

o-1

rEpOoTtinyg

ed

3T
ik

1

O1Ch

~
~

noo
LD

4
L
o

S
Viaine

4= Q)
!
o

3
i

&
10

. 1

Pl

i
Oy L

|y
P L

ot

L

Ve

[94



CENAE-RDP
SUBJECT: Sampling and Analysis Plan for Dredging of Rye Harbor State

is
Anchorage, Rye Harbor, Rve, NH, File Number NAE-2019-02222

EPAJUSACE 2004. chonai Impler.entation Manual for the
Evaluation of Dredged Material Proposed for Disposal in New

England Waters. U.3. EPA Region 1, Boston, MA/U.S. Arm

Corps of Engineers, New anrlawq District, Concord, MA.

EPA/USACE 1991. Evaluation of Dredged Material Proposed for
oY iy
Ocean Disposal - Testing Manual. Environmental Protection
Ag ney, Office of Water and Dsp lLTP&,l"t of the Army, United
<

States Army Corps of Engineers. Washington, D.C.

2008, Sedir ’[ qua hw trla assessment of an indus ‘L ahzo
\ of t‘ne no 1thea%tez ﬂ ISA. Environmental Monitoring and
went. 1

Long, E. B, Ingersoll, C. G., and MacDonald, D. D. 2006. Calculation
and uses of mean sediment quality guideline quotients: A critical

Environmental Science and Technology. 406} 1

NHDES 2015, State of New Hampshire 2014 Section 305{b} and 303(d)
COHS‘O]_idaI'_(:‘d Assess ment wid Listing '\/Lﬂt l ‘Logg.'. NHDES-R-
WH-15-9. New Hampshire Department of Environmental

Services. Concerd, NH.

USACE 2014. D Material Evaluatios
'Jrocmurw, User Manual. L/TC,C ocd

Q =

Program, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers,




TABLE 2: BULK SEDIMENT TESTING PARAMETERS

Parameter

Metals
Arsenie
Cadmium
Chromium
Copner
Lead
Mercury
Niciel
Zine

PCBs (total b\ NOAA summation of conge

Pesticides
Aldrin
c1s- & trans-Chlordane
4.4°-DOT, DD, DDE
Dieldrin
a & B Endosulfan

s Hydrocarbons

Total Organie Carbon
Moisture

Peree

Grain Size

Analvtical Reporting
Method Limit (ppm)
GO0, 6020, 7060, 7061 0.4
6GO1013, L 7TE30. 7131 0.07
60101, 6020, 7190, 7191 0.5
50108, 6020. 7210 0.5
7420, 7421 o)

50108, 6020,
7471
501013, 6020, 7520
60108, 502

— oo
(83 Ben
[

<

nerst
808524

o
O
=
=

NOAA (1993, 8081
Heptachlor epoxide
ne

Hexachlorohenze
Lindane

or
s-Nonachlor

hiordane

phene 0.025

CO0tL

0.1%

1.0%




PCEB CONGENERS

usec 1 estimaiing Tote

Analvtical Method: NOAA ({1993], 8082A

Reportng Lurut. 1 ppb

Congeners:

; 2,4 diCB
2,25 11CB
2,4, LLCB
2,2 tetraCB
2,2 etraCB
2,._) CU aCB
2,3, aCl3
2,272,453 pentaCl
2,2°4,5,3 pentaCB
2,3.3°,4.4" pentaCi3
2,374,435 pentaCB
2.3.3 hexaCR
2,23 ,‘3’ hexaCB
2,2°.4 5" hexaCB
2,2',3,3‘,4,4 5 heptaCB
2,2°.3,4,4°.5,5 heptaCB
2,2.3,4.4°.5°.6 heptaCB
2.2°.3,4,4.6,6" hepraCh
2,27.3,4.5,5,6 heptaCB
2,2°.3,3.,4.4°,5.6 octaCl3
2,2°.2,3.4,4,5.5°.6 nonaCl
2,2.,3,3,4,4,5,5°.6,6" decalCB
* dengtes a congener o be

concentratnons ol all eighteen congeners marked w

The specilicd methods

meeing the Reporfing Limits can be used.
cleanup) and semple size may need to be modif

Sa

th o

are recommendaiions only
mple prepar
iiied 10 achieve the

ation methodologies

PCB. Te caleulate Total PCI. sum the

Tand muluply by 2.

Other acceptalsie mclhodologxc's (“’-"pé‘lbl"‘ af
i

stracton 2
recpured Reporiing Limits.

o o
(S5 2e



TABLE 3: SLUTRIATE TESTING PARAMETERS

Parameter Recommended
Analvtica Feporting
Method Limit fag/L}
Metals
Avrseme 2009, 1632 1.0
Cadmim 200.9. <’ 37 .0
Chromium (Vi) 218.e. 1636 1.0
Copper 200.9, 1639, 1540 0.6
Lead 200.9, 1639, 1640 1.0
Mercury 2457, 1631 0.4
I 200.9, 1639, 1640 10
z()().,;, 1639 1.0
200.9 6.3
200.9, 1639 1.0
PCBs (total, by evher of these methods)
35108, 8080A. NYSDHEC 0.006
Penrachiorophenol 33018, 82706C 2.60
63[7"1”(“ 351013, 8080A
0,26
Chle ﬁ'ia: e 002
Chloropvrilos 0.002
Dieldrin 0.14
4, 4-pDT 0.03
a & B Endosulfan 0.007
Endrin 0.007
Heptachlor 0.01
Heptachlor epoxide 0.01
Lindane

Toxaphene

rermination of PCE Conge
aprure Derector. NYSDEC #9

,-/l L ].99 1 Anem""f al Me(hod for







RYE HARBOR SEDIVIENT SUBVEY PROJECT, REV:1
BYE, MH

LABORATORY ANALYTICAL COSTS

8-Nov-18

Mormandeau Opp#: 2020-04-030

Number of

i

Physical Analysis - Task 1

Grain Siza Analysis

Total Organic Carbon (in duplicatej Kl
Fercent Moisture 2

10-Day assay with Ampelisca ahdita {amphipod} E
.

10-Day assay with Americamysis bahig {mysid shrimp) i

Trace metals: As, Cd, Cr, Cy, Pb, Hg, Ni, Zn/PAHS/PCE Canganars/Pesticides 3

Mew England District formatted Clactronic Data Dalverable {EDD} package

-

Water Column Testing - Suspended Particulate Phase Assays (SPP):
96-Hour SPP assay with Americamysis bahia (mysid) L
96-Hour SPP assay with Menidiz beryifina {minnow)

48-72 Haur Arbacia punctulata larvae developmental assay 1
Triplicate Analysis of Elutriate Sofution and Site Water bDlanks:
Pentachiorophenol i
Trace metals: As, Cd, Cr {v1}, Cu, Pb, Hg, N, Se, Az, Zn z
el 3
Is K
1
iczccumulation Assays
irens hioaccumulation evaluation H 511,000
on, containerization, subsampling 2 51,100
Tissue Analysas
(Cost includes tissug sample creparabion, analysis and statisticat znalysis.)

Trace matais: as, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pl Hg, Ni, Zn i







S8UN pasodoud 0Z0Z\6T0Z\DLNAYYOS\:d

T 23ed

! | _ ! B _ _ _,a_u__o: Aepuoi
lH et e |||m] i _ . | -
N o S TV A I Ly hepsinyy _EE...U _Hod
ﬁ i AUD\:E& pieog Eoug Aepuop-Ajlenuuy-1was upny
; pieog m._o.,mn Aepuo - Apaynenp, jjon
I || | |.|...|| o £ o Il ||. B ml ...-|i_|| pieog a1o0jaq Aepuop - >_‘_mﬁm_._.d_ Ho.ﬁ_wmit
! . i 2..: 10 ga4 mm:;mmE oN >mnE_.Eh pigl  pieog
o . I _ o 9 ) T ~ puss:;

| | :
N s *a3150d mm_axmﬁo mmm.i: W'V 8 1Y _z_umm SONILITA TIV ILON i
. | ] 81/6T/21 | Aepsinyy pnuuy’ Jaquiadag
I D S | 02/91/11 | Aepuow | 0z/91/1t | Aepuom | oz/et/TT  Aepsinyl | squanon
07/10/0T | Aepsinyi  oz/€T/ot | JAepssny ) N 0z/ST/0T | Aepsinyy | | 439010
h ) | 0Z/v1/60  Aepuow  0z/vT/60  Aepuow | oz/ct/eo  Aepsinyl | saquiaydag,
= || - 1 .|.| _|| B 0z/0z/80 | Aepsinyy | i -mmzm:q
_ | auopn Ang
B I i T 1 0z/s1/90 | Aepuow | 02/8t/90  Aepsinuy | i aunf
. - e | | m | 0z/tz/so | Aepsinyy L Rew
02/20/v0 | |>m_§=ﬁ amxmgml AepuoN | 0Z/€T/v0 | Aepuow  0z/€1/80 Aepuow ' 0z/91/v0 | Aepsinyy _ |dy
N B I T | 02/61/€0 %u_msﬁ-__' _ Yyasew
L e S e ) _ BuoN ~Aenigay
- ! B | Oz/er/to  Aepuow  oz/€1/to  Aepuow | 0Z/91/10 | Aepsinyy | - Asenuer
Sed | feq  @ma _ k@ | seq  ®a |_ Meq | Reg | SEa | Aeg L
i | I _ ) Vil | | ‘wepggae mm:;mws_ | - | - _ - .

1¥0d uanv | 4109 _ IDONYNH | ayvos I

3TNA3IHIS ONILIFIN 0Z0Z A3SOd0Yd






